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2. Corporate Structure 
 

2.1 State the full corporate name of the Issuer or, if the Issuer is an unincorporated 
entity, the full name under which the entity exists and carries on business and the 
address(es) of the Issuer's head and registered office. 

         
 Toro Resources Corp. (the “Issuer” or the “Company”) has a head office located at 700 – 1620 

Dickson Avenue, Kelowna, BC V1Y 9Y2 and its registered office is located at 700 – 595 Howe 
Street, Vancouver, BC V6C 2T5.  

 
2.2 State the statute under which the Issuer is incorporated or continued or 

organized or, if the Issuer is an unincorporated entity, the laws of the jurisdiction 
or foreign jurisdiction under which the Issuer is established and exists.   Describe 
the substance of any material amendments to the articles or other constating or 
establishing documents of the Issuer. 

 
	   The Issuer was incorporated under the British Columbia Business Corporations Act on June 30, 

2005 under the name 0728888 B.C. Ltd.  The Issuer changed its name to Toro Resources Corp. 
on November 3, 2005.  

 
2.3 Describe, by way of a diagram or otherwise, the intercorporate relationships 

among the Issuer and the Issuer's subsidiaries.  For each subsidiary state  
 

(a) the percentage of votes attaching to all voting securities of the subsidiary 
represented by voting securities beneficially owned, or over which control 
or direction is exercised, by the Issuer;  

 
(b) the place of incorporation or continuance; and 

 
(c) the percentage of each class of restricted shares beneficially owned, or 

over which control or direction is exercised, by the Issuer. 
 
The Company has one wholly-owned subsidiary, Toro Resources Inc. which was incorporated in                  
Nevada, United States. The Company owns 100% of the votes attaching to all voting securities of 
Toro Resources Inc. 

 
2.4 If the Issuer is requalifying following a fundamental change or is proposing an 

acquisition, amalgamation, merger, reorganization or arrangement, describe by 
way of diagram or otherwise these intercorporate relationships both before and 
after the completion of the proposed transaction. 

 
 The Issuer is not requalifying following a fundamental change.  The Issuer is not proposing an 

acquisition, amalgamation, merger, reorganization or arrangement. 
 
2.5 Non-corporate Issuers and Issuers incorporated outside of Canada must 

describe how their governing legislation or constating documents differ materially 
from Canadian corporate legislation with respect to the corporate governance 
principles set out in Policy 4. 
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 The Issuer was incorporated in Canada. 
 
3. General Development of the Business 
 
3.1 Describe the general development of the Issuer's business over its three most 

recently completed financial years and any subsequent period.  Include only 
major events or conditions that have influenced the general development of the 
Issuer's business.  If the business consists of the production or distribution of 
more than one product or the rendering of more than one kind of service, 
describe the principal products or services.  Also discuss changes in the 
business of the Issuer that are expected to occur during the current financial year 
of the Issuer. 

	  
During the three most recently completed financial years and since the beginning of the current 
financial year, the Company has been in the business of acquiring and exploring mineral 
properties.  
 
The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Toro Resources Inc. (“TRI”), held an option 
to acquire a 100% interest in the Morgan Peak property (the “Morgan Peak Property”), subject to 
a 3% NSR royalty.  The option was granted to the Company in 2009 and transferred to TRI in 
2010.  The Morgan Peak Property is in a preliminary stage of exploration and does not have a 
known commercial body of ore or minerals. In  2012, the Company negotiated an amendment to 
the original agreement (the “Agreement”) whereby the deadline for the 2012-2013 exploration 
expenditures of $450,000 was extended by one year to February 1, 2014 resulting in a required 
total of $950,000 in exploration expenditures in the 2013-2014 period.  In December of 2013, due 
to unfavorable market conditions, the Company negotiated a further amendment to the 
Agreement, whereby all annual payments falling due on the first of February and exploration 
expenditure commitments were restructured obligating the Company to make expenditures of 
$450,000 in the 2014-2015 year. All requisite exploration expenditures were effectively pushed 
forward by two years from the original agreement. Further to this, the Company had a standing 
agreement with the vendors to delay payments and work commitments until July 1, 2014.  As at 
June 30, 2014 the Company wrote down the Morgan Peak Property to $Nil and recorded a loss of 
$985,356 in the year. On August 8, 2014, the Company officially relinquished the Morgan Peak 
Property. 
  
On July 11, 2013, the Company entered into a letter of intent (the “Letter Agreement”) whereby 
PBar Land and Minerals, LLC, (“PBar”) upon completion of a formal option agreement (the 
“Option”), has the right to earn up to a 51% interest in the Morgan Peak copper project (“Morgan 
Peak”). PBar is private mineral exploration company located in Phoenix, Arizona. The Option 
was amended on March 18, 2014 whereby PBar remitted a us$16,000 non-refundable deposit. 
Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2014, the option agreement, as amended, was terminated 
as the terms thereof could not be met by PBar.  

 
Effective July 31, 2014 the Company entered into an option agreement (the “Option Agreement”) 
with 1002679 B.C. Ltd. pursuant to which the Company was granted an option to acquire a 100% 
interest in the Taxco property (the “Taxco Property”), subject to a 3% NSR royalty, for a $2,500 
cash payment (paid), the issuance of 50,000 shares or a cash payment of $5,000 within 14 days of 
regulatory approval of the Option Agreement and, over a period of three years, making further 
cash payments totalling $80,000, issuing a total of 450,000 shares and incurring exploration 
expenditures totalling $400,000.  The Taxco Property is in a preliminary stage of exploration and 
does not have a known commercial body of ore or minerals. 
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3.2 Disclose: 

 
(1) (a) any significant acquisition completed by the Issuer or any  significant 

probable acquisition proposed by the Issuer, for which financial 
statements would be required under National Instrument 41-101 
General Prospectus Requirements if this Listing Statement were a 
prospectus; and 

 
(b) any significant disposition completed by the Issuer during the most 

recently completed financial year or the current financial year for 
which pro forma financial statements would be required under 
National Instrument 41-101 General Prospectus Requirements if this 
Listing Statement were a prospectus.  

 
(2) Under paragraph (1) include particulars of 

 
(a) the nature of the assets acquired or disposed of or to be acquired or 

disposed of; 
 

(b) the actual or proposed date of each significant acquisition or 
significant disposition; 

 
(c) the consideration, both monetary and non-monetary paid, or to be 

paid, to or by the Issuer; 
 

(d) any material obligations that must be complied with to keep any 
significant acquisition or significant disposition agreement in good 
standing; 

 
(e) the effect of the significant acquisition or significant disposition on the 

operating results and financial position of the Issuer; 
 

(f) any valuation opinion obtained within the last 12 months required 
under Canadian securities legislation, a directive of a Canadian 
securities regulatory authority, or a requirement of a Canadian stock 
exchange or other Canadian market to support the value of the 
consideration received or paid by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries 
for the assets, including the name of the author, the date of the 
opinion, the assets to which the opinion relates and the value 
attributed to the assets; and 

 
(g) whether the transaction is with a Related Party of the Issuer and if so, 

disclose the identity of the other parties and the relationship of the 
other parties to the Issuer. 

 
The Issuer has not completed any significant acquisition, nor is any significant probable 
acquisition proposed by the Issuer, of the kind referred to in the foregoing instructions.  The 
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Issuer has not completed any significant disposition during the most recently completed financial 
year or during the current financial year of the kind referred to in the foregoing instructions. 

 
3.3 Discuss any trend, commitment, event or uncertainty that is both presently known 

to management and reasonably expected to have a material effect on the 
Issuer's business, financial condition or results of operations, providing forward-
looking information based on the Issuer's expectations as of the date of the 
Listing Statement. 

	  
	   As an exploration company without revenues, the Issuer typically needs more capital than it has 

available to it or can expect to generate through the sale of its products.  In the past, the Issuer has 
had to raise, by way of equity financing, considerable funds to meet its capital needs.  There is no 
guarantee that the Issuer will be able to continue to raise funds needed for its business.  Failure to 
raise the necessary funds in a timely fashion will limit the Issuer’s growth.  

 
4 Narrative Description of the Business 
 
4.1 General  
 

(1) Describe the business of the Issuer with reference to the reportable 
operating segments as defined in the Handbook and the Issuer's business 
in general.  Include the following for each reportable operating segment of 
the Issuer: 

 
(a) state the business objectives that the Issuer expects to accomplish in 

the forthcoming 12-month period; 
 

The Company’s business objective for the following 12 months is to complete the 
exploration program on the Taxco Property as recommended in the technical report 
entitled “Technical Report on the Taxco Property” dated October 31, 2014 (the 
“Report”), prepared by Kristian Whitehead, P. Geo. 

 
(b) describe each significant event or milestone that must occur for the 

business objectives in (a) to be accomplished and state the specific 
time period in which each event is expected to occur and the costs 
related to each event; 

 
The completion of the exploration program on the Taxco Property is subject to the 
completion of a $250,000 private placement financing.  The Company intends to 
conduct such financing following the listing of its common shares on the Canadian 
Securities Exchange. 

 
(c) disclose the total funds available to the Issuer and the following 

breakdown of those funds: 
 

(i) the estimated consolidated working capital (deficiency) as of the 
most recent month end prior to filing the Listing Statement, and 

 
The Company has entered into debt postponement agreements totaling 
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approximately $652,000 mostly with the CEO and CFO for accrued wages and 
fees, along with RD Capital regarding a loan to the Issuer of $100,000 and accrued 
interest. RD Capital Inc. is a company controlled by D. Randhawa, the President 
and CEO of Toro. The debt postponement agreements postpone the debt for 15 
months or sooner if the Company completes a financing and issues sufficient 
shares to extinguish the debt.  Accordingly, the Issuer has, as at March 31, 2015, 
working capital available of $47,547. 
 
(ii) the total other funds, and the sources of such funds, available to 

be used to achieve the objectives and milestones set out in 
paragraphs (a) and (b); and 

 
The Company anticipates raising $250,000 by way of private placement financing. 
 

(d) describe in reasonable detail and, if appropriate, using tabular form, 
each of the principal purposes, with approximate amounts, for which 
the funds available described under the preceding paragraph will be 
used by the Issuer. 

 
 Description Amount $ 

1.  Taxco Property exploration program 65,263 
2.  Estimated professional, regulatory, transfer agent and 

shareholder information fees (12 months)  
40,000 

3.  Estimated office, rent and administration, travel and 
promotional expenses (12 months) 

9,000 

4.  Estimated consulting and management fees (12 months) 180,000 
5.  General working capital 3,284 

 Total: 297,547 
  

(2) Principal products or services: 
    
 N/A. 
    
(3) Concerning production and sales: 
 
 N/A. 
 
(4) Describe the competitive conditions in the principal markets and 

geographic areas in which the Issuer operates, including, if reasonably 
possible, an assessment of the Issuer's competitive position. 

 
	   N/A. 
 
(5) With respect to lending operations of an Issuer's business, describe the 

investment policies and lending and investment restrictions. 
 
 N/A. 
 
(6) Disclose the nature and results of any bankruptcy, or any receivership or 

similar proceedings against the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries or any 
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voluntary bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings by the Issuer or 
any of its subsidiaries, within the three most recently completed financial 
years or the current financial year. 

 
There have not been any bankruptcy or receivership or similar proceedings against the 
Issuer within the three most recently completed financial years or the current financial 
year. 

(7) Disclose the nature and results of any material restructuring transaction of 
the Issuer within the three most recently completed financial years or 
completed during or proposed for the current financial year. 

	  
There has not been any material reorganization of the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries (if 
any) within the three most recently completed financial years or the current financial 
year.   

(8) If the Issuer has implemented social or environmental policies that are 
fundamental to the Issuer’s operations, such as policies regarding the 
Issuer’s relationship with the environment or with the communities in 
which the Issuer does business, or human rights policies, describe them 
and the steps the Issuer has taken to implement them. 

 
  The Issuer has not implemented social or environmental policies that are fundamental to 

the Issuer’s operations. 

Companies with Asset-backed Securities Outstanding 

4.2 In respect of any outstanding asset-backed securities, disclose the following 
information: 

N/A. 
 
4.3 For Issuers with a mineral project, disclose and insert here the information 

required by Appendix A for each property material to the Issuer. 
 

(1) Property Description and Location – Describe: 
 

(a) the area (in hectares or other appropriate units) and location of the 
property; 
 
The Taxco Property is located approximately 125 km to the southwest of 
Vanderhoof, British Columbia, Canada (Figure 1). The other major towns in the 
area are Prince George, located 175 km to the northeast and Quesnel, located 150 
km to the east of the Property. The Property consists of two contiguous Mineral 
Claims covering approximately 914.616 hectares located in the Omineca Mining 
Division of British Columbia. The Mineral Claims were staked using the British 
Columbia Mineral Titles Online computer Internet system. The claims were located 
using this system. With the British Columbia mineral claim staking system there 
can be no internal fractions or open ground. This is common practice in the mineral 
exploration industry in British Columbia to located claim boundaries, since the 
advent of internet staking. The centre of the Property is located at Latitude 52 59’ 
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31” N and 124º 46’ 21” W longitude, located on NTS map sheet 093 C and 093F. 
Claim data is summarized in Table 1, while a map showing the claims is presented 
in Figure 2.  
 

(b) the nature and extent of the Issuer's title to or interest in the property, 
including surface rights, obligations that must be met to retain the 
property and the expiration date of claims, licences and other 
property tenure rights; 

 
 Table 1: Property Information 
 

Tenure 
Number  

Claim 
Name  

Owner  Tenure 
Type  

Tenure 
Sub Type  

Map 
Number  

Issue Date  Good To 
Date  

Status  Area (ha)  

924349  SONA 1  268852 (100%)  Mineral  Claim  093C  2011/oct/26  2018/aug/31  GOOD  447.5722  
924369  SONA 2  268852 (100%)  Mineral  Claim  093C  2011/oct/26  2018/aug/31  GOOD  467.0438  
TOTAL AREA HECTARES  914.6160  

 
The Property was acquired under an option agreement dated July 31st, 2014 
between Toro Resources Corp. and 1002679 B.C. Ltd., having its registered office 
at 700 – 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, BC V6C 2T5. Under the terms of the 
agreement, Toro can hold 100% beneficial interest in the Taxco Property by 
making cash payments, issuing shares and carrying out exploration work as per the 
following terms:  
 

• Make a non-refundable cash payment of $2,500 within three months of the 
execution of this agreement; 

• Issue 50,000 Shares within 24 days of the regulatory approval of this 
agreement, or a cash payment of $5,000 as may be determined by the 
Company, such payment to be made no later than November 30, 2014; 

• End of year 1 – pay $10,000 cash, issue 100,000 shares and spend $50,000 
as exploration work on the Property;  

• End of year 2 – pay $20,000 cash, issue 150,000 shares and spend 
$100,000 as exploration work on the Property; and,  

• End of year 3 – pay $50,000 cash, issue 200,000 shares and spend 
$250,000 as exploration work on the Property.  

 
The Property is subject to a royalty in favor of the Optionor equal to a 3% Net 
Smelter Royalty (NSR), one half of which may be purchased for a cash payment of 
$250,000. Upon execution of this Agreement, the Company is entitled to record 
this Agreement against title to the Property. Upon the Company acquiring a 100% 
interest in the Property the Optionor shall deliver to the Company duly executed 
Transfers for the transfer to the Company of the interest in and to the Property.  
 
Mineral claims are registered in the name of Taxco Resources Inc. (268852) which 
is a subsidiary of 1002679 B.C. Ltd. and are good until August 31, 2018. The claim 
holder is required to carry exploration and development work (assessment work) as 
per the following schedule:  
 

• $5.00 per hectare for anniversary years 1 and 2;  
• $10.00 per hectare for anniversary years 3 and 4;  
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Figure 1: Regional Location 
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Figure 2: Mineral Claims and Physiography Map
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• $15.00 per hectare for anniversary years 5 and 6; and  
• $20.00 per hectare for subsequent anniversary years.  

 
The other option to maintain mineral claims in BC is payment instead of 
exploration and development work (PIED) amounts which is double the amount of 
money required to carry out assessment work.  
 
The author undertook a search of the tenure data on the British Columbia 
government’s Mineral Titles Online (MTO) web site which confirms the geospatial 
locations of the claims boundaries and current ownership of the mineral claims.  
 
No surface rights exist within the Property; the claims are on Crown land where the 
area is open to mineral exploration and development. None of the claims are 
covered by placer mining claims or Crown Grants. The claim area is in the 
competing areas of interest of two First Nations: the Tsilhqot’in and Lhoosk’uz 
Dene Nation. There is no Agricultural Reserve Land or Parks / Protected Areas on 
the Property.  
 

(c) the terms of any royalties, overrides, back-in rights, payments or 
other agreements and encumbrances to which the property is 
subject; 

 
The Property is not subject to any overrides, back-in rights, payments or other 
agreements and encumbrances.  
 
The Property is subject to a 3% NSR in favour of the optionor, 1002679 B.C. Ltd.    

 
(d) all environmental liabilities to which the property is subject; 

 
There are no known environmental liabilities to which the Property is subject. 

 
(e) the location of all known mineralized zones, mineral resources, 

mineral reserves and mine workings, existing tailings ponds, waste 
deposits and important natural features and improvements; and 

 
See section 4.3(6), “Mineralization” for a discussion of mineralization on the 
Property. No former mine workings and no significant environmental liabilities 
were noted by the author. 

 
(f) to the extent known, the permits that must be acquired to conduct the 

work proposed for the property and whether permits have been 
obtained; 

 
To perform the exploration work that will cause a physical disturbance, the 
Company must first file, and receive approval of, a Notice of Work and 
Reclamation as required by Section 10 of the Mines Act of the Province of British 
Columbia. Work permits are required to undertake Phase 1 of the 
recommendations. As of the date of this report the Company has informed the 
author that they have not been applied for any work permit. 
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(2) Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastructure and Physiography – 
Describe: 

 
(a) the means of access to the property; 

 
The Taxco Property can be accessed by helicopter or floatplane. There are some 
logging roads and trails passing adjacent to the south which can be extended to get 
road access to the Property for supporting a large exploration program.  

 
(b) the proximity of the property to a population centre and the nature of 

transport; 
	  

The Taxco Property is located 125 km southwest of Vanderhoof, 175 km southwest 
of Prince George, and approximately 150 km to the west of Quesnel, British 
Columbia. It can be accessed by helicopter or floatplane. 
 

(c) to the extent relevant to the mining project, the climate and length of 
the operating season; 

 
The climate is typical of a moderate Central British Columbia setting at this 
latitude. Relatively cold winter conditions occur from November through March, 
and temperate summer conditions occur between June and September. The 
temperature in the summer averages 20 degrees Celsius, and in the winter averages 
-5 degrees Celsius. In winters snow often exceeds 180 cm (six feet). Annual 
precipitation is approximately 75 cm. Snow covers the ground from early 
November to mid-May. Geological fieldwork, prospecting and sampling activities 
are best carried out on the Property between June and October. Drilling and 
geophysical survey work can be carried out throughout the year. 
	  

(d) the sufficiency of surface rights for mining operations, the  availability 
and sources of power, water, mining personnel, potential tailings 
storage areas, potential waste disposal areas, heap leach pads areas 
and potential processing plant sites; and 

 
The city of Vanderhoof is located about 125 kilometers to the north of the Taxco 
Property. Prince George is another major town located 175 km to the northeast. 
The towns and area have a long mining and forestry history and as such, most 
services are readily available. Many drilling, aviation, geological and geophysical 
contracting companies are located in Prince George and Vanderhoof. Two float 
plane bases are located on northeast-southwest trending Tsacha Lake located 5 km 
to the north of the Property. Tsacha Lake is part of the Blackwater River drainage 
system. Water is readily accessible in the project area. Source of power will be 
diesel generator to support exploration camp. 

 
(e) the topography, elevation and vegetation; 

 
The Property is located in a low lying flat, marshy area partly covered by mature 
forests. Elevation across most of the Taxco Property ranges between 1168 and 
1194 meters above sea level (ASL); slopes are mostly gentle. Most of the area is 
covered by glacial debris intersected by small to medium size streams (Figure 2). 
The amount of rock outcrops is very limited, and in most of the area ranges 
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between 0 and 10%. The area is drained by tributaries of Blackwater River and 
Tsacha Lake.  The Property is mostly marshy and the creeks in the area are narrow 
and > 1 meter depth and mostly sheeted with ice in winters. The area is very flat 
lying with a general cover of volcanic floats and sub-crops.  There are a few 
prominent ridges of outcropping columnar basalt.  
 

(3) History - Describe: 
 

(a) the prior ownership  of the property and ownership changes and the 
type, amount, quantity and results of the exploration work undertaken 
by previous owners,  and any previous production on the property, to 
the extent known; 

 
The remainder of this section 4.3 is summarized and extracted from the technical 
report entitled “Technical Report on the Taxco Property” dated October 31, 2014 
(the “Report”), prepared by Kristian Whitehead, P.Geo.  References to the “author” 
or “Author” are references to Mr. Whitehead.  Other references are references 
contained in and more fully described in the Report.  The Report has been filed on 
SEDAR and is available on the SEDAR website at www.sedar.com.  
 
General History  
 
The Property is located in southern part of the Nechako Plateau at its boundary 
with Fraser Plateau, where earliest recorded geological exploration work was in 
1978 when several major and junior exploration companies were actively searching 
for uranium and molybdenum mineralization. At that time, the Plateau was 
considered a relatively unrewarding area to explore, characterized by few access 
roads and generally poor rock exposure with thick and extensive glacial till 
deposits and Tertiary or younger basaltic volcanic flows. Rio Tinto Canadian 
Exploration Ltd. and other operators conducted programs of prospecting and 
geochemical sampling, including lake sediment sampling that resulted in several 
copper and molybdenum discoveries. The discovery of gold at the Trout 
“Discovery” outcrop in summer 1984 followed similar discoveries at Capoose and 
Tsacha Lakes and Mt. Davidson and drew attention of explorers and prospectors.  
 
The Nechako Plateau area was subjected to a staking rush when in September of 
2009; Richfield Ventures announced a drill intersection of 207m of 1.06 g/t Au and 
5 g/t Ag. All during 2010 and into 2011, Richfield continued to announce similar 
long intersections of better than 1 g/t Au and expanded the deposit considerably, to 
approximately 4 million ounces gold.  
 
Then, in April of 2011, New Gold Inc. (NGD) announced an offer to acquire 
Richfield in a deal valued at $550 million. Since the acquisition, New Gold has 
continued exploratory drilling and has now built the resource of the now named 
Blackwater Gold Deposit to an indicated 165.2 million tonnes grading 1.01 g/t gold 
and 5.1 g/t silver and an inferred 38.8 million tonnes grading 0.94 g/t gold and 4.8 
g/t silver for a total of 6.52 million ounces of gold and 36.3 million ounces of 
silver. The Blackwater Gold Deposit is open in all directions and at depth.  
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Figure 3: Location map of sample sites from BC Geological Survey 1994 Fieldwork  
(Source: BCGS Paper 1995-1) 
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On October 17, 2011, New Gold consolidated control over a larger portion of the 
Blackwater Gold Camp by acquiring Silver Quest Resources (SQI) for $131 
million and Geo Minerals (GM) for $14.5 million.  
 
Cautionary statement: Investors are cautioned that the potential quantity indicated 
above has not been verified by the author and may not be indicative of the Property 
which is the subject of this report. It has been provided only for illustration 
purposes.  
 
Previous Work  
 
The Property and the surrounding area of the Nechako Plateau was part of a 
regional geological work carried out by British Columbia Geological Survey 
(BCGS) Branch as part of a joint Federal-Provincial Mineral Development 
Agreement to provide geoscience data and assess mineral potential in the interior 
Plateau region. The program comprised of geological mapping, till and lake 
sediment geochemical surveys, and mineral deposit studies (Figure 3) (Giles 1994, 
Daikow 1995). Rio Tinto Canadian Exploration Ltd. carried out stream and lake 
sediment sampling surveys throughout the Nechako Plateau the late 1960's, 
searching primarily for copper-molybdenum porphyry deposits. Follow-up work by 
Rio Canex and Granges Exploration Ltd. /Cominco Ltd. eventually led to the 1979 
discovery of the Capoose silver-lead-zinc deposit which is located 27 kilometres 
northwest of the Property. 
 
Work by Taxco Resources Inc. 
 
Taxco Resources Inc. acquired the Property in October 2011 and immediately 
started exploration work which included prospecting, rock and soil sampling and 
reconnaissance geological mapping.  
 
Prospecting and Sampling  
 
On November 5th, 2011 Taxco Resources Inc. commissioned a 1 day 
reconnaissance program on the newly staked area to determine the geological 
merits of the property and develop a detailed exploration work program if 
warranted. A helicopter (206 Jet Ranger) was chartered from Yellowhead 
Helicopters out of Prince George, British Columbia to carry out the reconnaissance 
work. The geological work performed by the author included rock chip sampling, 
soil and sediment sampling, and visiting approachable outcrops. A total of 12 Soil, 
silt and rock samples were collected during this work (Figures 4 and 5). Field 
description and coordinates of samples collected is provided in table 2. 
 
Table 2: Field Descriptions and Locations of Samples 
 

Sample ID  Field Sample 
No  

Easting  Northing  Elevation  Type  Description  

M480001  Soil 1  0433182  5429431  1060 m  Soil Sample  Brown silty soil 
with gravel, 
some plant roots, 
moist to wet  

M480002  Soil 2  0433182  5429431  1060 m  Soil Sample  Same as above, 
moist  

M480003  Soil 3  0433182  5429431  1060 m  Soil Sample  Same as above, 
moist to wet  

M480004  Soil 4  0433432  5428622  1151 m  Soil Sample  Brown silty soil, 
with 10 to 15% 
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Sample ID  Field Sample 
No  

Easting  Northing  Elevation  Type  Description  

gravel, moist  
M480005  Soil 5  0433432  5428622  1151 m  Soil Sample  Brown silty soil 

and gravel, 
moist  

M480006  Soil 6  0433459  5428610  1160 m  Soil Sample  Same as above  
M480007  Rock 1  0433454  5428580  1171 m  Rock Grab 

Sample  
Dark brown, 
spongy andesitic 
volcanic rock 
with voids  

M480008  Rock 2  0437581  5428572  941 m  Rock Grab 
Sample  

Same as above  

M480009  Rock 3  0437581  5428575  939 m  Rock Grab 
Sample  

Dark brown, 
andesitic 
volcanic rock, 
fine crystalline 
reddish and 
brown layering  

M480010  Rock 4  0437574  5428578  941 m  Rock Grab 
Sample  

Reddish brown 
andesitic spongy 
rock with voids  

M480012  Soil 7  0438160  5428080  845 m  Soil Sample  Dark brown silty 
soil with trace 
gravel, some 
plant roots  

M480013  Silt 1  0438190  5428116  846 m  Sediment 
Sample  

Brown silt  

 
The samples were delivered to ALS Chemex Laboratories in North Vancouver, an 
accredited laboratory in Canada, for the following assays:  
 
• Soil and Sediment Samples (M480001 – M480006, M480012, and M480013): 

ALS PKG: AU + ME-MS (Aqua Regia Digestion and Multi Elements) TL42 
(It includes PKG ME-MS 51 elements by Aqua Regia and Au).  

• Rock Samples: (M480007 - M480010): PKG: AU - ICP 21 (GOLD BY FIRE 
ASSAY FUSION) PLUS PKG: ME-MS 41(51 Elements by Aqua Regia ICP-
MS AND ICP AES).  

 
The assay results highlights are provided in Table 3.  
 
Table 3: Field reconnaissance samples assay results 

Method 
Au-
ICP21 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

Element Au Ag Co Cu Mo Mn Ni Pb Zn 
Unit ppb ppm ppm ppm ppm ppm ppm ppm ppm 
Soil and Sediment Samples  
M480001 1 0.03 19.8 14.7 1.79 741 35.8 4.8 115 
M480002 3 0.02 20.5 14.5 1.78 885 34.4 5.6 128 
M480003 2 0.01 17.7 12.7 1.16 565 20.8 4.3 92 
M480004 2 0.01 18 16.6 1.15 460 33.4 3.7 77 
M480005 2 <0.01 18.8 15.1 1.6 364 42.9 4.4 105 
M480006 2 <0.01 15.6 11.2 1.2 322 31.6 5.1 80 
M480012 1 0.02 14.3 11.2 1.16 1600 14 2.7 73 
M480013 4 0.04 11.1 17.2 2.8 1850 11.1 2 73 
M480013A* 5 0.04 10.8 15.6 2.77 1760 11.1 1.9 70 
Rock Samples  



- 18 - 
	  

 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

January 2015 
 

  

Method 
Au-
ICP21 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

ME-
MS41 

M480007 <1 0.02 32.6 32 1.05 1270 70.8 1.6 126 
M480008 4 0.02 32.1 31.8 0.91 974 76.7 1.7 123 
M480009 1 0.04 21.2 11.2 2.2 1090 3.1 2.2 112 
M480010 <1 0.03 30.9 23.2 1.11 916 27.1 1.1 100 
M480010C* 1 0.02 30.6 23.1 1.16 870 26.2 1.1 104 
Note: *Duplicate samples 
 

The results indicated anomalous values of manganese and zinc in various soil as 
well as rock samples. A follow-up soil grid sampling program was recommended 
for the Property. 
 
Figure 4: Reconnaissance samples location map – Soil and Silt 

 
 
 
 
Figure 5: Reconnaissance samples location map – Rock 



- 19 - 
	  

 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

January 2015 
 

  

 
MMI Soil Grid Sampling 2012  
 
In the fall of 2012 the author was commissioned by Taxco Resources Inc. to plan 
and conduct a Mobile Metal Ion (MMI) soil sampling exploration program for the 
Taxco Property. The program was designed to follow the prescribed phase 1 work 
recommendation contained in the NI 43-101 report filed for the property in 2011.  
 
The field component of 2012 exploration work was started on October 5th, 2012; a 
2 man team was designated to conduct an MMI soil sampling program and the 
fieldwork was completed on October 15th. The author was present and supervised 
the soil sampling program on the Property. A helicopter (206 Jet Ranger) was 
chartered from Yellowhead Helicopters out of neighboring projects in the nearby 
area to carry out the logistical support required for mobilizing and demobilizing a 2 
man camp, crew and samples. The weather conditions during the program were 
optimal to support the program with no standby time accrued throughout the 
duration of the program. A small tent camp was constructed at the edge of a marsh 
located in the center of the sample grid thus minimizing the traverse distance 
required to support sample collection.  
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 The work included a total of 421 MMI soil samples. Individual samples were 
collected along east – west lines spaced 100 meters apart with samples collected at 
100 meter spacing’s along each east-west line. The sample locations are provided 
on Figure 6 and their coordinates in Table 4. 

 
MMI Soil Sampling Results  
 
The interpretation map for gold shows presence of gold anomalies at seven 
locations out which one larger size anomaly is present at intersection of line 
380000E and 5872500 with two smaller size anomalies to the east and one to the 
north (Figure 7). Similarly, interpretation map for copper (Figure 8) shows 
presence of one larger soil anomaly located within the area of four gold anomalies. 
Analytical results presented on Table 4 also indicate presence of anomalous values 
of nickel and zinc within the same area. These incidental gold, copper, nickel and 
zinc anomalies are possible targets for a follow-up exploratory drilling. Highlights 
of assay results on Table 4 and interpretation maps for gold and copper values are 
provided on Figures 7 and 8, respectively.  

 
Table 4: MMI Soil Sample Assay Results Highlights 

 
Sample
_ID  

Northing
_NAD83  

Easting 
_NAD83  

Elevation
_m  

Depth
_cm  

Sample_ID  Au_ 
ppb  

Ag_ 
ppb  

Cu 
_ppb  

Hg 
_ppb  

Ni 
_ppb  

Pb 
_ppb  

Zn 
_ppb  

219  5873131  379863  1182  25  J928131  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  94  10  510  
218  5873131  379763  1179  25  J928132  0.05  0.5  40  0.5  134  0.5  500  
217  5873131  379663  1179  25  J928133  0.05  1  80  0.5  114  20  4020  
216  5873131  379563  1175  25  J928134  0.05  1  230  0.5  253  0.5  330  
215  5873131  379463  1176  25  J928135  0.05  0.5  260  0.5  123  0.5  610  
214  5873131  379363  1177  25  J928136  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  93  0.5  1030  
213  5873131  379263  1179  25  J928137  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  77  0.5  1080  
212  5873131  379163  1180  25  J928138  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  29  0.5  120  
211  5873131  379063  1180  25  J928139  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  34  0.5  250  
210  5873131  378963  1182  25  J928140  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  64  0.5  290  
209  5873131  378863  1181  25  J928141  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  84  0.5  460  
208  5873131  378763  1183  25  J928142  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  60  0.5  480  
207  5873131  378663  1183  25  J928143  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  47  0.5  290  
206  5873131  378563  1184  25  J928144  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  133  0.5  790  
205  5873131  378463  1183  25  J928145  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  41  0.5  140  
204  5873131  378363  1182  25  J928146  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  39  10  340  
203  5873031  378363  1182  25  J928147  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  75  0.5  690  
202  5873031  378463  1180  25  J928148  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  87  10  390  
201  5873031  378563  1179  25  J928149  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  74  0.5  570  
200  5873031  378663  1177  25  J928206  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  110  0.5  600  
199  5873031  378763  1176  25  J928207  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  38  0.5  450  
198  5873031  378863  1175  25  J928208  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  29  0.5  360  
197  5873031  378963  1182  25  J928209  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  56  0.5  930  
196  5873031  379063  1179  25  J928210  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  48  0.5  1060  
195  5873031  379163  1178  25  J928211  0.05  0.5  230  0.5  92  0.5  1100  
194  5873031  379263  1178  25  J928212  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  25  0.5  390  
193  5873031  379363  1179  25  J928213  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  48  0.5  420  
192  5873031  379463  1179  25  J928214  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  60  0.5  860  
191  5873031  379563  1178  25  J928215  0.05  0.5  280  0.5  78  0.5  330  
190  5873031  379663  1180  25  J928216  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  34  0.5  120  
189  5873031  379763  1180  25  J928217  0.05  1  70  0.5  23  0.5  440  
188  5873031  379863  1184  25  J928218  0.05  6  1160  0.5  1630  0.5  410  
187  5873031  379963  1177  25  J994201  0.2  3  1790  0.5  2010  0.5  210  
186  5873031  380063  1181  25  J994202  0.05  5  490  0.5  394  0.5  280  
185  5873031  380163  1181  25  J994203  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  33  0.5  220  
184  5873031  380263  1182  25  J994204  0.05  3  220  0.5  552  0.5  180  
183  5873031  380363  1183  25  J994205  0.05  9  4170  0.5  976  0.5  260  
182  5873031  380463  1184  25  J994206  0.05  0.5  40  0.5  49  0.5  190  
181  5873031  380563  1184  25  J994207  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  71  20  550  
180  5873031  380663  1187  25  J994208  0.05  0.5  180  0.5  122  0.5  440  
179  5873031  380763  1190  25  J994209  0.05  0.5  320  0.5  565  0.5  840  
178  5873031  380863  1192  25  J994210  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  78  0.5  240  
177  5873031  380963  1196  25  J994211  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  70  0.5  220  
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Sample
_ID  

Northing
_NAD83  

Easting 
_NAD83  

Elevation
_m  

Depth
_cm  

Sample_ID  Au_ 
ppb  

Ag_ 
ppb  

Cu 
_ppb  

Hg 
_ppb  

Ni 
_ppb  

Pb 
_ppb  

Zn 
_ppb  

176  5873031  381063  1200  25  J994212  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  43  20  140  
175  5873031  381163  1198  25  J994213  0.05  0.5  40  0.5  69  10  290  
232  5873131  381163  1193  25  J994214  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  103  0.5  250  
231  5873131  381063  1194  25  J994215  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  116  30  1180  
230  5873131  380963  1193  25  J994216  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  44  0.5  240  
229  5873131  380863  1192  25  J994217  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  150  0.5  450  
228  5873131  380763  1189  25  J994218  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  131  0.5  3010  
227  5873131  380663  1189  25  J994219  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  73  0.5  160  
226  5873131  380563  1187  25  J994220  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  59  0.5  150  
225  5873131  380463  1183  25  J994221  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  38  0.5  190  
224  5873131  380363  1184  25  J994222  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  45  0.5  400  
223  5873131  380263  1184  25  J994223  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  45  0.5  150  
222  5873131  380163  1183  25  J994224  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  27  0.5  190  
221  5873131  380063  1182  25  J994225  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  123  20  3250  
220  5873112  379986  1179  100  J994226  0.05  0.5  430  0.5  186  0.5  30  
246  5873231  379863  1175  80  J994227  0.05  2  130  0.5  331  0.5  670  
245  5873231  379963  1178  20  J994228  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  70  10  220  
244  5873231  380063  1178  20  J994229  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  92  30  1020  
243  5873231  380163  1181  15  J994230  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  36  0.5  180  
242  5873231  380263  1181  20  J994231  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  77  10  360  
241  5873231  380363  1185  15  J994232  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  58  0.5  140  
240  5873231  380463  1184  18  J994233  0.05  0.5  40  0.5  84  0.5  320  
239  5873231  380563  1184  20  J994234  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  58  10  540  
238  5873231  380663  1191  20  J994235  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  105  10  590  
237  5873231  380763  1192  15  J994236  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  82  0.5  170  
236  5873231  380863  1189  22.5  J994237  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  303  20  840  
235  5873231  380963  1189  20  J994238  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  24  0.5  90  
234  5873231  381063  1188  15  J994239  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  28  0.5  140  
233  5873231  381163  1180  20  J994240  0.05  0.5  320  0.5  95  0.5  90  
290  5873331  381163  1179  20  J994241  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  33  0.5  780  
289  5873331  381063  1175  20  J994242  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  136  0.5  350  
288  5873331  380963  1182  20  J994243  0.05  0.5  300  0.5  102  0.5  150  
287  5873331  380863  1179  30  J994244  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  203  0.5  2560  
286  5873331  380763  1178  25  J994245  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  87  10  2500  
285  5873331  380663  1175  20  J994246  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  271  0.5  1730  
284  5873331  380563  1174  20  J994247  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  70  30  2250  
283  5873331  380463  1166  20  J994248  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  52  0.5  320  
282  5873331  380363  1169  25  J994249  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  74  0.5  360  
281  5873331  380263  1168  25  P554601  0.05  1  90  0.5  68  0.5  540  
280  5873331  380163  1167  20  P554602  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  56  0.5  400  
279  5873331  380063  1167  25  P554603  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  41  0.5  310  
278  5873331  379963  1168  20  P554604  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  75  0.5  590  
277  5873331  379863  1169  20  P554605  0.05  0.5  40  0.5  209  0.5  630  
304  5873431  379863  1166  25  P554606  0.05  1  80  0.5  80  0.5  1530  
303  5873431  379963  1169  20  P554607  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  60  0.5  500  
302  5873431  380063  1170  25  P554608  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  57  0.5  240  
301  5873431  380163  1171  20  P554609  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  44  0.5  200  
300  5873431  380263  1173  25  P554610  0.05  1  170  0.5  112  10  620  
299  5873431  380363  1176  35  P554611  0.05  0.5  160  0.5  62  0.5  200  
298  5873431  380463  1166  25  P554612  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  28  0.5  140  
297  5873431  380563  1177  20  P554613  0.05  0.5  180  0.5  40  0.5  250  
296  5873431  380663  1178  20  P554614  0.05  0.5  160  0.5  72  0.5  1310  
295  5873431  380763  1177  25  P554615  0.05  2  230  0.5  57  0.5  320  
294  5873431  380863  1177  30  P554616  0.05  0.5  310  0.5  118  0.5  80  
293  5873431  380963  1177  30  P554617  0.05  0.5  290  0.5  310  0.5  180  
292  5873431  381063  1178  20  P554618  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  57  0.5  680  
291  5873431  381163  1178  25  P554619  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  48  10  140  
348  5873531  381163  1174  20  P554620  0.05  0.5  230  0.5  240  0.5  190  
347  5873531  381063  1174  20  P554621  0.05  0.5  670  0.5  441  0.5  1430  
346  5873531  380963  1178  35  P554622  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  72  0.5  1700  
345  5873531  380863  1177  50  P554623  0.2  6  790  0.5  727  0.5  190  
344  5873531  380763  1175  20  P554624  0.05  0.5  410  0.5  103  0.5  740  
343  5873531  380663  1176  25  P554625  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  66  10  410  
342  5873531  380563  1177  20  P554626  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  46  0.5  220  
341  5873531  380463  1176  20  P554627  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  69  0.5  410  
340  5873531  380363  1173  25  P554628  0.05  0.5  160  0.5  67  0.5  490  
339  5873531  380263  1170  25  P554629  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  76  0.5  460  
338  5873531  380163  1168  30  P554630  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  64  0.5  450  
337  5873531  380063  1169  20  P554631  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  62  0.5  230  
336  5873531  379963  1167  20  P554632  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  53  0.5  220  
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Pb 
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335  5873531  379863  1165  25  P554633  0.05  0.5  160  0.5  86  0.5  530  
362  5873631  379863  1167  25  P554634  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  129  0.5  400  
361  5873631  379963  1167  20  P554635  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  134  0.5  670  
360  5873631  380063  1168  20  P554636  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  61  0.5  440  
359  5873631  380163  1169  20  P554637  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  88  0.5  540  
358  5873631  380263  1172  20  P554638  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  78  0.5  380  
357  5873631  380363  1176  20  P554639  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  82  0.5  560  
356  5873631  380463  1177  20  P554640  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  73  0.5  270  
355  5873631  380563  1179  25  P554641  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  64  0.5  200  
354  5873631  380663  1179  20  P554642  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  76  0.5  370  
353  5873631  380763  1175  15  P554643  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  95  10  400  
352  5873631  380863  1175  15  P554644  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  135  0.5  770  
351  5873631  380963  1176  20  P554645  0.1  2  580  0.5  349  0.5  120  
350  5873631  381063  1177  35  P554646  0.05  6  1840  0.5  1370  0.5  70  
349  5873631  381163  1175  120  P554647  0.05  10  4010  0.5  1410  0.5  610  
406  5873731  381163  1177  120  P554648  0.2  6  1130  0.5  617  0.5  430  
405  5873731  381063  1179  25  P554649  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  41  10  120  
404  5873731  380963  1180  25  P554650  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  56  0.5  290  
403  5873731  380863  1183  25  P554651  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  73  0.5  230  
402  5873731  380763  1184  25  P554652  0.05  0.5  320  0.5  40  10  140  
401  5873731  380663  1183  20  P554653  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  56  0.5  450  
400  5873731  380563  1183  20  P554654  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  45  0.5  300  
399  5873731  380463  1185  20  P554655  0.05  0.5  160  0.5  88  0.5  210  
398  5873731  380363  1183  15  P554656  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  131  10  500  
397  5873731  380263  1183  20  P554657  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  132  0.5  720  
396  5873731  380163  1179  25  P554658  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  76  0.5  710  
395  5873731  380063  1176  25  P554659  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  104  20  680  
394  5873731  379963  1176  25  P554660  0.05  0.5  190  0.5  136  0.5  770  
393  5873731  379863  1173  20  P554661  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  38  0.5  190  
363  5873631  379763  1173  20  P554662  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  67  20  730  
364  5873631  379663  1172  20  P554663  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  135  0.5  1330  
365  5873631  379563  1172  25  P554664  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  29  0.5  210  
366  5873631  379463  1171  25  P554665  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  54  10  800  
367  5873631  379363  1171  25  P554666  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  54  0.5  820  
368  5873631  379263  1173  25  P554667  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  104  10  180  
369  5873631  379163  1171  25  P554668  0.05  0.5  190  0.5  29  10  200  
370  5873631  379063  1171  25  P554669  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  35  10  250  
371  5873631  378963  1175  25  P554670  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  60  0.5  340  
372  5873631  378863  1173  25  P554671  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  50  0.5  520  
373  5873631  378763  1173  20  P554672  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  45  0.5  570  
374  5873631  378663  1170  25  P554673  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  46  40  800  
375  5873631  378563  1169  20  P554674  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  95  30  2820  
376  5873631  378463  1166  25  P554675  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  65  0.5  1080  
377  5873631  378363  1164  25  P554676  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  79  0.5  620  
378  5873731  378363  1159  25  P554677  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  29  10  250  
379  5873731  378463  1162  25  P554678  0.05  0.5  170  0.5  43  10  260  
380  5873731  378563  1164  25  P554679  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  73  20  320  
381  5873731  378663  1168  25  P554680  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  30  10  110  
382  5873731  378763  1170  25  P554681  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  71  40  1400  
383  5873731  378863  1170  25  P554682  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  35  20  170  
384  5873731  378963  1170  25  P554683  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  42  10  210  
385  5873731  379063  1170  25  P554684  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  55  20  1090  
386  5873731  379163  1169  20  P554685  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  37  10  410  
387  5873731  379263  1170  25  P554686  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  53  0.5  240  
388  5873731  379363  1170  25  P554687  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  47  0.5  260  
389  5873731  379463  1173  25  P554688  0.05  0.5  40  0.5  72  20  480  
390  5873731  379563  1172  25  P554689  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  52  0.5  410  
391  5873731  379663  1174  25  P554690  0.05  1  130  0.5  78  10  1090  
392  5873731  379763  1174  25  P554691  0.05  1  100  0.5  64  0.5  250  
334  5873531  379763  1165  25  P554692  0.05  0.5  200  0.5  28  0.5  140  
333  5873531  379663  1166  25  P554693  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  41  0.5  130  
332  5873531  379563  1165  20  P554694  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  34  0.5  230  
331  5873531  379463  1164  20  P554695  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  67  0.5  1020  
330  5873531  379363  1166  25  P554696  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  44  0.5  200  
329  5873531  379263  1169  20  P554697  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  45  0.5  440  
328  5873531  379163  1171  25  P554698  0.05  0.5  40  0.5  62  10  840  
327  5873531  379063  1172  25  P554699  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  53  0.5  280  
326  5873531  378963  1176  25  P554700  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  50  0.5  370  
325  5873531  378863  1174  20  P554701  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  66  30  1530  
324  5873531  378763  1174  25  P554702  0.05  0.5  70  1  51  10  370  
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323  5873531  378663  1177  25  P554703  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  39  0.5  190  
322  5873531  378563  1175  25  P554704  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  103  0.5  520  
321  5873531  378463  1174  25  P554705  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  37  0.5  570  
320  5873531  378363  1172  25  P554706  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  47  10  240  
319  5873431  378363  1176  25  P554707  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  92  30  2680  
318  5873431  378463  1175  25  P554708  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  64  20  490  
317  5873431  378563  1176  25  P554709  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  39  10  340  
316  5873431  378663  1173  25  P554710  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  51  10  340  
315  5873431  378763  1172  25  P554711  0.05  2  110  0.5  32  0.5  1650  
314  5873431  378863  1171  15  P554712  0.05  3  120  0.5  20  20  510  
313  5873431  378963  1171  20  P554713  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  108  30  1420  
312  5873431  379063  1170  20  P554714  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  84  10  1760  
311  5873431  379163  1168  20  P554715  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  70  0.5  450  
310  5873431  379263  1168  20  P554716  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  71  0.5  370  
309  5873431  379363  1172  20  P554717  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  38  0.5  200  
308  5873431  379463  1177  15  P554718  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  28  0.5  130  
307  5873431  379563  1173  20  P554719  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  27  0.5  290  
306  5873431  379663  1173  20  P554720  0.05  0.5  180  0.5  90  0.5  270  
305  5873431  379763  1172  20  P554721  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  119  10  1620  
160  5872931  379763  1177  20  P554722  0.05  0.5  280  0.5  174  0.5  730  
161  5872931  379863  1179  35  P554723  0.05  4  670  0.5  1450  0.5  560  
162  5872931  379963  1178  20  P554724  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  118  10  1110  
163  5872931  380063  1176  35  P554725  0.05  3  650  0.5  537  0.5  460  
164  5872931  380163  1180  45  P554726  0.05  0.5  2170  0.5  650  0.5  30  
165  5872931  380263  1182  25  P554727  0.05  0.5  190  0.5  179  0.5  1790  
167  5872931  380463  1183  50  P554729  0.05  0.5  450  0.5  192  0.5  60  
168  5872931  380563  1186  20  P554730  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  76  10  230  
169  5872931  380663  1186  20  P554731  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  58  0.5  280  
170  5872931  380763  1187  22.5  P554732  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  121  0.5  660  
171  5872931  380863  1192  30  P554733  0.05  0.5  240  0.5  72  0.5  500  
172  5872931  380963  1197  25  P554734  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  100  0.5  1090  
173  5872931  381063  1195  25  P554735  0.05  0.5  160  0.5  55  0.5  180  
174  5872931  381163  1194  25  P554736  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  138  0.5  280  
117  5872831  381163  1194  25  P554737  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  121  0.5  150  
118  5872831  381063  1194  25  P554738  0.05  0.5  260  0.5  291  0.5  900  
119  5872831  380963  1193  25  P554739  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  127  0.5  860  
120  5872831  380863  1187  25  P554740  0.05  0.5  190  0.5  40  0.5  260  
121  5872831  380763  1190  25  P554741  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  122  0.5  1410  
122  5872831  380663  1190  25  P554742  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  93  0.5  680  
123  5872831  380563  1187  25  P554743  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  36  0.5  170  
124  5872831  380463  1186  25  P554744  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  99  20  1070  
125  5872831  380363  1186  25  P554745  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  114  0.5  1010  
126  5872831  380263  1185  40  P554746  0.05  3  690  0.5  374  0.5  170  
128  5872831  380063  1183  20  P554748  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  66  0.5  280  
129  5872831  379963  1181  25  P554749  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  70  10  680  
130  5872831  379863  1183  25  P554750  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  60  20  570  
131  5872831  379763  1180  25  P554751  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  48  0.5  250  
159  5872931  379663  1179  25  P554752  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  142  0.5  310  
158  5872931  379563  1179  25  P554753  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  84  0.5  320  
157  5872931  379463  1178  25  P554754  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  67  10  220  
156  5872931  379363  1175  25  P554755  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  50  0.5  640  
155  5872931  379263  1175  25  P554756  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  54  0.5  440  
154  5872931  379163  1175  25  P554757  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  41  0.5  240  
153  5872931  379063  1175  25  P554758  0.05  0.5  180  0.5  29  0.5  180  
152  5872931  378963  1172  25  P554759  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  33  0.5  270  
151  5872931  378863  1175  25  P554760  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  96  0.5  1460  
150  5872931  378763  1177  25  P554761  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  55  0.5  380  
149  5872931  378663  1175  25  P554762  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  46  0.5  280  
148  5872931  378563  1176  25  P554763  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  41  0.5  360  
147  5872931  378463  1176  25  P554764  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  33  0.5  240  
146  5872931  378363  1176  25  P554765  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  28  0.5  130  
145  5872831  378363  1177  25  P554766  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  48  0.5  380  
144  5872831  378463  1178  25  P554767  0.05  0.5  270  0.5  42  0.5  290  
143  5872831  378563  1182  25  P554768  0.05  0.5  30  0.5  34  0.5  380  
142  5872831  378663  1181  25  P554769  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  36  0.5  210  
141  5872831  378763  1185  25  P554770  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  54  0.5  850  
140  5872831  378863  1187  25  P554771  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  38  20  250  
139  5872831  378963  1191  25  P554772  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  35  0.5  260  
138  5872831  379063  1191  25  P554773  0.05  1  130  0.5  83  0.5  690  
137  5872831  379163  1190  25  P554774  0.05  0.5  180  0.5  28  0.5  210  
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136  5872831  379263  1188  25  P554775  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  78  0.5  630  
135  5872831  379363  1186  25  P554776  0.05  0.5  40  0.5  115  20  510  
134  5872831  379463  1184  20  P554777  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  33  0.5  330  
133  5872831  379563  1184  25  P554778  0.05  0.5  180  0.5  139  0.5  270  
132  5872831  379663  1184  25  P554779  0.05  0.5  250  0.5  122  0.5  1430  
276  5873331  379763  1174  20  P554780  0.05  2  70  0.5  206  0.5  3010  
275  5873331  379663  1172  25  P554781  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  38  20  120  
274  5873331  379563  1171  25  P554782  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  60  10  440  
273  5873331  379463  1170  25  P554783  0.1  0.5  130  0.5  57  0.5  300  
272  5873331  379363  1168  25  P554784  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  51  0.5  140  
271  5873331  379263  1168  25  P554785  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  47  0.5  630  
270  5873331  379163  1166  25  P554786  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  54  10  530  
269  5873331  379063  1168  25  P554787  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  98  0.5  290  
268  5873331  378963  1169  25  P554788  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  31  0.5  230  
267  5873331  378863  1173  25  P554789  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  35  30  440  
266  5873331  378763  1175  25  P554790  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  20  10  120  
265  5873331  378663  1177  25  P554791  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  62  0.5  520  
264  5873331  378563  1177  25  P554792  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  55  10  360  
263  5873331  378463  1177  25  P554793  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  57  0.5  310  
262  5873331  378363  1179  25  P554794  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  54  0.5  330  
261  5873231  378363  1178  25  P554795  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  81  0.5  570  
260  5873231  378463  1175  25  P554796  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  55  30  540  
259  5873231  378563  1178  25  P554797  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  52  0.5  850  
258  5873231  378663  1174  25  P554798  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  36  0.5  300  
257  5873231  378763  1176  25  P554799  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  37  10  1280  
256  5873231  378863  1172  25  P554800  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  46  40  1340  
255  5873231  378963  1166  25  P554801  0.05  0.5  190  0.5  39  10  330  
254  5873231  379063  1166  25  P554802  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  63  10  260  
253  5873231  379163  1166  25  P554803  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  46  0.5  460  
252  5873231  379263  1167  25  P554804  0.05  0.5  40  0.5  36  0.5  160  
251  5873231  379363  1167  25  P554805  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  39  0.5  280  
250  5873231  379463  1163  25  P554806  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  69  10  960  
249  5873231  379563  1175  30  P554807  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  41  0.5  200  
248  5873231  379663  1176  25  P554808  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  40  0.5  200  
247  5873231  379763  1175  25  P554809  0.05  2  90  0.5  38  0.5  430  
72  5872631  379863  1181  25  P554810  0.05  0.5  260  0.5  45  0.5  300  
68  5872631  380263  1184  70  P554814  0.05  1  3430  0.5  881  0.5  240  
67  5872631  380363  1185  35  P554815  0.1  3  1110  0.5  1620  0.5  120  
66  5872631  380463  1185  35  P554816  0.05  0.5  2500  0.5  1350  0.5  70  
64  5872631  380663  1185  25  P554818  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  71  0.5  580  
63  5872631  380763  1189  25  P554819  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  141  0.5  1320  
62  5872631  380863  1190  25  P554820  0.05  0.5  230  0.5  143  0.5  120  
61  5872631  380963  1193  25  P554821  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  171  0.5  560  
60  5872631  381063  1196  20  P554822  0.05  0.5  220  0.5  149  0.5  130  
59  5872631  381163  1200  25  P554823  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  34  0.5  340  
116  5872731  381163  1201  25  P554824  0.05  0.5  170  0.5  45  0.5  190  
115  5872731  381063  1196  25  P554825  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  83  10  320  
114  5872731  380963  1194  25  P554826  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  103  0.5  770  
113  5872731  380863  1194  25  P554827  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  227  0.5  1940  
112  5872731  380763  1194  25  P554828  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  44  0.5  340  
111  5872731  380663  1189  25  P554829  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  51  0.5  270  
110  5872731  380563  1188  25  P554830  0.05  0.5  540  0.5  519  0.5  90  
109  5872731  380463  1186  25  P554831  0.05  2  1070  0.5  533  0.5  680  
108  5872731  380363  1185  25  P554832  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  507  0.5  400  
107  5872731  380263  1186  0  P554833  0.05  6  1620  0.5  1630  0.5  140  
104  5872731  379963  1183  50  P554836  0.05  9  1550  0.5  1060  0.5  210  
103  5872731  379863  1182  25  P554837  0.05  0.5  180  0.5  97  0.5  400  
102  5872731  379763  1182  25  P554838  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  55  0.5  170  
101  5872731  379663  1181  25  P554839  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  105  0.5  520  
100  5872731  379563  1181  25  P554840  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  108  0.5  540  
99  5872731  379463  1178  25  P554841  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  72  0.5  400  
98  5872731  379363  1180  25  P554842  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  44  0.5  370  
97  5872731  379263  1177  25  P554843  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  68  20  560  
96  5872731  379163  1178  25  P554844  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  76  0.5  410  
95  5872731  379063  1178  25  P554845  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  96  0.5  1230  
94  5872731  378963  1181  25  P554846  0.05  0.5  170  0.5  62  0.5  700  
93  5872731  378863  1181  25  P554847  0.05  0.5  40  0.5  70  20  770  
92  5872731  378763  1180  25  P554848  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  47  0.5  390  
91  5872731  378663  1181  25  P554849  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  43  0.5  600  
90  5872731  378563  1181  25  P554850  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  79  0.5  370  
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89  5872731  378463  1182  25  P554851  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  32  0.5  90  
88  5872731  378363  1180  25  P554852  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  46  0.5  190  
87  5872631  378363  1185  25  P554853  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  50  0.5  290  
86  5872631  378463  1186  25  P554854  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  60  0.5  610  
85  5872631  378563  1188  25  P554855  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  42  0.5  330  
84  5872631  378663  1197  25  P554856  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  39  0.5  240  
83  5872631  378763  1201  25  P554857  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  46  0.5  420  
82  5872631  378863  1200  25  P554858  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  53  10  270  
81  5872631  378963  1201  25  P554859  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  65  0.5  1170  
80  5872631  379063  1197  25  P554860  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  42  20  460  
79  5872631  379163  1193  25  P554861  0.05  0.5  190  0.5  35  10  260  
78  5872631  379263  1190  25  P554862  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  188  0.5  360  
77  5872631  379363  1187  25  P554863  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  44  10  320  
76  5872631  379463  1190  25  P554864  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  98  20  1020  
75  5872631  379563  1187  25  P554865  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  71  0.5  500  
74  5872631  379663  1188  25  P554866  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  74  10  490  
73  5872631  379763  1185  25  P554867  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  80  0.5  830  
14  5872431  379863  1181  25  P554868  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  27  0.5  190  
13  5872431  379963  1181  50  P554869  0.2  2  750  0.5  743  0.5  240  
12  5872431  380063  1182  40  P554870  0.1  5  1350  0.5  715  0.5  80  
11  5872441  380201  1180  25  P554871  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  137  10  2970  
10  5872431  380263  1185  25  P554872  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  70  40  2200  
9  5872431  380363  1179  75  P554873  0.05  3  2760  0.5  387  0.5  40  
8  5872431  380463  1179  25  P554874  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  79  10  340  
7  5872431  380563  1179  20  P554875  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  173  0.5  1400  
6  5872431  380663  1178  22.5  P554876  0.2  0.5  140  0.5  138  0.5  220  
5  5872431  380763  1183  20  P554877  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  455  0.5  430  
4  5872431  380863  1189  25  P554878  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  246  0.5  1000  
3  5872431  380963  1193  25  P554879  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  156  0.5  640  
2  5872431  381063  1197  25  P554880  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  114  0.5  1070  
1  5872431  381163  1201  25  P554881  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  97  10  450  
58  5872531  381163  1198  25  P554882  0.05  0.5  160  0.5  70  0.5  430  
57  5872531  381063  1197  25  P554883  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  168  30  6910  
56  5872531  380963  1195  25  P554884  0.05  0.5  170  0.5  161  0.5  260  
55  5872531  380863  1193  25  P554885  0.05  0.5  310  0.5  205  0.5  350  
54  5872531  380763  1191  25  P554886  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  330  0.5  470  
53  5872531  380663  1190  25  P554887  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  75  0.5  230  
52  5872531  380563  1189  25  P554888  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  53  0.5  360  
51  5872531  380463  1187  25  P554889  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  151  20  1120  
50  5872531  380363  1186  50  P554890  0.05  3  640  0.5  912  0.5  440  
49  5872531  380263  1185  35  P554891  0.05  1  1940  0.5  740  0.5  80  
47  5872531  380063  1185  60  P554893  0.2  0.5  3280  0.5  837  0.5  220  
46  5872531  379963  1184  35  P554894  0.05  0.5  360  0.5  234  0.5  1440  
45  5872531  379863  1184  25  P554895  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  49  0.5  500  
15  5872431  379763  1207  25  P554896  0.05  0.5  180  0.5  115  0.5  1250  
44  5872531  379763  1184  40  P554897  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  35  0.5  230  
16  5872431  379663  1201  25  P554898  0.05  0.5  200  0.5  63  0.5  500  
17  5872431  379563  1198  25  P554899  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  95  10  740  
18  5872431  379463  1197  25  P554900  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  159  0.5  3210  
19  5872431  379363  1195  25  P554901  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  81  0.5  950  
20  5872431  379263  1195  25  P554902  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  50  10  500  
21  5872431  379163  1196  25  P554903  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  63  20  590  
22  5872431  379063  1195  25  P554904  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  40  0.5  300  
23  5872431  378963  1194  25  P554905  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  82  10  870  
24  5872431  378863  1193  25  P554906  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  73  10  770  
25  5872431  378763  1191  25  P554907  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  53  0.5  440  
26  5872431  378663  1192  25  P554908  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  121  0.5  920  
27  5872431  378563  1197  25  P554909  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  38  0.5  380  
28  5872431  378463  1196  25  P554910  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  37  0.5  300  
29  5872431  378363  1197  25  P554911  0.05  0.5  280  0.5  87  0.5  590  
30  5872531  378363  1193  25  P554912  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  47  0.5  400  
31  5872531  378463  1193  25  P554913  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  57  0.5  370  
32  5872531  378563  1194  25  P554914  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  56  0.5  340  
33  5872531  378663  1194  25  P554915  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  33  0.5  250  
34  5872531  378763  1199  25  P554916  0.1  0.5  90  0.5  53  0.5  390  
35  5872531  378863  1194  25  P554917  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  74  0.5  820  
36  5872531  378963  1193  25  P554918  0.05  0.5  150  0.5  46  20  400  
37  5872531  379063  1191  25  P554919  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  31  20  190  
38  5872531  379163  1191  25  P554920  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  35  20  370  
39  5872531  379263  1191  25  P554921  0.05  0.5  370  0.5  30  10  170  
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40  5872531  379363  1191  25  P554922  0.05  2  80  0.5  51  0.5  470  
41  5872531  379463  1190  25  P554923  0.05  0.5  80  0.5  28  0.5  220  
42  5872531  379563  1190  25  P554924  0.05  0.5  170  0.5  95  0.5  2420  
43  5872531  379663  1194  25  P554925  0.05  2  570  0.5  212  0.5  670  
407  5872331  381163  1209  25  P554926  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  130  20  730  
408  5872331  381063  1208  25  P554927  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  148  0.5  1820  
409  5872331  380963  1205  25  P554928  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  103  10  420  
410  5872331  380863  1200  25  P554929  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  337  30  2560  
411  5872331  380763  1196  25  P554930  0.05  0.5  160  0.5  307  0.5  1160  
412  5872331  380663  1190  25  P554931  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  356  0.5  390  
413  5872331  380563  1187  25  P554932  0.05  0.5  90  0.5  386  0.5  3060  
414  5872331  380463  1187  25  P554933  0.05  0.5  170  0.5  166  0.5  870  
419  5872331  379963  1186  25  P554938  0.05  0.5  160  0.5  224  0.5  330  
420  5872331  379863  1183  25  P554939  0.05  6  290  0.5  489  0.5  4690  
421  5872331  379763  1183  25  P554940  0.05  0.5  70  0.5  59  0.5  370  
422  5872331  379663  1183  25  P554941  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  61  0.5  320  
423  5872331  379563  1183  25  P554942  0.05  0.5  110  0.5  42  0.5  330  
424  5872331  379463  1183  25  P554943  0.05  0.5  140  0.5  48  0.5  310  
425  5872331  379363  1181  25  P554944  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  87  0.5  380  
426  5872331  379263  1182  25  P554945  0.05  0.5  120  0.5  51  0.5  390  
427  5872331  379163  1182  25  P554946  0.05  0.5  200  0.5  174  0.5  470  
428  5872331  379063  1182  25  P554947  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  98  10  1090  
429  5872331  378963  1178  25  P554948  0.05  0.5  100  0.5  31  0.5  310  
430  5872331  378863  1178  25  P554949  0.05  0.5  130  0.5  102  0.5  330  
431  5872331  378763  1174  25  P554950  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  41  10  250  
432  5872331  378663  1170  25  P554951  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  103  10  970  
433  5872331  378563  1171  25  P554952  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  35  0.5  270  
434  5872331  378463  1171  25  P554953  0.05  0.5  50  0.5  60  20  740  
435  5872331  378363  1174  25  P554954  0.05  0.5  60  0.5  75  0.5  550  

 
Figure 6: Plan view Map of MMI Soil Sample Locations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 7: 
Plan view Contoured Au (ppb) MMI Soil Sample Locations 
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Figure 8: Plan view Contoured Cu (ppb) MMI Soil Sample Locations 
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(b) if a property was acquired within the three most recently completed 
financial years of the Issuer or during its current financial year from, 
or is intended to be acquired by the Issuer from, an insider or 
promoter of the Issuer or an associate or affiliate of an insider or 
promoter, the name and address of the vendor, the relationship of 
the vendor to the Issuer, and the consideration paid or intended to be 
paid to the vendor; and 
 
N/A.   

 
(c) to the extent known, the name of every person or company that has 

received or is expected to receive a greater than five per cent interest 
in the consideration received or to be received by the vendor referred 
to in subparagraph (b). 
 
N/A. 	  

 
(4) Geological Setting — The regional, local and property geology. 

Regional Geology 
 

The geological mapping carried out by Diakow et.al, in 1995 and compiled in 1997 
describes the geological setting of Tsacha Lake area as follows:  
 
The oldest stratified rocks on the Property and the surrounding area of the Nechako 
Plateau are of Lower to Middle Jurassic age. They consist of the Nechako Range 
assemblage, quartz-bearing crystal tuff, sandstone and siltstone; the Fawnie Range 
subaerial rhyolitic volcanic sequence; and the Kuyakuz Mountain assemblage, which 
consists of rhyolitic tuffs and volcaniclastic sediments. Overlying Middle Jurassic rocks 
comprise the Naglico Formation, which consists mainly of andesitic and basaltic flows 
with pyroxene phenocrysts, feldspathic sandstone and siltstone, and subordinate, 
andesitic tuff and dacite porphyry flows. Unconformably overlying Lower Cretaceous 
conglomerate with chert clasts has interlayers of sandstone and siltstone. Eocene Ootsa 
Lake Group strata include rhyolite flows, andesite flows, rhyolite ash-flow tuff, and 
andesitic volcaniclastic rocks. Overlying Miocene and Pliocene Chilcotin Group olivine 
basalt flows have prominent columnar joints.  
 
Intrusive rocks are Middle Jurassic to Eocene and younger. The oldest comprise coarse 
gabbro, augite porphyry and diorite plutons. Late Jurassic to Early Cretaceous rocks are 
of the Capoose batholith, composed mainly of quartz monzonite. Late Cretaceous 
porphyritic diorite has pyroxene phenocrysts. Eocene plutons are of granite composition. 
Eocene and possibly younger dikes and sills are rhyolite porphyry, felsite, and biotite-
feldspar porphyry.  
 
Strata are offset along northeast and north to northwest-trending faults. One northerly 
trending fault is interpreted to be contractional in nature.  
  
The oldest surficial sediments are of Late Pleistocene age. They consist of resedimented 
glacial debris, morainal diamicton, mainly basal tills, glaciofluvial pebble to boulder 
gravel and sand, and glacio-lacustrine sand, silt and clay. Holocene sediments comprise 
organic deposits, colluvium, and fluvial sand, pebble gravel and silt. 
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Figure 9: Regional Geology Map 
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Property and Local Geology  
 
Most of the Property area is covered by quaternary glacial overburden, colluvial and 
fluvial material brought by Blackwater River drainage system. There are a few outcrops / 
subcrops of andesitic to basaltic volcanic rocks within the Property and adjoining areas to 
the north.  
 
Subsurface lithologies as compiled by New Gold Inc. on its Blackwater Gold project 
located approximately 25 kilometres to the north of the Taxco Property are presented in 
the following Table.  
 
Table 5: Stratigraphic section compiled from drill holes  
(Source: New Gold Inc., NI 43101 Report, Blackwater Gold Project, June 2011)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Petrographic studies carried out on drill core samples from Blackwater Gold project 
indicate that volcanic rocks can be divided into the following different suites:  

 
1. The first suite of rocks belongs to volcaniclastic lithologies, generally poorly 

sorted, polymict lithic fragments with a grain-size ranging from mudstone to 
breccia. 

2. The second group of rocks show intense alteration and are possibly altered 
equivalent of the volcaniclastic rocks of the first suite.  

3. The third group of rocks show flow microstructures and a possibly rhyo-dacitic 
composition.  

4. The fourth group are porphyritic andesites with differing alteration products 
(Simpson G., 2011). 

 
The geological mapping of 1995 by Daikow et.al, identified a major change in 
depositional environment lithology in area around Tsacha Lake (located 5 kilometres to 
the north of the Property) indicated by coeval intermixed felsic volcanics and marine 
sediments as opposed to the subaerial felsic volcanic rocks in the west. The marine 
sediments are further divided into: a) a near-shore, sandy facies, which is traceable along 
part of the western flank of the Nechako Range, and b) a more distal mudstone facies to 
the east and northeast. Both facies exhibit felsic tuff interbeds and abundant lithic 
fragments thought to be driven from a nearby volcanic source. The youngest volcanic 
rocks represented by olivine basaltic flows of Chilcotin Group are most widespread in the 
southern part of the Tsacha Lake area where they underlie a relatively flat plain with 
pronounced escarpments at the erosional edge. 
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Figure 10: Property Geology 
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(5) Exploration Information — The nature and extent of all exploration work 
conducted by, or on behalf of, the Issuer on the property, including: 

 
(a) the results of all surveys and investigations and the procedures and 

parameters relating to surveys and investigations; 
 

(b) an interpretation of the exploration information; 
 

(c) whether the surveys and investigations have been carried out by the 
Issuer or a contractor and if by a contractor, identifying the 
contractor; and 

 
(d) a discussion of the reliability or uncertainty of the data obtained in the 

program. 
	  
Toro Resources Corp. has not carried out exploration on the Property.  The historical 
exploration work by Taxco Resources Inc. and other operators is discussed in section 4.3 
above.  
 

(6) Mineralization — The mineralization encountered on the property, the 
surrounding rock types and relevant geological controls, detailing length, 
width, depth and continuity together with a description of the type, 
character and distribution of the mineralization. 
	  
There is no known mineralization occurrence reported for the Property. The author was 
not able to see any visible mineralization during his Property visits on November 05, 
2011 and October 5-15, 2012. 
 
Deposit Types 
 
The Nechako Plateau is underlain by rocks that have potential for porphyry copper, 
molybdenum or copper-molybdenum deposits, and epithermal precious metal and 
structurally hosted, porphyry-related precious and base metal-bearing occurrences. There 
is also potential for skarn mineralization and stratabound base with or without precious 
metal mineralization. Poor exposure has hampered exploration but known mineral 
occurrences are encouraging (Diakow 1995).  
 
Blackwater deposit of New Gold Inc., located approximately 25 km to the north of the 
Property has the characteristics of, and is considered to be, a low sulphidation epithermal 
gold-silver deposit. Mineralization occurs in stratigraphically chaotic volcanic rocks of 
Late Cretaceous age emplaced through and on Hazelton Group strata. The rocks are 
extensively hydrofractured and silicified and shot through with fine grained pyrite and 
other sulphide minerals. Gold is mainly associated with the sulphide minerals as gold 
grains between 5 and 50 microns across (Simpson G., 2011). 
 
Deposit Models  
 
The following deposit models are considered applicable to the Taxco Property:  
 

1. Porphyry Cu (Mo-Au) Model  
2. Gold Copper Vein Model  
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3. Gold Bearing Skarns  
 
Porphyry Cu (Mo-Au) Model  
 
Porphyry Cu (Mo-Au) deposits are probably the most well understood class of magmatic-
hydrothermal ore deposits. One of the fundamental tenets of the modern porphyry Cu 
(Mo-Au) model is that mineralized fluids are relatively oxidized, with abundant primary 
magnetite, hematite, and anhydrite in equilibrium with hypogene Cu-Fe sulfide minerals 
(chalcopyrite, bornite) and the association of porphyry Cu deposits with oxidized I-type 
or magnetite-series granitoids. The Porphyry Cu (Mo-Au) model has been proposed for 
the Red Mountain area.  
 
Gold Copper Veins Model  
 
A vein-type deposit is a fairly well defined zone of mineralization, usually inclined and 
discordant, which is typically narrow compared to its length and depth. Most vein 
deposits occur in fault or fissure openings or in shear zones within country rock. A vein 
deposit is sometimes referred to as a (metalliferous) lode deposit. A great many valuable 
minerals, such as native gold or silver or metal sulphides, are deposited along with 
gangue minerals, mainly quartz and/or calcite, in a vein structure.  
 
As hot (hydrothermal) fluids rise towards the surface from cooling intrusive rocks 
(magma charged with water, various acids, and metals in small amounts) through 
fractures, faults, brecciated rocks, porous layers and other channels (i.e. like a plumbing 
system), they cool or react chemically with the country rock. Some form ore deposits if 
the fluids are directed through a structure where the temperature, pressure and other 
chemical conditions are favourable for the precipitation and deposition of ore minerals. 
The fluids also react with the rocks they are passing through to produce an alteration zone 
with distinctive, new minerals. 
 
Gold Bearing Skarns 
 
Gold-dominant mineralization genetically associated with a skarn gangue consisting of 
Ca - Fe - Mg silicates, such as clinopyroxene, garnet and epidote. Gold is often intimately 
associated with Bi or Au-tellurides, and commonly occurs as minute blebs (<40 microns) 
that lie within or on sulphide grains. The vast majority of Au skarns are hosted by 
calcareous rocks (calcic subtype). The much rarer magnesian subtype is hosted by 
dolomites or Mg-rich volcanics. On the basis of gangue mineralogy, the calcic Au skarns 
can be separated into either pyroxene-rich, garnet-rich or epidote-rich types; these 
contrasting mineral assemblages reflect differences in the hostrock lithologies as well as 
the oxidation and sulphidation conditions in which the skarns developed.  
 
Most Au skarns form in orogenic belts at convergent plate margins. They tend to be 
associated with syn to late island arc intrusions emplaced into calcareous sequences in arc 
or back-arc environments. In British Columbia, most deposits are related to plutonism 
associated with the development of oceanic island arcs or back arcs, such as the Late 
Triassic to Early Jurassic Nicola Group in British Columbia. 
  
Gold skarns are hosted by sedimentary carbonates, calcareous clastics, volcaniclastics or 
(rarely) volcanic flows. They are commonly related to high to intermediate level stocks, 
sills and dikes of gabbro, diorite, quartz diorite or granodiorite composition. Economic 
mineralization is rarely developed in the endoskarn. The I-type intrusions are commonly 
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porphyritic, undifferentiated, Fe-rich and calc-alkaline. However, the Nambija, Wabu and 
QR gold skarns are associated with alkalic intrusions. In British Columbia gold skarns are 
mainly of Early to Middle-Jurassic age. The unusual magnesian gold skarns of Western 
Australia are Archean. 
 
Gold bearing skarn deposits are formed in variable shapes from irregular lenses and veins 
to tabular or stratiform orebodies with lengths ranging up to many hundreds of metres. 
Rarely, can occur as vertical pipe-like bodies along permeable structures. Fractures, sill-
dike margins and fold hinges can be an important loci for mineralization.  
  
The gold is commonly present as micron-sized inclusions in sulphides, or at sulphide 
grain boundaries. To the naked eye, ore is generally indistinguishable from waste rock. 
Due to the poor correlation between gold and copper in some gold skarns, the economic 
potential of a prospect can be overlooked if Cu-sulphide-rich outcrops are preferentially 
sampled and other sulphide-bearing or sulphide-lean assemblages are ignored (Ray 
1998).  
 
Figure 11: Deposit Model 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(7) Drilling — The type and extent of drilling including the procedures followed 
and an interpretation of all results. 

 
Toro Resources Corp. has not carried out drilling on the Taxco Property.  
 

(8) Sampling and Analysis — The sampling and assaying including: 
 

(a) a description of sampling methods and the location, number, type, 
nature, spacing and density of samples collected; 
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(b) identification of any drilling, sampling or recovery factors that could 
materially impact the accuracy or reliability of the results; 

 
(c) a discussion of sample quality and whether the samples are 

representative of any factors that may have resulted in sample 
biases;  

 
(d) rock types, geological controls, widths of mineralized zones, cut-off 

grades and other parameters used to establish the sampling interval; 
and 

 
(e) quality control measures and data verification procedures. 
 
Sampling Preparation, Analyses And Security  
 
During November 05, 2011 Property reconnaissance work, a total of 12 rock, sediment 
and soil samples were collected by the author and were placed in marked poly bags. All 
the samples were under the care and control of the author and a witness sample of each 
rock sample was retained and is available for viewing. The samples were prepared and 
analyzed by ALS Chemex Laboratories in North Vancouver, Vancouver, Canada using 
the following assay packages:  
 

• Soil and Sediment Samples (M480001 – M480006, M480012, and M480013): 
ALS PKG: AU + ME-MS (Aqua Regia Digestion and Multi Elements) TL42 (It 
includes PKG ME-MS 51 elements by Aqua Regia and Au).  

 
• Rock Samples: (M480007 - M480010): PKG: AU - ICP 21 (GOLD BY FIRE 

ASSAY FUSION) PLUS PKG: ME-MS 41(51 Elements by Aqua Regia ICP-MS 
AND ICP AES).  

 
October 2012 work program supervised by the author included a MMI soil grid spaced at 
100 x 100 meters with a total of 421 soil samples and 3 rock samples were collected by 
the author. Flagging with sample ID were tied to nearby trees marking the sample point 
for simpler location if follow up is required.  The collected sample material was placed in 
marked kraft soil bags. All the samples were under the care and control of the author.  
Samples were dug using a plastic trowel which was cleaned after each sample was 
collected to reduce the possibility of contamination between samples. Samples were 
prepared and analyzed by SGS Laboratories in Toronto, Canada using MMI-M5 
analytical procedure which is described below: 
 
Soil samples were analyzed in SGS laboratories Toronto using SGS’s MMI-M5 
analytical procedure. MMI technology is a proprietary method of SGS Laboratories and 
is considered suitable for deeply buried mineral deposits. MMI measures metal ions that 
travel upward from potential mineralization source to unconsolidated surface materials 
such as soil, till, sand and so on. These mobile metal ions are released from mineralized 
material and travel upward toward the surface. Target elements are extracted using weak 
solutions of organic and inorganic compounds rather than conventional aggressive acid or 
cyanide-based digests. MMI solutions contain strong ligands, which detach and hold 
metal ions that were loosely bound to soil particles by weak atomic forces in aqueous 
solution. This extraction does not dissolve the bound forms of the metal ions. Thus, the 
metal ions in the MMI solutions are the chemically active or ‘mobile’ component of the 
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sample. Because these mobile, loosely bound complexes are in very low concentrations, 
measurement is by conventional ICP-MS and the latest evolution of this technology, ICP-
MS Dynamic Reaction Cell™ (DRC II™). This allows the laboratories to report very low 
detection limits (Source: SGS Laboratories website).  
 
Both SGS and ALS laboratories are accredited and observe their own quality assurance 
and quality control procedures. 
 
For the present study, the sample preparation, security and analytical procedures used by 
the laboratories are considered adequate. No officer, director, employee or associate of 
Toro and Taxco Resources Inc. was involved in sample collection, preparation and 
analysis.  
 
Data Verification  
 
The author visited the Property on November 05, 2011 and October 05 -15, 2012. A 
helicopter (206 Jet Ranger) was chartered from Yellowhead Helicopters out of Prince 
George, British Columbia to carry out the Property visits and exploration work. The 
geological work performed in order to verify the existing data consisted of rock chip 
sampling, soil and sediment sampling, and visiting approachable outcrops. The samples 
collected during the present study are considered to represent the type of rock formations, 
soil types and stream sediments present on the Property. Results of the Property visits and 
exploration work are described in Section 6 of this report. No further exploration work 
has been done on the Property since my last visit in October 2012. 
 

(9) Security of Samples — The measures taken to ensure the validity and 
integrity of samples taken. 

 
See 4.3(8) above for particulars of measures taken to ensure the validity and integrity of 
samples taken.  
 

(10) Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves — The mineral resources and 
mineral reserves, if any, including: 

 
(a) the quantity and grade or quality of each category of mineral 

resources and mineral reserves; 
 

(b) the key assumptions, parameters and methods used to estimate the 
mineral resources and mineral reserves; and 

 
(c) the extent to which the estimate of mineral resources and mineral 

reserves may be materially affected by metallurgical, environmental, 
permitting, legal, title, taxation, socio-economic, marketing, political 
and other relevant issues. 

	  
No mineral resource estimation has been carried out on the Taxco Property by Toro 
Resources Corp. 

 
(11) Mining Operations — For development properties and production 

properties, the mining method, metallurgical process, production forecast, 
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markets, contracts for sale of products, environmental conditions, taxes, 
mine life and expected payback period of capital. 

 
	   N/A. 
 

(12) Exploration and Development — A description of the Issuer's current and 
contemplated exploration or development activities, to the extent they are 
material. 
 
Interpretation and Conclusions  

 
The Property is located in Nechako Plateau where earliest recorded geological 
exploration work was in 1978 when several major and junior exploration companies were 
actively searching for uranium and molybdenum mineralization. At that time, the Plateau 
was considered a relatively unrewarding area to explore, characterized by few access 
roads and generally poor rock exposure with thick and extensive glacial till deposits and 
Tertiary or younger basaltic volcanic flows. The property area was subjected to a staking 
rush when in September of 2009; Richfield Ventures announced a drill intersection of 
207m of 1.06 g/t Au and 5 g/t Ag. All during 2010 and into 2011, Richfield continued to 
announce similar long intersections of better than 1 g/t Au and expanded the deposit 
considerably, to approximately 4 million ounces gold.  
 
Cautionary statement: Investors are cautioned that the potential quantity indicated above 
has not been verified by the author and may not be indicative of the Property which is the 
subject of this report. It has been provided only for illustration purposes.  
 
Regionally, the Property and the surrounding area of Nechako Plateau is underlain by 
stratified rocks of Lower to Middle Jurassic age. They consist of the Nechako Range 
assemblage, quartz-bearing crystal tuff, sandstone and siltstone; the Fawnie Range 
subaerial rhyolitic volcanic sequence; and the Kuyakuz Mountain assemblage, which 
consists of rhyolitic tuffs and volcaniclastic sediments. Overlying Middle Jurassic rocks 
comprise the Naglico Formation, which consists mainly of andesitic and basaltic flows with 
pyroxene phenocrysts, feldspathic sandstone and siltstone, and subordinate, andesitic tuff 
and dacite porphyry flows. Unconformably overlying Lower Cretaceous conglomerate with 
chert clasts has interlayers of sandstone and siltstone. Eocene Ootsa Lake Group strata 
include rhyolite flows, andesite flows, rhyolite ash-flow tuff, and andesitic volcaniclastic 
rocks. Overlying Miocene and Pliocene Chilcotin Group olivine basalt flows have 
prominent columnar joints. 
 
Locally, most of the Property area is covered by quaternary glacial overburden, colluvial 
and fluvial material brought in by the Blackwater River drainage system. There are a few 
outcrops / subcrops of andesitic to basaltic volcanic rocks within the Property and adjoining 
areas to the north. 
 
The Property area was part of a regional geological work carried out by British Columbia 
Geological Survey (BCGS) Branch as part of a joint Federal-Provincial Mineral 
Development Agreement to provide geoscience data and assess mineral potential in the 
interior Plateau region. The program was comprised of geological mapping, till and lake 
sediment geochemical surveys, and mineral deposit studies.  
 
Taxco Resources Inc. carried out a reconnaissance field program in November 2011 to 
carry out prospecting and limited rock sampling. This program was followed by a 
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detailed exploration work program in 2012, comprised of soil samplings collected using a 
100 x 100 metres grid spacing. A total of 421 soil and 3 rock samples were collected as 
part of this work. The sample analytical results indicate the presence of an incidental 
gold, copper, nickel, and zinc soil anomaly in the southeastern quadrant of the survey 
area, as well as a few other gold and copper anomalies in other parts of the grid. 
 
Based on the review of the regional geological and exploration data and the results of the 
present study, it is concluded that the Taxco Property is a property of merit and possesses a 
good potential for discovery of gold, silver, lead and zinc mineralization. Availability of 
exploration and mining services in the vicinity makes it a worthy mineral exploration 
target. 
 
The above-mentioned exploration data provides the basis for a follow-up work program 
including diamond drilling of soil geochemical anomalies, extension of MMI soil grid to 
the east, ground geophysical survey, and detailed exploratory drlling.  
 
The author is of the opinion that the present study has met it original objectives.    
 
Recommendations 
 
In the qualified person’s opinion the character of the Taxco Project is sufficient to merit 
the following Phased work program. This can be accomplished through a two phase 
exploration program, where each phase is contingent upon the results of the previous 
phase.  
 
Phase 1 – Exploratory Drilling  
 
The interpretation of 2012 MMI soil sampling data for gold indicated presence of gold 
anomalies at seven locations out which one larger size anomaly is present at intersection 
of line 380000E and 5872500 with two smaller size anomalies to the east and one to the 
north. Similarly, interpretation map for copper shows presence of one larger soil anomaly 
located within the area of four gold anomalies. Analytical results also indicate presence 
of anomalous values of nickel and zinc within the same area. These incidental gold, 
copper, nickel and zinc anomalies are possible targets for a follow-up exploratory 
drilling. Initially one diamond drillhole is proposed to test this MMI soil anomaly, and 
the drillhole depth should be enough to penetrate at least 100 m below the top basalt 
cover.  
 
Estimated cost of this program is $65,263, details are provided in the following table. 

 
Table 7: Phase 1 budget – Taxco Property 
  
Item  Unit  Unit Rate 

($)  
Number of 
Units  

Total ($)  

Permitting and work plan  Day  $650  2  $1,300  
Transportation (helicopter)  Hours  $2,100  8  $16,800  
Sample assays  Sample  $50  100  $5,000  
Meal and board  Day  $200  10  $2,000  
Field supplies  Lump 

Sum  
$2,000  1  $2,000  

Drilling  Meter  $80  250  $20,000  
Core logging and drill supervision  Day  $650  5  $3,250  
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Item  Unit  Unit Rate 
($)  

Number of 
Units  

Total ($)  

Core cutting and sampling  Meter  $4  150  $600  
Report preparation and filing  Day  $650  5  $3,250  
GIS work  Hours  $60  8  $480  
Transportation air  Flight  $700  1  $700  
Transportation (ground)  Lump 

Sum  
$2,000  1  $2,000  

Project management  Day  $650  3  $1,950  
Subtotal  $59,330  
Contingency  10%  $5,933  
Total  $65,263  

 
Contingent upon favorable results from the Phase 1 work program, a Phase 2 program could be 
planned and executed. The scope of work and cost of this phase will be based upon the findings 
of Phase 1 exploration, and can possibly include extension of soil survey grid to the east, ground 
geophysical survey, and exploratory drilling. 
 

4.4 For Issuers with Oil and Gas Operations disclose and insert here the information 
required by Appendix B (in tabular form, if appropriate). 

 
 N/A. 
 
5. Selected Consolidated Financial Information  
 
5.1 Annual Information — Provide the following financial data for the Issuer in 

summary form for each of the last three completed financial years and any period 
subsequent to the most recent financial year end for which financial statements 
have been prepared:  

 
(a) net sales or total revenues; 
 
(b) income from continuing operations, in total and on a per share basis and 

fully diluted per share basis, calculated in accordance with the Handbook; 
 
(c) net income or loss, in total and on a per share and fully diluted per share 

basis, calculated in accordance with the Handbook; 
 
(d) total assets; 
 
(e) total long-term financial liabilities as defined in the Handbook; 
 
(f)  cash dividends declared per share for each class of share; and 
 
(g) such other information as would enhance an investor’s understanding of 

the Issuer’s financial condition and results of operations and would 
highlight other trends in financial condition and results of operations. 
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The following financial information is derived from the Company’s audited financial statements 
for the years indicated.  This summary is qualified by, and should be read in conjunction with, the 
Company’s financial statements, including the notes thereto and the accompanying 
management’s discussion and analysis, included elsewhere in this Listing Statement. The 
Company has established June 30 as its fiscal year-end. 

 Audited for 
the year ended 
June 30, 2014 

Audited for 
the year ended 
June 30, 2013 

Audited for the 
year ended 

June 30, 2012 
Total Revenue  Nil Nil Nil 
Net Income (Loss) $(1,227,599) $(252,430) $(221,445) 
Basic and Diluted Profit (Loss) per Share $(0.05) $(0.01) $(0.01) 
Total Assets $106,538 $1,104,032 $1,075,709 
Total Long-Term Financial Liabilities Nil Nil Nil 
Cash Dividends per Share Nil Nil Nil 

 
Discussion of the factors affecting the comparability of the data, including 
discontinued operations, changes in accounting policies, significant acquisitions 
or significant dispositions and major changes in the direction of the Issuer's 
business: 
 
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014, the Company incurred a net loss of $1,227,599 
(2013 - $252,430). As at June 30, 2014, the Company had cash of $38,373 (2013 - $73,550) and a 
working capital deficiency of $463,911, (2013 - $214,267).  
 
Total G&A expenses of $259,059 for the year ended June 30, 2014 showed an increase over the 
comparative year ended June 30, 2013 ($250,079). The increase was due primarily to accrued 
management fees of $180,000 (2013 - $109,000) interest on short-term loan of $6,250 and a 
slight increase in transfer agent fees paid in the year.  
 
Professional fees were lower in the year compared to the previous year due to higher costs as a 
result of the Company entering into a Letter of Intent with PBar Minerals PLC in 2013. Office 
and rent expenses were substantially less during the year ended June 30, 2014 than the 
comparable expenses from 2013. Morgan Peak exploration and cash costs during the year ended 
June 30, 2014 were $18,412 compared to $30,902 in 2013. Acquisition costs in 2014 were 
$10,000 during the year ended June 30, 2014 versus $77,035 in 2013.  
 
Management continues to evaluate its financing alternatives and to explore alternative sources of 
financing in the form of debt, equity or a combination thereof in what has proven to be 
continually challenging equity markets for the resource sector in general and the junior 
exploration companies in particular. Management will continue to monitor spending and assess 
results on an ongoing basis and appropriate changes will be implemented where appropriate. 
 

5.2 Quarterly Information — For each of the eight most recently completed quarters 
ending at the end of the most recently completed financial year, provide the 
information required in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) of Section 5.1. 
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 Q3 
Mar 31, 

2015 

Q2 
Dec 31, 

2014 

Q1 
Sep 30, 

2014 

Q4 
Jun 30,  

2014 

Q3 
Mar 31, 

2014 

Q2 
Dec 31, 

2013 

Q1 
Sep 30, 

2013 

Q4 
Jun 30, 

2013 
Total Revenue  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Net Income (Loss) $(50,836) $(64,059) $(69,676) $(1,017,412) $(58,265) $(77,344) $(74,578) $(107,379) 
Basic and Diluted 
Income (Loss) per 
Share 

($0.01) $(0.01) ($0.01) ($0.04) ($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01) 

 
5.3 Dividends – disclose: 
 
 (a) any restriction that could prevent the Issuer from paying dividends; and 
	  
	   There are no restrictions that could prevent the Issuer from paying dividends.  
 

 (b) the Issuer's dividend policy and, if a decision has been made to change the 
dividend policy, the intended change in dividend policy. 

	  
	   The Issuer has not paid dividends in the past and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near 

future.  The Issuer expects to retain any earnings to finance future growth and, when appropriate, 
retire debt. 

 
5.4 Foreign GAAP — An Issuer may present the selected consolidated financial 

information required in this section on the basis of foreign GAAP if: 
 
 (a)  the Issuer's primary financial statements have been prepared using foreign 

GAAP; and 
 
 (b)  if the Issuer is required under applicable securities legislation to have 

reconciled its financial statements to Canadian GAAP at the time of filing its 
financial statements or the Issuer has otherwise done so, a cross reference 
to the notes to the financial statements containing the reconciliation of the 
financial statements to Canadian GAAP is included. 
	  

N/A. 
 
6. Management's Discussion and Analysis 
 
Annual MD&A 
 

6.1 Date - Specify the date of the MD&A. The date of the MD&A must be no 
earlier than the date of the auditor’s report on the financial statements for 
the Issuer’s most recently completed financial year. 
	  
The following management’s discussion and analysis is as of October 28, 2014. 

 
6.2 Overall Performance - Provide an analysis of the Issuer’s financial 

condition, results of operations and cash flows. Discuss known trends, 
demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that are reasonably likely 
to have an effect on the Issuer’s business. Compare the Issuer’s 
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performance in the most recently completed financial year to the prior 
year’s performance. The analysis should address at least the following: 

 
(a) operating segments that are reportable segments as those terms 

are used in the Handbook; 
 
(b) other parts of the business if 
 

(i) they have a disproportionate effect on revenues, income or 
cash needs, or 

 
(ii) there are any legal or other restrictions on the flow of funds 

from one part of the Issuer’s business to another;  
 
(c) industry and economic factors affecting the Issuer’s performance; 
 
(d) why changes have occurred or expected changes have not 

occurred in the Issuer’s financial condition and results of 
operations; and 

 
(e) the effect of discontinued operations on current operations. 
	  
Years ended June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2014 
 
On July 11, 2013, the Company entered into a letter of intent (the “Letter Agreement”) 
whereby PBar Land and Minerals, LLC, (“PBar”) upon completion of a formal option 
agreement (the “Option”), has the right to earn up to a 51% interest in the Morgan Peak 
copper project (“Morgan Peak”). PBar is private mineral exploration company located in 
Phoenix, Arizona. The option agreement was amended on March 18, 2014 whereby PBar 
remitted a us$16,000 non-refundable deposit. Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 
2014, the agreement been terminated as the terms could not be met by PBar.  

 
In December of 2013, due to unfavorable market conditions the Company negotiated a 
further amendment to the mineral property agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the 
Morgan Peak Property subject to a 3% Net Smelter Returns Royalty, whereby all annual 
payments falling due on the first of February and exploration expenditure commitments 
were restructured obligating the Company to make expenditures of $450,000 in the 2014-
2015 year. All requisite exploration expenditures were effectively pushed forward by two 
years from the original agreement. Further to this, the Company had a standing 
agreement with the vendors to delay payments and work commitments until July 1, 2014.  

 
As at June 30, 2014 the Company wrote down the Morgan Peak property to $Nil and 
recorded a loss of $985,356 in the year. On August 8th, 2014, the Company officially 
relinquished the Morgan Peak property. During the month of September 2014, 
reclamation of the site was conducted to the satisfaction of the USFS at a cost of 
US$3,627. The Company is expecting the imminent return of a performance bond held 
by the USFS. 
 
As at October 28, 2014, the Company had made cash payments of $176,209 
(US$170,000) and issued 1,150,000 common shares valued at $155,000 pursuant to the 
terms of the Morgan Peak Option Agreement. 
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During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Company entered into a preliminary agreement 
to acquire under an option agreement the Taxco property from 1002679 B.C. Ltd. The 
915 hectare property is located 125 km southwest of Vanderhoof, 175 km southwest of 
Prince George, and approximately 150 km west of Quesnel, British Columbia. The 
Company commissioned an updated 43:101 report on the property in June of 2014 which 
has been accounted for as an acquisition cost.  
 
The Property is subject to a royalty in favor of 1002679 B.C. Ltd. equal to a 3% Net 
Smelter Royalty (NSR), one half of which may be purchased for a cash payment of 
$250,000. A non-refundable cash payment of $2,500 is due before October 31, 2014 and 
issuance of 50,000 shares or cash payment of $5,000 is due upon regulatory approval. 
Under the terms of the agreement, Toro will hold 100% beneficial interest in the Taxco 
Property by making cash payments, issuing shares and carrying out exploration work as 
per the following anniversary dates:  
 

End of Year Cash Payment Shares Issued Expenditures 
1 $10,000 100,000 $50,000 
2 20,000 150,000 100,000 
3 50,000 200,000 250,000 

 $80,000 450,000 $400,000 
 

Selected Annual Financial Information 
 
6.3 Provide the following financial data derived from the Issuer’s financial 

statements for each of the three most recently completed financial years: 
 

(a) net sales or total revenues; 
 
(b) income or loss before discontinued operations and extraordinary 

items, in total and on a per-share and diluted per-share basis; 
 
(c) net income or loss, in total and on a per-share and diluted per-

share basis; 
 
(d) total assets; 
 
(e) total long-term financial liabilities; and 
 
(f) cash dividends declared per-share for each class of share. 
The following table provides selected annual financial information for the Company for 
the three most recently completed financial years: 
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 Audited for 
the year ended 
June 30, 2014 

Audited for 
the year ended 
June 30, 2013 

Audited for the 
year ended 

June 30, 2012 
Total Revenue  Nil Nil Nil 
Net Income (Loss) $(1,227,599) $(252,430) $(221,445) 
Basic and Diluted Profit (Loss) per Share $(0.05) $(0.01) $(0.01) 
Total Assets $106,538 $1,104,032 $1,075,709 
Total Long-Term Financial Liabilities Nil Nil Nil 
Cash Dividends per Share Nil Nil Nil 

	  
6.4 Variations - Discuss the factors that have caused period to period 

variations including discontinued operations, changes in accounting 
policies, significant acquisitions or dispositions and changes in the 
direction of the Issuer’s business, and any other information the Issuer 
believes would enhance an understanding of, and would highlight trends 
in, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
The Company’s net loss for the year ended June 30, 2014 was higher than that for the 
year ended June 30, 2013 mainly as a result of writing down the Morgan Peak property 
and recording a loss of $985,356. Consulting and management fees and interest payments 
increased as well, all of which increases were partially offset by a received option 
payment and decreases in loan bonus payments, office and miscellaneous, share based 
payments, professional fees and rent.  
 
The Company’s net loss for the year ended June 30, 2013 was higher than that for the 
year ended June 30, 2012 mainly as a result of increases in share-based compensation and 
consulting and management fees, which were partially offset by decreases in office and 
administration, rent, transfer agent fees and travel costs. 
 

6.5 Results of Operations - Discuss management’s analysis of the Issuer’s 
operations for the most recently completed financial year, including: 

 
(a) net sales or total revenues by operating business segment, 

including any changes in such amounts caused by selling prices, 
volume or quantity of goods or services being sold, or the 
introduction of new products or services; 

 
(b) any other significant factors that caused changes in net sales or 

total revenues; 
 
(c) cost of sales or gross profit; 
 
(d) for Issuers that have significant projects that have not yet 

generated operating revenue, describe each project, including the 
Issuer’s plan for the project and the status of the project relative to 
that plan, and expenditures made and how these relate to 
anticipated timing and costs to take the project to the next stage of 
the project plan; 
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(e) for resource Issuers with producing mines, identify milestones such 
as mine expansion plans, productivity improvements, or plans to 
develop a new deposit; 

 
(f) factors that caused a change in the relationship between costs and 

revenues, including changes in costs of labour or materials, price 
changes or inventory adjustments; 

 
(g) commitments, events, risks or uncertainties that you reasonably 

believe will materially affect the Issuer’s future performance 
including net sales, total revenue and income or loss before 
discontinued operations and extraordinary items; 

 
(h) effect of inflation and specific price changes on the Issuer’s net 

sales and total revenues and on income or loss before discontinued 
operations and extraordinary items; 

 
(i) a comparison in tabular form of disclosure you previously made 

about how the Issuer was going to use proceeds (other than 
working capital) from any financing, an explanation of variances 
and the impact of the variances, if any, on the Issuer’s ability to 
achieve its business objectives and milestones; and 

 
(j) unusual or infrequent events or transactions. 

 
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014, the Company incurred a net loss of 
$1,227,599 (2013 - $252,430). As at June 30, 2014, the Company had cash of $38,373 
(2013 - $73,550) and a working capital deficiency of $463,911, (2013 - $214,267).  
 
Total G&A expenses of $259,059 for the year ended June 30, 2014 showed an increase 
over the comparative year ended June 30, 2013 ($250,079). The increase was due 
primarily to accrued management fees of $180,000 (2013 - $109,000) interest on short-
term loan of $6,250 and a slight increase in transfer agent fees paid in the year.  
 
Professional fees were lower in the year compared to the previous year due to higher 
costs as a result of the Company entering into a Letter of Intent with PBar Minerals PLC 
in 2013. Office and rent expenses were substantially less during the year ended June 30, 
2014 than the comparable expenses from 2013. Morgan Peak exploration and cash costs 
during the year ended June 30, 2014 were $18,412 compared to $30,902 in 2013. 
Acquisition costs in 2014 were $10,000 during the year ended June 30, 2014 versus 
$77,035 in 2013.  
 
Management continues to evaluate its financing alternatives and to explore alternative 
sources of financing in the form of debt, equity or a combination thereof in what has 
proven to be continually challenging equity markets for the resource sector in general and 
the junior exploration companies in particular. Management will continue to monitor 
spending and assess results on an ongoing basis and appropriate changes will be 
implemented where appropriate. 
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6.6 Summary of Quarterly Results - Provide the following information in 
summary form, derived from the Issuer’s financial statements, for each of 
the eight most recently completed quarters: 

 
(a) net sales or total revenues; 
 
(b) income or loss before discontinued operations and extraordinary 

items, in total and on a per-share and diluted per-share basis; and 
 
(c) net income or loss, in total and on a per-share and diluted per-

share basis. 
 

Discuss the factors that have caused variations over the quarters 
necessary to understand general trends that have developed and the 
seasonality of the business. 
 

 Q3 
Mar 31, 

2015 

Q2 
Dec 31, 

2014 

Q1 
Sep 30, 

2014 

Q4 
Jun 30,  

2014 

Q3 
Mar 31, 

2014 

Q2 
Dec 31, 

2013 

Q1 
Sep 30, 

2013 

Q4 
Jun 30, 

2013 
Total Revenue  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Net Income (Loss) $(50,836) $(64,059) $(69,676) $(1,017,412) $(58,265) $(77,344) $(74,578) $(107,379) 
Basic and Diluted 
Income (Loss) per 
Share 

($0.01) $(0.01) ($0.01) ($0.04) ($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01) 

 
During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Company’s loss was higher as a result of 
writing down the Morgan Peak property and recording a loss of $985,356.  Variations 
over the quarters are mainly caused by variations in consulting and management fees, 
professional fees, share based compensation and office and miscellaneous expenses.  

 
6.7 Liquidity - Provide an analysis of the Issuer’s liquidity, including: 

 
(a) its ability to generate sufficient amounts of cash and cash 

equivalents, in the short term and the long term, to maintain the 
Issuer’s capacity, to meet the Issuer’s planned growth or to fund 
development activities; 

 
(b) trends or expected fluctuations in the Issuer’s liquidity, taking into 

account demands, commitments, events or uncertainties; 
 
(c) its working capital requirements; 
 
(d) liquidity risks associated with financial instruments; 
 
(e) if the Issuer has or expects to have a working capital deficiency, 

discuss its ability to meet obligations as they become due and how 
you expect it to remedy the deficiency; 

 
(f) balance sheet conditions or income or cash flow items that may 

affect the Issuer’s liquidity; 
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(g) legal or practical restrictions on the ability of subsidiaries to transfer 

funds to the Issuer and the effect these restrictions have had or 
may have on the ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations; and 

 
(h) defaults or arrears or anticipated defaults or arrears on 
 

(i) dividend payments, lease payments, interest or principal 
payment on debt, 

(ii) debt covenants during the most recently completed financial 
year, and 

(iii) redemption or retraction or sinking fund payments; and 
 

(i) details on how the Issuer intends to cure the default or arrears. 
 
The Company is engaged in the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral 
properties and has yet to determine whether its properties contain mineral resources that 
are economically recoverable. The recoverability of the amounts shown for exploration 
and evaluation assets, including acquisition costs and related exploration and evaluation 
costs, are dependent upon the existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability 
of the Company to obtain necessary financing to complete the development of those 
reserves and upon future profitable production. The Company expects to rely upon equity 
financing and/or joint venturing project development as primary sources of funding. The 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon successful 
completion of additional financing and upon its ability to attain profitable operations.  
 
The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2014 have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Company will 
be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business 
for the foreseeable future. The audited consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2014 do not give effect to any adjustments that would be necessary should 
the Company not be able to continue as a going concern. The Company is actively 
pursuing joint venture partners and has minimized its exploration activities and over-all 
operations in an effort to conserve cash. 
 

6.8 Capital Resources - Provide an analysis of the Issuer’s capital resources, 
including 

 
(a) commitments for capital expenditures as of the date of the Issuer’s 

financial statements including: 
 
(i) the amount, nature and purpose of these commitments, 
 
(ii) the expected source of funds to meet these commitments, 

and 
 
(iii) expenditures not yet committed but required to maintain the 

Issuer’s capacity, to meet the Issuer’s planned growth or to 
fund development activities; 
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(b) known trends or expected fluctuations in the Issuer’s capital 
resources, including expected changes in the mix and relative cost 
of these resources; and 

 
(c) sources of financing that the Issuer has arranged but not yet used. 
 
The Company has no significant contractual obligations or commitments with any parties 
respecting executive compensation, consulting arrangements, rental premises or other 
general matters.  
  
The Company expects to rely upon equity financing and/or joint venturing project 
development as primary sources of funding. 
 

6.9 Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements - Discuss any off-balance sheet 
arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or 
future effect on the results of operations or financial condition of the Issuer 
including, without limitation, such considerations as liquidity and capital 
resources. This discussion shall include their business purpose and 
activities, their economic substance, risks associated with the 
arrangements, and the key terms and conditions associated with any 
commitments, including: 

 
(a) a description of the other contracting part(ies); 
 
(b) the effects of terminating the arrangement; 
 
(c) the amounts receivable or payable, revenues, expenses and cash 

flows resulting from the arrangement; 
 
(d) the nature and amounts of any other obligations or liabilities arising 

from the arrangement that could require the Issuer to provide 
funding under the arrangement and the triggering events or 
circumstances that could cause them to arise; and 

 
(e) any known event, commitment, trend or uncertainty that may affect 

the availability or benefits of the arrangement (including any 
termination) and the course of action that management has taken, 
or proposes to take, in response to any such circumstances. 

	  
There are no off-balance sheet arrangements to which the Company is committed. 

 
6.10 Transactions with Related Parties - Discuss all transactions involving 

related parties as defined by the Handbook. 
	  
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Company paid or accrued a total of $180,000 in 
wages and consulting fees to key management personnel and recorded $13,510 in share-
based payments for options granted to key management personnel. 
  
Included in accrued liabilities at June 30, 2014 is $368,030 (2013 - $180,780) for 
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consulting fees owing to officers and companies controlled by officers. These 
transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange 
amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related 
parties.  
 
On April 26, 2013, the Company announced it had secured an interim loan of $100,000 
with interest of 5% per annum, calculated monthly, from RD Capital Inc., a company 
controlled by Dev Randhawa, Chairman and CEO. The short term financing was to 
ensure that the Company could meet its current commitments on the Company’s Morgan 
Peak Copper Project. On May 21, 2013 the Company issued 400,000 loan bonus shares 
to RD Capital Inc. valued at $0.05 per share. Interest expense of $6,250 had been accrued 
as at June 30, 2014. 
 

6.11 Fourth Quarter - Discuss and analyze fourth quarter events or items that 
affected the Issuer’s financial condition, cash flows or results of 
operations, including extraordinary items, year-end and other adjustments, 
seasonal aspects of the Issuer’s business and dispositions of business 
segments. 

 
During the fourth quarter, the Company reported a loss of $1,017,712 or $0.04 per share 
compared to a loss of $107,379 or $0.01 per share during the fourth quarter in the prior 
fiscal year, representing an increase in loss by $910,033. The increase in loss was 
primarily attributable to the write down of the Morgan Peak property of $985,356 and an 
increase in consulting and management fees of $71,000 which were partially offset 
mainly by decreases of $20,000 in expenses recorded for a loan bonus and decreases in 
office and miscellaneous expenses of $14,447, share based payments of $12,009 and rent 
of $6,324. 
 

6.12 Proposed Transactions - Discuss the expected effect on financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows of any proposed asset or 
business acquisition or disposition if the Issuer’s board of directors, or 
senior management who believe that confirmation of the decision by the 
board is probable, have decided to proceed with the transaction. Include 
the status of any required shareholder or regulatory approvals. 
	  
N/A. 

 
6.13 Changes in Accounting Policies including Initial Adoption - Discuss and 

analyze any changes in the Issuer’s accounting policies, including: 
 

(a) for any accounting policies that management has adopted or 
expects to adopt subsequent to the end of the most recently 
completed financial year, including changes management has 
made or expects to make voluntarily and those due to a change in 
an accounting standard or a new accounting standard that you do 
not have to adopt until a future date:  
 
(i) describe the new standard, the date the Issuer required to 

adopt it and, if determined, the date the Issuer plans to adopt 
it, 
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(ii) disclose the methods of adoption permitted by the 

accounting standard and the method management expects 
to use, 

 
(iii) discuss the expected effect on the Issuer’s financial 

statements, or if applicable, state that management cannot 
reasonably estimate the effect, and 

 
(iv) discuss the potential effect on the Issuer’s business, for 

example technical violations or default of debt covenants or 
changes in business practices; and 

 
(b) for any accounting policies that management has initially adopted 

during the most recently completed financial year,  
 
(i) describe the events or transactions that gave rise to the 

initial adoption of an accounting policy, 
 
(ii) describe the accounting principle that has been adopted and 

the method of applying that principle, 
 
(iii) discuss the effect resulting from the initial adoption of the 

accounting policy on the Issuer’s financial condition, 
changes in financial condition and results of operations, 

 
(iv) if the Issuer is permitted a choice among acceptable 

accounting principles, 
 
(A) state that management made a choice among 

acceptable alternatives, 
 
(B) identify the alternatives, 
 
(C) describe why management made the choice that you 

did, and 
 
(D) discuss the effect, where material, on the Issuer’s 

financial condition, changes in financial condition and 
results of operations under the alternatives not 
chosen; and 

 
(v) if no accounting literature exists that covers the accounting 

for the events or transactions giving rise to management’s 
initial adoption of the accounting policy, explain 
management’s decision regarding which accounting principle 
to use and the method of applying that principle. 
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New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations 
 
The IASB issued the following pronouncements that are effective for years beginning 
January 1, 2013 or later. These new accounting policies were adopted by the Company on 
July 1, 2013 and have had no significant impact on the Company’s financial position and 
results of operation. 
 
IAS 1–Presentation of Financial Statements  
IFRS 7–Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Joint Ventures 
IFRS 10–Consolidated Financial Statements  
IFRS 11–Joint Arrangements 
IFRS 12–Disclosure of Interests in Other 
IFRS 13–Fair Value Measurement Entities 
IAS 24– Related Parties Disclosures 
IAS 28–Investments in Associates 
 
On July 24, 2014 the IASB issued IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments. This is the final 
version of the Standard and supersedes all previous versions. The Standard has a 
mandatory effective date for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with 
earlier application permitted. This standard introduces new requirements for the 
impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost and classification and 
measurement of financial instruments. The Company will be analyzing the possible 
impacts of these amendments on its future consolidated financial statements. 

	  
6.14 Financial Instruments and Other Instruments - For financial instruments 

and other instruments: 
 

(a) discuss the nature and extent of the Issuer’s use of, including 
relationships among, the instruments and the business purposes 
that they serve; 

 
(b) describe and analyze the risks associated with the instruments; 
 
(c) describe how management manages the risks in paragraph (b), 

including a discussion of the objectives, general strategies and 
instruments used to manage the risks, including any hedging 
activities; 

 
(d) disclose the financial statement classification and amounts of 

income, expenses, gains and losses associated with the 
instrument; and 

 
(e) discuss the significant assumptions made in determining the fair 

value of financial instruments, the total amount and financial 
statement classification of the change in fair value of financial 
instruments recognized in income for the period, and the total 
amount and financial statement classification of deferred or 
unrecognized gains and losses on financial instruments. 
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Financial Instruments  
 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the 
rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the 
Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial 
assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial 
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 
 
At initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following 
categories depending on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired: 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity 
investments, available for sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivable. 
 
The Company has classified cash and reclamation deposit as FVTPL and amounts 
receivable as loans and receivables. 
 
When one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset 
have been impacted, financial assets are impaired. At each reporting date, the Company 
assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. 
 
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 
 
The carrying amount of all financial assets, excluding trade receivables, is directly 
reduced by the impairment loss. The carrying amount of trade receivables is reduced 
through the use of an allowance. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off 
are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the 
allowance account are recognized in the statement of net loss and comprehensive loss. 
 
Impairment losses on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost are reversed in 
subsequent periods if the amount of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized. Impairment losses 
on available-for-sale equity instruments are not reversed. 
 
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at 
FVTPL, or other financial liabilities, as appropriate. 
 
The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. 
 
The Company’s financial liabilities include accounts payable, accrued liabilities and loan 
payable, which are classified as other financial liabilities. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, accounts payable, accrued financial liabilities, and the loan payable are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
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Financial Instruments and Risk Management 
 
IFRS 7 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the input to valuation techniques 
used   fair value as follows: 
 
Level 1 – Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active 

markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2 – Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted 

prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets 
or indirectly such as quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets 
with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions. 

 
Level 3 – Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable market data. 
 
The Company has no assets or liabilities subject to fair value measurement on a recurring 
basis. For assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, the 
following table provides the fair value measures by level of valuation assumptions used: 
 

 FAIR 
VALUE 

YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2014 

YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2013 

 INPUT 
LEVEL 

CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

ESTIMATED 
FAIR VALUE 

CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

ESTIMATED 
FAIR VALUE 

Financial Assets:      
Cash 1 $38,373 $38,373 $73,550 $73,550 
Reclamation deposit 2 $46,804 $46,804 $46,804 $46,804 
  $85,177 $85,177 $120,354 $120,354 

 
Due to the relatively short term nature of cash, amounts receivable, reclamation deposit 
and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, the fair value of these instruments 
approximates their carrying value. Risk management is carried out by the Company’s 
management team with guidance from the Board of Directors. 
 
The Company's risk exposures and their impact on the Company's financial instruments 
are summarized below: 
 
a)  Credit Risk 
 
 The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and amounts receivable. 

Cash and is held with one reputable Canadian chartered bank which is closely 
monitored by management. Management believes that the credit risk concentration 
with respect to financial instruments included in cash, short-term investments and 
amounts receivable is minimal. 

 
b)  Liquidity Risk 
 
 The Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have 

sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities when due. As at June 30, 2014, the Company 
held cash of $38,373 (2013 - $73,550) and had current liabilities of $513,645 (2013 - 
$304,556). All of the Company’s current liabilities, excluding the loan payable, have 
contractual maturities of less than 30 days and are subject to normal trade terms. 
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c)  Market Risk 
 

i)  Interest Rate Risk 
 
 The Company had cash balances, and no interest-bearing debt. The Company’s 

current policy is to invest excess cash in investment-grade short-term deposit 
certificates issued by its banking institutions. The Company periodically 
monitors the investments it makes and is satisfied with the creditworthiness of its 
banks. 

 
ii)  Foreign Currency Risk 
  
 The Company’s functional currency and the reporting currency is the Canadian 

dollar (“CDN$”). Periodically the Company incurs charges to its operations for 
settlement in currencies other than its functional currency and any gain or loss 
arising on such transactions is recorded in operations for the year. 

 
 The Company holds a 100% interest in its subsidiary TRI which operates in the 

United States of America. TRI has transactions which are recorded in the US 
Dollar (“US$”). 

  
 As a result, the Company is subject to foreign currency and exchange risk on the 

translation of these transactions and year end balances to the reporting currency. 
Any gains or losses arising in the year are included in operations for the year. 

 
 As at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013, a 1% strengthening in the US$ relative to 

the CDN$ does not have a significant impact on the net loss for the year. 
 
 Any unrealized translation adjustments arising at year end are included in 

operating loss for the year. 
 
 The Company does not participate in any hedging activities to mitigate any gains 

or losses which may arise as a result of exchange rate changes. 
 

As at June 30, 2014, financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies 
other than the Canadian dollar are as follows: 
 

2014 2013 
FINANCIAL 

ASSETS 
FINANCIAL 

LIABILITIES 
FINANCIAL 

ASSETS 
FINANCIAL 
LIABILITIES 

US$    61,643 US$     - US$    48,169 US$     - 
 

iii)  Commodity Price Risk 
 
The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity and equity 
prices. Equity price risk is defined as the potential adverse impact on the 
Company's earnings due to movements in individual equity prices or general 
movements in the level of the stock market. Commodity price risk is defined as 
the potential adverse impact on earnings and economic value due to commodity 
price movements and volatilities. To mitigate price risk, the Company closely 
monitors commodity prices of precious metals, individual equity movements, and 
the stock market to determine the appropriate course of action to be taken by the 
Company. 
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Interim MD&A 

 
6.15 Date - Specify the date of the interim MD&A. 
 

The following management’s discussion and analysis is as of April 21, 2015 and 
supplements, and should be read in conjunction with, the annual management’s 
discussion and analysis in sections 6.2 and 6.5 to 6.14 above. 

 
6.16 Updated Disclosure - Interim MD&A must update the Issuer’s annual 

MD&A for all disclosure required by sections 6.2 to 6.14 except sections 
6.3 and 6.4. This disclosure must include: 

 
(a) a discussion of management’s analysis of 
 

(i) current quarter and year-to-date results including a 
comparison of results of operations and cash flows to the 
corresponding periods in the previous year; 

 
(ii) changes in results of operations and elements of income or 

loss that are not related to ongoing business operations; 
 
(iii) any seasonal aspects of the Issuer’s business that affect its 

financial condition, results of operations or cash flows; and 
	   	  
Three-Month Period ended March 31, 2015 
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company reported a loss of $50,836 
or $0.01 per share compared to a loss of $58,265 or $0.01 per share during the three 
months ended March 31, 2014, representing a decrease in loss by $7,429. The decrease in 
loss was primarily attributable to decreases in professional fees of $5,000, travel of 
$1,761, and share-based compensation of $1,088 which were partially offset by an 
increase in regulatory fees of $1,300.  
 
Nine-Month Period ended March 31, 2015 
 
During the nine months ended March 31, 2015, the Company reported a loss of $184,273 
or $0.01 per share compared to a loss of $211,022 or $0.01 per share during the nine 
months ended March 31, 2014, representing a decrease in loss of $26,749. The decrease 
in loss was primarily attributable to decreases in share-based compensation of $21,016, 
professional fees of $19,850, increase in foreign exchange gain of $6,936 and a decrease 
in travel expenses of $6,273 which were partially offset by increases in exploration and 
evaluation expense of $22,192 and regulatory fees of $6,400.  
 
Transactions with Related Parties 
	  
During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company accrued $45,000 in wages 
and consulting fees for key management personnel. 
 
During the nine months ended March 31, 2015, the Company accrued $135,000 in wages 
and consulting fees for key management personnel. 
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Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities at March 31, 2015 is $506,280 
(March 31, 2014 - $320,280) for consulting fees owing to officers and companies 
controlled by officers. In an agreement reached in March, 2015, the creditors have agreed 
to postpone the repayment of this debt and the interim loan for a period of one year or 
until such time as the Company undertakes a financing and debt settlement arrangements 
in accordance with the policies of the Exchange. Also included in accounts payable is 
$819 for rent owing to a company with related directors and executives. These 
transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange 
amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related 
parties.  
 
On April 26, 2013, the Company announced it had secured an interim loan of $100,000 
with interest of 5% per annum, calculated monthly, from RD Capital Inc., a company 
controlled by Dev Randhawa, Chairman and CEO. The financing ensures that the 
Company can meet its commitments on the Company’s Morgan Peak Copper Project. On 
May 21, 2013 the Company issued 400,000 loan bonus shares to RD Capital Inc. valued 
at $0.05 per share. As of March 31, 2015, the Company has accrued interest charges of 
$10,000 on the loan. 
 
(b) a comparison of the Issuer’s interim financial condition to the 

Issuer’s financial condition as at the most recently completed 
financial year-end. 

 
The accrued liabilities at March 31, 2015 were $552,439 (June 30, 2014 - $509,198) for 
consulting fees owing to officers and companies controlled by officers and for legal fees 
accrued. In an agreement reached in March, 2015, these creditors have agreed to 
postpone the repayment of this debt for a period of 15 months or until such time as the 
Company undertakes a financing and debt settlement arrangements in accordance with 
the policies of the Exchange. 
 
As a result of the above agreement to postpone the repayment of debt, as at March 31, 
2015, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $48,146 and working capital of 
$47,547 (June 30, 2014 - cash $38,373, working capital deficiency $463,911). During the 
nine months ended March 31, 2015, the Company incurred a net loss of $184,273 (2014 - 
$211,022).  

 
Current assets excluding cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2015 consisted of 
amounts receivable of $5,624 and prepaid expenses of $nil as compared to amounts 
receivable of $8,761 and prepaid expenses of $2,600 at June 30, 2014.  Current liabilities 
at March 31, 2015 consisted of accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $557,650 and 
loan payable of $100,000 as compared to accounts payable and accrued liabilities of 
$413,645 and loan payable of $100,000 at June 30, 2014. 
 

6.17 Additional Disclosure for Issuers without Significant Revenue: 
 

(a) unless the information is disclosed in the financial statements to 
which the annual or interim MD&A relates, an Issuer that has not 
had significant revenue from operations in either of its last two 
financial years must disclose a breakdown of material components 
of: 
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(i) capitalized or expensed exploration and development costs, 
 
(ii) expensed research and development costs, 
 
(iii) deferred development costs, 
 
(iv) general and administration expenses, and 
 
(v) any material costs, whether capitalized, deferred or expensed, 

not referred to in paragraphs (i) through (iv); 
 

(b) if the Issuer’s business primarily involves mining exploration and 
development, the analysis of capitalized or expensed exploration 
and development costs must be presented on a property-by-
property basis; and 

 
(c) the disclosure in the annual MD&A must be for the two most 

recently completed financial years and the disclosure in the interim 
MD&A for the each year-to-date interim period and the comparative 
period presented in the interim statements. 

	  
The Company has not had significant revenue from operations in either of its last 
two financial years. 
 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Company did not generate any revenue.  
Expenses during this period were $230,079 and include: consulting and 
management fees of $109,000, professional fees of $36,733, share-based 
compensation of $33,025, office and administration expenses of $15,363, rent 
expenses of $9,324, travel expenses of $9,078, public relations and 
communications expenses of $6,697, transfer agent fees of $6,072, regulatory 
fees of $4,265, depreciation costs of $445 and interest expenses of $77. 
 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Company did not generate any revenue.  
Expenses during this period were $259,059 and include: consulting and 
management fees of $180,000, professional fees of $28,204, share-based 
compensation of $21,016, transfer agent fees of $7,751, travel expenses of 
$6,359, interest expenses of $6,250, public relations and communications 
expenses of $3,121, rent expenses of $3,000, regulatory fees of $2,442 and office 
and administration expenses of $916. 
 
Nine-Month Period ended March 31, 2015 
 
During the nine months ended March 31, 2015, the Company did not generate 
any revenue.  Expenses during this period were $164,495 and include: consulting 
and management fees of $135,000, professional fees of $8,650, regulatory fees of 
$7,700, transfer agent fees of $6,024, public relations and communications 
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expenses of $4,512, rent expenses of $1,950 and office and administration 
expenses of $659.   

6.18 Description of Securities: 

(a) disclose the designation and number or principal amount of: 

(i) each class and series of voting or equity securities of the 
Issuer for which there are securities outstanding, 

(ii) each class and series of securities of the Issuer for which 
there are securities outstanding if the securities are 
convertible into, or exercisable or exchangeable for, voting or 
equity securities of the Issuer, and 

(iii) subject to subsection (b), each class and series of voting or 
equity securities of the Issuer that are issuable on the 
conversion, exercise or exchange of outstanding securities of 
the Issuer; 

(b) if the exact number or principal amount of voting or equity securities 
of the Issuer that are issuable on the conversion, exercise or 
exchange of outstanding securities of the Issuer is not 
determinable, the Issuer must disclose the maximum number or 
principal amount of each class and series of voting or equity 
securities that are issuable on the conversion, exercise or 
exchange of outstanding securities of the Issuer and, if that 
maximum number or principal amount is not determinable, the 
Issuer must describe the exchange or conversion features and the 
manner in which the number or principal amount of voting or equity 
securities will be determined; and 

(c) the disclosure under subsections (a) and (b) must be prepared as 
of the latest practicable date.  

	  
As at the date hereof, the Company had 24,198,636 common shares without par 
value outstanding. 

6.19 Provide Breakdown: 

(a) if the Issuer has not had significant revenue from operations in 
either of its last two financial years, disclose a breakdown of 
material components of: 

(i) capitalized or expensed exploration and development costs, 

(ii) expensed research and development costs, 

(iii) deferred development costs, 

(iv) general and administrative expenses, and 
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(v) any material costs, whether capitalized, deferred or 
expensed, not referred to in paragraphs (i) through (iv); 

(b) present the analysis of capitalized or expensed exploration and 
development costs required by subsection (a) on a property-by-
property basis, if the Issuer’s business primarily involves mining 
exploration and development; and 

(c) provide the disclosure in subsection (a) for the following periods: 

(i) the two most recently completed financial years, and 

(ii) the most recent year-to-date interim period and the 
comparative year-to-date period presented in the interim 
financial statements included, if any. 

Subsection (a) does not apply if the information required under that 
subsection has been disclosed in the financial statements. 
	  
See section 6.17 above. 

 
6.20 Negative cash-flow - If the Issuer had negative operating cash flow in its 

most recently completed financial year for which financial statements have 
been included, disclose: 

 
(a) the period of time the proceeds raised are expected to fund 

operations; 
The Company currently has enough cash to fund operations for nine months.     
 

(b) the estimated total operating costs necessary for the Issuer to 
achieve its stated business objectives during that period of time; 
and 

 
The Company has entered into debt postponement agreements totaling 
approximately $652,000 mostly with the CEO and CFO for accrued wages and 
fees, along with RD Capital regarding the loan of $100,000 and accrued interest. 
RD Capital Inc. is a company controlled by the D Randhawa, the President and 
CEO of Toro. The debt postponement agreements postpone the debt for 15 
months or sooner if the Company completes a financing and issues sufficient 
shares to extinguish the debt.  
 
Without raising any additional funds, the Company expects that its working 
capital of $47,547 as at March 31, 2015 will be sufficient to fund operations for 
about nine months.  It will accrue payments to related parties and will have 
sufficient funds to pay unrelated third parties for professional, regulatory, 
transfer agent and shareholder information fees and office, rent, administration, 
travel and promotional expenses. 
 
Including raising an additional $250,000 by way of private placement financing, 
the Company expects that its then available working capital of $297,547 would 
be sufficient to fund operations for about 12 months.  Estimated total operating 
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costs during the period are expected to total about $297,547, including 
approximately $65,263 for the Taxco Property exploration program, $40,000 for 
estimated professional, regulatory, transfer agent and shareholder information 
fees for 12 months; $9,000 in estimated office, rent and administration, travel 
and promotional expenses for 12 months; and $180,000 in estimated consulting 
and management fees for 12 months. 
 

(c) the estimated amount of other material capital expenditures during 
that period of time. 

 
N/A. 
 

6.21 Additional disclosure for Issuers with significant equity investees: 
 

if the Issuer has a significant equity investee 

(i) summarized information as to the assets, liabilities and 
results of operations of the equity investee, and 

(ii) the Issuer’s proportionate interest in the equity investee and 
any contingent issuance of securities by the equity investee 
that might significantly affect the Issuer’s share of earnings; 
and 

provide the disclosure in subsection (a) for the following periods 

(i) the two most recently completed financial years, and 

(ii) the most recent year-to-date interim period and the 
comparative year-to-date period presented in the interim 
financial statements included in the Listing Statement, if 
any. 

Subsection (a) does not apply if: 

(i) the information required under that subsection has been 
disclosed in the financial statements included, or 

(ii) the Issuer includes separate financial statements of the 
equity investee for the periods referred to in subsection (b). 

 
N/A. 
  

7. Market for Securities 
 
7.1 Identify the exchange(s) and quotation and trade reporting system(s) on which 

the Issuer's securities are listed and posted for trading or quoted. 
 
	   The Issuer’s securities are currently listed and posted for trading on the TSX Venture Exchange.  

The Issuer has applied to have its common shares listed and posted for trading or quoted on the 
CSE and intends to delist its securities from the TSX Venture Exchange.   
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8. Consolidated Capitalization 
 
8.1 Describe any material change in, and the effect of the material change on, the 

share and loan capital of the Issuer, on a consolidated basis, since the date of 
the comparative financial statements for the Issuer's most recently completed 
financial year contained in the Listing Statement. 
The following table details material changes to the share and loan capital of the Company from 
the date of the financial statements for the Company’s most recently completed financial year-end 
to the date of this Listing Statement. 

Designation of Security 
Number 

Authorized 
Outstanding as at June 30, 

2014 (audited) 
Outstanding as at the date of 

this Listing Statement 
  Amount Number Amount Number 
Common Shares unlimited $2,239,766 24,198,636 $2,239,766 24,198,636 

Long Term Debt n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Short Term Debt n/a $513,645 n/a $657,650 n/a 
Share-based Payment Reserve n/a $208,951 n/a $208,951 n/a 
Deficit n/a $(2,855,824)  n/a $(3,040,097)  n/a 
Total Capitalization n/a $106,538 n/a $66,270 n/a 

 
9. Options to Purchase Securities 
 
9.1 State, in tabular form, as at a specified date not more than 30 days before the 

date of the Listing Statement, information as to options to purchase securities of 
the Issuer or a subsidiary of the Issuer that are held by: 

 
(a) all executive officers and past executive officers of the Issuer as a group 

and all directors and past directors of the Issuer who are not also 
executive officers as a group, indicating the aggregate number of 
executive officers and the aggregate number of directors to whom the 
information applies, without naming them; 

 
(b) all executive officers and past executive officers of all subsidiaries of the 

Issuer as a group and all directors and past directors of those subsidiaries 
who are not also executive officers of the subsidiary as a group, in each 
case, without naming them and excluding individuals referred to in 
paragraph (a), indicating the aggregate number of executive officers and 
the aggregate number of directors to whom the information applies; 

 
(c) all other employees and past employees of the Issuer as a group, without 

naming them; 
 
(d) all other employees and past employees of subsidiaries of the Issuer as a 

group, without naming them;  
 

(e) all consultants of the Issuer as a group, without naming them; and 
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(f) any other person or company, including the underwriter, naming each 
person or company. 

 
Stock Option Plan 

The Company has adopted a stock option plan (the “Plan”) under which it may grant incentive 
stock options (“Options”) to its directors, officers, employees and consultants or any affiliate 
thereof.   The Company’s Plan is a “rolling” stock option plan reserving a maximum of 10% of 
the issued shares of the Company at the time of the stock option grant.  As a “rolling” stock 
option plan, the Plan is required to be re-approved by the shareholders each year at the 
Company’s annual general meeting. 
 
The purpose of the Plan is to attract and motivate directors, senior officers, employees, 
consultants and others providing services to the Company and its subsidiaries, and thereby 
advance the Company’s interests, by affording such persons with an opportunity to acquire an 
equity interest in the Company through the issuance of stock options.  
 
The terms of the Plan authorize the board of directors to grant stock options to optionees on the 
following terms: 
 
1. The aggregate number of shares that may be issued pursuant to options granted under the 

Plan, unless otherwise approved by shareholders, may not exceed that number which is 
equal to 10% of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company at the time of the 
grant. 
 

2. The term of any stock option will not exceed five years.  
 

3. If the Optionee ceases to be an Officer or Director for any reason other than such 
Optionee's death, the expiry date of the Stock Options held by the Optionee shall be the 
90th day following the date the Optionee ceases to be en Officer or Director of the 
Company unless the Optionee continues to be engaged by the Company as an Employee 
or Consultant, in which case the Expiry Date shall remain unchanged, unless the 
Optionee ceases to be an Officer or Director as a result (i) ceasing to meet the 
qualifications set forth in s.124 of the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia); or 
(ii) a special resolution having been passed by the shareholders of the Company pursuant 
to subsection 128(3) of the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), then the 
Expiry Date shall be the date the Optionee ceased to be an Officer or Director of the 
Company.   

 
4. If the Optionee holders his Stock Options as an Employee or Consultant of the Company 

(other than an Employee performing investor relations activities) and such Optionee 
ceases to be an Employee or Consultant of the Company for any reason other than such 
Optionee's death, the expiry date of the Stock Options held by the Optionee shall be the 
30th day following the date the Optionee ceases to be an Employee or Consultant of the 
Company unless the Option Holder ceases to be such as a result of: (i) termination for 
cause; or (ii) by order of the British Columbia Securities Commission, the Exchange, or 
any regulatory body having jurisdiction to so order, in which case the Expiry Date shall 
be the date the Option Holder ceases to be an Employee or Consultant of the Company. 

 
5. Notwithstanding 4. immediately above, in the event that the Optionee holds his or her 

Stock Options as an Employee or Consultant of the Company who provides investor 
relations activities on behalf of the Company, and such Optionee ceases to be an 



- 63 - 
	  

 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

January 2015 
 

  

Employee or Consultant of the Company other than by reason of death, the Expiry Date 
shall be the date the Optionee ceases to be an Employee or Consultant of the Company. 

  
6. If the Optionee ceases to be an Officer, Director, Employee or Consultant because of the 

Optionee's death all Stock Options held by the Optionee shall become immediately 
exercisable and shall be exercisable by the Optionee, the personal representative of the 
Optionee's estate, or the person(s) to who the Stock Options are transferred pursuant to 
the Optionee's will in accordance with the laws of descent and distribution, as applicable, 
for a period of 12 months from the date of death of the Optionee, or in the case of a 
Consultant, or an Employee performing investor relations activities, for a period of one 
month from the date of death of the Optionee. 

 
7. An individual can receive Awards to purchase no more than 5% of the outstanding shares 

of Common Stock in any 12-month period. 
 
8. An Award to an Employee conducting Investor Relations Activities or to a Consultant is 

restricted to an aggregate of 2% of the Company's issued shares in any 12-month period. 
 
9. For any Stock Options granted to Employees, Consultants or Management Company 

Employees, the Company represents that the Optionee is a bona fide Employee, 
Consultant or Management Company Employee as the case may be. 

 
10. The Optionee must be a director, senior officer, employee, consultant or management 

company employee of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company at the time of grant. 
 
11. All options are non-assignable and non-transferable. 
 
12. Disinterested shareholder approval must be obtained for any reduction in the exercise 

price of an option if the Optionee is an insider of the Company at the time of the 
proposed reduction. 

 
Options to Purchase Securities 
 
As at the date of this Listing Statement, a total of 1,400,000 incentive stock options were 
outstanding as follows: 
 

Number of Options Exercise Price Expiry Date 
1,400,000 $0.10 February 11, 2016 

 
The 1,400,000 incentive stock options were held by optionees as follows: 

 

Type of Optionee 
Number of 
Optionees 

Aggregate 
Number of 

Options 
Executive officers and past executive officers of the Issuer 4 1,200,000 
Directors and past directors of the Issuer   
Executive officers and past executive officers of subsidiaries 
of the Issuer 

  

Directors and past directors of subsidiaries of the Issuer   
Employees and past employees of the Issuer   
Employees and past employees of subsidiaries of the Issuer   
Consultants of the Issuer   
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Type of Optionee 
Number of 
Optionees 

Aggregate 
Number of 

Options 
Any other person  2 200,000 

 
10. Description of the Securities 
 
10.1 General - State the description or the designation of each class of equity 

securities and describe all material attributes and characteristics, including: 
 

a) dividend rights; 

b) voting rights; 

c) rights upon dissolution or winding-up; 

d) pre-emptive rights; 

e) conversion or exchange rights; 

f) redemption, retraction, purchase for cancellation or surrender provisions, 

g) sinking or purchase fund provisions; 

h) provisions permitting or restricting the issuance of additional securities and 

any other material restrictions; and 

i) provisions requiring a securityholder to contribute additional capital. 

Common Shares 
 
The Company has one class of shares outstanding: common shares. The Company is authorized 
to issue an unlimited number of common shares without par value. As at the date of this Listing 
Statement, a total of 24,198,636 common shares were issued and outstanding.   
 
All of the common shares of the Company rank equally as to voting rights, participation in a 
distribution of the assets of the Company on a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the 
Company and the entitlement to dividends. The holders of the common shares are entitled to 
receive notice of all meetings of shareholders and to attend and vote the shares at the meetings. 
Each common share carries with it the right to one vote.   
 
In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company or other distribution of 
its assets, the holders of the common shares will be entitled to receive, on a pro rata basis, all of 
the assets remaining after the Company has paid out its liabilities. Distribution in the form of 
dividends, if any, will be set by the board of directors. 
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Preferred Shares 
	  
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of preferred shares with a par value of 
$1.00 per share. The Board of Directors may issue such preferred shares in one or more series, 
determine the maximum number of shares of that series that the Company is authorized to issue, 
create an identifying name for the shares of that series and attach special rights or restrictions to 
the shares of that series.  Except for such rights relating to the election of directors on a default in 
payment of dividends as may be attached to any series of preferred shares, holders of preferred 
shares shall not be entitled, as such, to receive notice of, or to attend or vote at, any general 
meeting of shareholders of the Company.  No preferred shares have been issued by the Company. 

 
10.2 Debt securities - If debt securities are being listed, describe all material attributes 

and characteristics of the indebtedness and the security, if any, for the debt, 
including: 

 
(a) provisions for interest rate, maturity and premium, if any; 

 
(b) conversion or exchange rights; 

 
(c) redemption, retraction, purchase for cancellation or surrender provisions, 

 
(d) sinking or purchase fund provisions; 

 
(e) the nature and priority of any security for the debt securities, briefly 

identifying the principal properties subject to lien or charge; 
 

(f) provisions permitting or restricting the issuance of additional securities, the 
incurring of additional indebtedness and other material negative 
covenants, including restrictions against payment of dividends and 
restrictions against giving security on the assets of the Issuer or its 
subsidiaries, and provisions as to the release or substitution of assets 
securing the debt securities; 

 
(g) the name of the trustee under any indenture relating to the Issuer and 

 
(h) any financial arrangements between the Issuer and any of its affiliates or 

among its affiliates that could affect the security for the indebtedness. 
 
 N/A. 
 
10.4 Other securities - If securities other than equity securities or debt securities are 

being listed, describe fully the material attributes and characteristics of those 
securities. 
	  
N/A. 
 

10.5 Modification of terms: 
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(a) describe provisions about the modification, amendment or variation of any 
rights attached to the securities being listed; and 

 
 N/A. 
 

(b) if the rights of holders of securities may be modified otherwise than in 
accordance with the provisions attached to the securities or the provisions 
of the governing statute relating to the securities, explain briefly. 

 N/A. 

10.6 Other attributes: 

(a) if the rights attaching to the securities being listed are materially limited 
or qualified by the rights of any other class of securities, or if any other 
class of securities ranks ahead of or equally with the securities being 
listed, include information about the other securities that will enable 
investors to understand the rights attaching to the securities being listed; 
and 

	  
N/A. 
	  
(b) if securities of the class being listed may be partially redeemed or 

repurchased, state the manner of selecting the securities to be redeemed 
or repurchased. 

 
Subject to the special rights and restrictions attached to the shares of any class or series and the 
Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), and provided the Company is not insolvent or 
making the payment or providing the consideration would not render the Company insolvent, the 
Company may, if authorized by the directors, purchase or otherwise acquire any of its shares at 
the price and upon the terms determined by the directors. 
 

10.7 Prior Sales - State the prices at which securities of the same class as the 
securities to be listed have been sold within the 12 months before the date of the 
Listing Statement, or are to be sold, by the Issuer or any Related Person and the 
number of securities of the class sold or to be sold at each price. 

	  
During the 12 months preceding the date of this Listing Statement, the Company did not issue 
any common shares or securities convertible into common shares. 

 
10.8 Stock Exchange Price: 
 

a) if shares of the same class as the shares to be listed were or are listed on 
a Canadian stock exchange or traded on a Canadian market, provide the 
price ranges and volume traded on the Canadian stock exchange or 
market on which the greatest volume of trading generally occurs; 

 
b) if shares of the same class as the shares to be listed were or are not listed 

on a Canadian stock exchange or traded on a Canadian market, provide 
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the price ranges and volume traded on the foreign stock exchange or 
market on which the greatest volume of trading generally occurs; and 

 
c) information is to be provided on a monthly basis for each month or, if 

applicable, part month, of the current quarter and the immediately 
preceding quarter and on a quarterly basis for the next preceding seven 
quarters. 

 
The following table provides information with respect to the Company’s trading history on the 
TSX Venture Exchange from April 1, 2013 up until the date of this Listing Statement: 
 

Period 
Price Range ($) 

Volume Low High 
April 2015 0.005 0.005 35,000 
March 2015 0.005 0.005 1,064,000 
February 2015 0.005 0.005 491,500 
January 2015 0.005 0.005 479,000 
October - December 2014 0.005 0.015 1,143,000 
July – September 2014 0.01 0.04 1,344,700 
April - June 2014 0.015 0.02 535,195 
January – March 2014 0.025 0.045 573,000 
October -December 2013 0.015 0.03 733,000 
July - September 2013 0.025 0.04 372,000 
April - June 2013 0.03 0.06 1,252,000 

 
11. Escrowed Securities 
 
11.1 State as of a specified date within 30 days before the date of the Listing 

Statement, in substantially the following tabular form, the number of securities of 
each class of securities of the Issuer held, to the knowledge of the Issuer, in 
escrow (which, for the purposes of this Form includes any securities subject to a 
pooling agreement) and the percentage that number represents of the 
outstanding securities of that class. In a note to the table, disclose the name of 
the depository, if any, and the date of and conditions governing the release of the 
securities from escrow. 

 
 As at the date of this Listing Statement no common shares of the Company were held in escrow. 

 
12. Principal Shareholders  
 
12.1 (1) Provide the following information for each principal shareholder of the 

Issuer as of a specified date not more than 30 days before the date of the 
Listing Statement: 

 
(a) Name; 

 
(b) The number or amount of securities owned of the class to be listed; 
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(c) Whether the securities referred to in subsection 12(1)(b) are owned 
both of record and beneficially, of record only, or beneficially only; 
and 

 
(d) The percentages of each class of securities known by the Issuer to 

be owned. 

 N/A. 

(2) If the Issuer is requalifying following a fundamental change or has 
proposed an acquisition, amalgamation, merger, reorganization or 
arrangement, indicate, to the extent known, the holding of each person of 
company described in paragraph (1) that will exist after giving effect to the 
transaction. 

 
 N/A. 
	  

(3) If, to the knowledge of the Issuer, more than 10 per cent of any class of 
voting securities of the Issuer is held, or is to be held, subject to any voting 
trust or other similar agreement, disclose, to the extent known, the 
designation of the securities, the number or amount of the securities held 
or to be held subject to the agreement and the duration of the agreement.  
State the names and addresses of the voting trustees and outline briefly 
their voting rights and other powers under the agreement. 

 
  N/A. 
	  

(4) If, to the knowledge of the Issuer, any principal shareholder is an associate 
or affiliate of another person or company named as a principal 
shareholder, disclose, to the extent known, the material facts of the 
relationship, including any basis for influence over the Issuer held by the 
person or company other than the holding of voting securities of the 
Issuer. 

 
 N/A. 
	  

(5) In addition to the above, include in a footnote to the table, the required 
calculation(s) on a fully-diluted basis. 

 
  N/A.  
	  
13. Directors and Officers 
 
13.1 List the name and municipality of residence of each director and executive officer 

of the Issuer and indicate their respective positions and offices held with the 
Issuer and their respective principal occupations within the five preceding years. 
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To the knowledge of the Company, the following table sets out information regarding each of the 
Company’s directors and executive officers, including the names, municipality of residence, the 
position and office held and the period of time served in this position, their principal occupation 
for the preceding five years, and the number and percentage of voting securities beneficially 
owned, directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised, as of the date hereof: 
	  
Name, Municipality, 
Province or State and 
Country of Residence 
and Position(s) held Principal occupations within the five preceding years 
Devinder Randhawa 
Kelowna, BC, Canada 
CEO and Director 

CEO of the Company, January 8, 2013 to present; President and founder of 
RD Capital Inc.; CEO of Fission Uranium Corp. 

Greg Downey 
Kelowna, BC, Canada 
CFO and Director 

CFO of the Company, December 13, 2012 to present;  
 
 

Jeremy Ross 
North Vancouver, BC, 
Canada 
Director 

Self employed business and marketing Consultant 

Richard Matthews 
Ladner, BC, Canada 
Director 

Self employed business and marketing Consultant 
 
 

 
13.2 State the period or periods during which each director has served as a director 

and when his or her term of office will expire. 
 

Director Period served as a Director 
Devinder Randhawa January 8, 2013 to date 
Greg Downey December 13, 2012 to date 
Jeremy Ross July 24, 2013 to date 
Richard Matthews November 15, 2013 to date 

 
 Directors hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until their successors are 

appointed. 
 
13.3 State the number and percentage of securities of each class of voting securities 

of the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or 
over which control or direction is exercised by all directors and executive officers 
of the Issuer as a group. 

	   	  
	   400,000(1) common shares (1.65%) 
 

(1)  Based on information provided to the Company by the directors and based on 24,198,636 common 
shares issued and outstanding. 

 
13.4 Disclose the board committees of the Issuer and identify the members of each 

committee. 
	  

The Issuer has one board committee, the Audit Committee, comprised of Devinder Randhawa, 
Jeremy Ross and Richard Matthews. 
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13.5 If the principal occupation of a director or officer of the Issuer is acting as an 
officer of a person or company other than the Issuer, disclose the fact and state 
the principal business of the person or company. 

 
See section 13.1. 

 
13.6 Disclose if a director or officer of the Issuer or a shareholder holding a sufficient 

number of securities of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the Issuer, is, 
or within 10 years before the date of the Listing Statement has been, a director or 
officer of any other Issuer that, while that person was acting in that capacity: 

 
(a) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order, or an order that denied 

the other Issuer access to any exemptions under Ontario securities law, 
for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, state the fact and describe 
the basis on which the order was made and whether the order is still in 
effect; 

 
(b) was subject to an event that resulted, after the director or executive officer 

ceased to be a director or executive officer, in the company being the 
subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the 
relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation, for 
a period of more than 30 consecutive days, state the fact and describe the 
basis on which the order was made and whether the order is still in effect; 

 
(c) became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to 

bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, 
arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver 
manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets, state the fact; or 

 
(d) within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became 

bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or 
insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or 
compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee 
appointed to hold its assets, state the fact. 

 
Except for as disclosed herein, to the knowledge of the Issuer, none of the Issuer’s directors, 
officers or principal shareholders are, or have been within the last 10 years, directors or officers 
of any other issuer that, while that person was acting in that capacity, was the subject of a cease 
trade or similar order or an order that denied the issuer access to any statutory exemptions for a 
period of more than 30 consecutive days or became bankrupt, made a proposal under any 
legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, 
arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee 
appointed to hold the assets of that issuer. 
 

13.7 Describe the penalties or sanctions imposed and the grounds on which they were 
imposed or the terms of the settlement agreement and the circumstances that 
gave rise to the settlement agreement, if a director or officer of the Issuer, or a 
shareholder holding sufficient securities of the Issuer to affect materially the 
control of the Issuer, has: 
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(a) been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to 

Canadian securities legislation or by a Canadian securities regulatory 
authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian 
securities regulatory authority; or 

 
(b) been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or 

regulatory body that would be likely to be considered important to a 
reasonable investor making an investment decision. 

	  
To the knowledge of the Company, none of the Company’s directors, officers or principal 
shareholders are, or have been within the last 10 years, the subject of any penalties or sanctions 
imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or by a Canadian securities 
regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian securities 
regulatory authority or been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or 
regulatory body that would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable investor making 
an investment decision. 

	  
13.8 Despite section 13.7, no disclosure is required of a settlement agreement 

entered into before December 31, 2000 unless the disclosure would likely be 
important to a reasonable investor in making an investment decision. 

 
13.9 If a director or officer of the Issuer, or a shareholder holding sufficient securities 

of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the Issuer, or a personal holding 
company of any such persons has, within the 10 years before the date of the 
Listing Statement, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation 
relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or been subject to or instituted any 
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, 
receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the director or officer, 
state the fact. 

 
 To the knowledge of the Company, none of the Company’s directors, officers or principal 

shareholders, or any personal holding company of such persons, has, within the last 10 years, 
become bankrupt or made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency 
or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had 
a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold his, her or its assets. 

 
13.10 Disclose particulars of existing or potential material conflicts of interest between 

the Issuer or a subsidiary of the Issuer and a director or officer of the Issuer or a 
subsidiary of the Issuer. 

 
The directors of the Company are required by law to act honestly and in good faith with a view to 
the best interests of the Company and to disclose any interests, which they may have in any 
project or opportunity of the Company. If a conflict of interest arises at a meeting of the board of 
directors, any director in a conflict will disclose his interest and abstain from voting on such 
matter. 
 
To the best of the Company's knowledge, and other than disclosed herein, there are no known 
existing or potential conflicts of interest between the Company and its directors and officers 
except that certain of the directors and officers may serve as directors and/or officers of other 



- 72 - 
	  

 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

January 2015 
 

  

companies, and therefore it is possible that a conflict may arise between their duties to the 
Company and their duties as a director or officer of such other companies. 

 
13.11 Management — In addition to the above provide the following information for 

each member of management: 
 

(a) state the individual's name, age, position and responsibilities with the 
Issuer and relevant educational background; 

 
(b) state whether the individual works full time for the Issuer or what 

proportion of the individual's time will be devoted to the Issuer; 
 

(c) state whether the individual is an employee or independent contractor of 
the Issuer; 

 
(d) state the individual's principal occupations or employment during the five 

years prior to the date of the Listing Statement, disclosing with respect to 
each organization as of the time such occupation or employment was 
carried on: 

 
(i) its name and principal business, 

 
(ii) if applicable, that the organization was an affiliate of the Issuer, 

 
(iii) positions held by the individual, and 

 
(iv) whether it is still carrying on business, if known to the individual; 

 
(e) describe the individual's experience in the Issuer's industry; and 

 
(f) state whether the individual has entered into a non-competition or non-

disclosure agreement with the Issuer. 
 

Devinder Randhawa, age 55, has been a director and CEO of the Company since January 2013.   
Mr. Randhawa is an experienced senior manager with broad international experience in 
developing resource, mining exploration and energy companies. Mr. Randhawa is President and 
founder of RD Capital Inc., a privately held consulting firm since 1994. Mr. Randhawa worked in 
the brokerage industry for six years as an investment advisor and corporate finance analyst. Mr. 
Randhawa was formerly CEO of Strathmore Minerals Corp. which he founded in 1996. He is 
currently CEO of Fission Uranium Corp. which he founded in 2007. Mr. Randhawa received a 
Bachelors degree in Business Administration from Trinity Western College, Langley, B.C. in 
1983 and a Masters in Business Administration from the University of British Columbia in 1985. 
 
Mr. Randhawa will be devoting about 20% of his business time to the affairs of the Company. 
Mr. Randhawa has not entered into a non-competition or a non-disclosure agreement with the 
Company. 
 
Greg Downey, age 54, has been a director and CFO of the Company since December 2012.  Mr. 
Downey has over 25 years of diverse financial experience in the oil and gas, manufacturing, 
construction and the public sectors. Mr. Downey has provided business advisory and financial 
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accounting services to many medium and large size organizations. Mr. Downey obtained his 
Certified Management Accountant designation in 1992 and is a member of the Certified 
Management Accountants of British Columbia. He also holds a diploma in Business 
Administration from the Southern Alberta Institute of Technology. 
 
Mr. Downey will be devoting about 20% of his business time to the affairs of the Company. Mr. 
Downey has not entered into a non-competition or a non-disclosure agreement with the 
Company. 
 
Jeremy Ross, age 39, has been a director of the Company since July 2013.  Mr. Ross has more 
than fifteen years in corporate development and marketing for junior mining and oil and gas 
companies. He is the founder/president of Opus 3 Consulting – a successful corporate 
development firm based in Vancouver, Canada. 
 
Mr. Ross will be devoting about 5% of his business time to the affairs of the Company. Mr. Ross 
has not entered into a non-competition or a non-disclosure agreement with the Company. 
 
Richard Matthews, age 51, has been a director of the Company since November 2013. Mr. 
Matthews is a marketing and investor relations consultant and manager of investor relations for 
Fission Uranium Corp. Prior to joining Fission, Mr. Matthews worked as an independent business 
development consultant. Mr. Matthews obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Arts from the University 
of British Columbia in 1989. 
 
Mr. Matthews will be devoting about 5% of his business time to the affairs of the Company. Mr. 
Matthews has not entered into a non-competition or a non-disclosure agreement with the 
Company. 
	  

14. Capitalization 
 
14.1 Prepare and file the following chart for each class of securities to be listed:  
 
Issued Capital 
 Number of 

Securities 
(non-
diluted) 

Number of 
Securities 
(fully-
diluted) 

% of 
Issued 
(non-
diluted) 

% of 
Issued  
(fully 
diluted) 

Public Float 
 

 
 

   

Total outstanding (A)  24,198,636 25,998,636 100% 100% 
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 Number of 
Securities 
(non-
diluted) 

Number of 
Securities 
(fully-
diluted) 

% of 
Issued 
(non-
diluted) 

% of 
Issued  
(fully 
diluted) 

Held by Related Persons or 
employees of the Issuer or Related 
Person of the Issuer, or by persons or 
companies who beneficially own or 
control, directly or indirectly, more 
than a 5% voting position in the 
Issuer (or who would beneficially own 
or control, directly or indirectly, more 
than a 5% voting position in the 
Issuer upon exercise or conversion of 
other securities held) (B) 400,000 1,600,000 1.7% 6.2% 
     
Total Public Float (A-B) 23,798,636 24,398,636 98.3% 93.8% 
     
Freely-Tradeable Float 
 

    

Number of outstanding securities 
subject to resale restrictions, 
including restrictions imposed by 
pooling or other arrangements or 
in a shareholder agreement and 
securities held by control block 
holders (C)  0 0 0.00% 0.00% 
     
Total Tradeable Float (A-C) 24,198,636 24,398,636 100.0% 100.0% 
 
Public Securityholders (Registered) 
 

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "public securityholders" are persons 
other than persons enumerated in section (B) of the previous chart. List 
registered holders only. 

Class of Security 
 

    

Size of Holding   Number of 
holders 

 Total number of 
securities 

     
1 – 99 securities     
     
100 – 499 securities     
     
500 – 999 securities     
     
1,000 – 1,999 securities  108  108,000 
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2,000 – 2,999 securities  11  22,000 
     
3,000 – 3,999 securities  2  6,000 
     
4,000 – 4,999 securities  5  20,000 
     
5,000 or more securities  18  1,009,500 
     
  144  1,165,500 

 
Public Securityholders (Beneficial) 
 

Instruction: Include (i) beneficial holders holding securities in their own name as 
registered shareholders; and (ii) beneficial holders holding securities through an 
intermediary where the Issuer has been given written confirmation of 
shareholdings. For the purposes of this section, it is sufficient if the intermediary 
provides a breakdown by number of beneficial holders for each line item below; 
names and holdings of specific beneficial holders do not have to be disclosed. If 
an intermediary or intermediaries will not provide details of beneficial holders, 
give the aggregate position of all such intermediaries in the last line. 

Class of Security 
 

    

Size of Holding   Number of 
holders 

 Total number of 
securities 

     
1 – 99 securities     
     
100 – 499 securities  1  333 
     
500 – 999 securities  4  2,000 
     
1,000 – 1,999 securities  118  118,000 
     
2,000 – 2,999 securities  47  95,628 
     
3,000 – 3,999 securities  3  9,500 
     
4,000 – 4,999 securities  7  28,000 
     
5,000 or more securities  128  16,722,814 
     
Not disclosed    6,822,361 
     
  308  23,798,636 
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Non-Public Securityholders (Registered) 
 

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "non-public securityholders" are 
persons enumerated in section (B) of the issued capital chart.  
 

Class of Security 
 

    

Size of Holding   Number of 
holders 

 Total number of 
securities 

     
1 – 99 securities     
     
100 – 499 securities     
     
500 – 999 securities     
     
1,000 – 1,999 securities     
     
2,000 – 2,999 securities     
     
3,000 – 3,999 securities     
     
4,000 – 4,999 securities     
     
5,000 or more securities  1  400,000 
     
  1  400,000 

 
14.2 Provide the following details for any securities convertible or exchangeable into 

any class of listed securities 
 
Description of Security (include conversion / 
exercise terms, including conversion / exercise 
price) 

Number of convertible / 
exchangeable securities 
outstanding 

Number of listed 
securities issuable upon 
conversion / exercise 

Incentive stock options.   Each option is exercisable 
to purchase one common share at a price of $0.10 
per common share at any time on or before 
February 11, 2016. 

1,400,000 1,400,000 

 
14.3 Provide details of any listed securities reserved for issuance that are not included 

in section 14.2. 
  
 N/A. 
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15. Executive Compensation 
 
15.1 Attach a Statement of Executive Compensation from Form 51-102F6 or any 

successor instrument and describe any intention to make any material changes 
to that compensation. 

 
Compensation Discussion and Analysis 
 
“NEO” or “Named Executive Officer” means each of the following individuals:  

 
(a)  the Company’s chief executive officer (“CEO”); 
(b)  the Company’s chief financial officer (“CFO”);  
(c)  each of the three most highly compensated executive officers of the Company, including 

any of its subsidiaries, or the three most highly compensated individuals acting in a 
similar capacity, other than the CEO and CFO, at the end of the most recently completed 
financial year whose total compensation was, individually, more than $150,000 for that 
financial year; and 

(d)  each individual who would be an NEO under paragraph (c) but for the fact that the 
individual was neither an executive officer of the Company or its subsidiaries, nor acting 
in a similar capacity, at the end of that financial year; 

 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 the Company had two NEOs, namely Devinder Randhawa, 
who was appointed CEO on January 8, 2013, and Greg Downey, who was appointed CFO on December 
13, 2012.   
 
The Company’s Named Executive Officers were compensated for their contributions to the Company 
during the fiscal year, which included cash compensation pursuant to certain agreements with the 
Company.  
 
Cash compensation amounts to executive officers are determined solely by board discussion without any 
formal objectives, criteria or analysis. Option based awards to executive officers are determined by the 
board which considers both the past and future expected contributions of the individual officers, previous 
grants of stock options, and the number of available stock options.  
 
Summary Compensation Table 
 
The following table sets out all compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to the Named Executive 
Officers for each of the last three fiscal years. No other executive officer’s total salary and bonus during 
such periods exceeded $150,000. 
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(1) Financial Years ended June 30. 
(2) Value of option-based awards calculated using Black-Scholes model. 

 
Incentive Plan Awards 
 
Management of the Company believes that awards of equity in the Company serve an important function 
in furnishing directors, officers, employees and consultants (collectively the “Eligible Parties”) of the 
Company an opportunity to invest in the Company in a simple and effective manner and better aligning 
the interests of the Eligible Parties with those of the Company and its shareholders through ownership of 
shares in the Company.  

The following table sets out all stock options and share based awards granted or awarded to, earned by or 
paid to the Named Executive Officers that are outstanding at the end of the most recently completed 
financial year.  
 

 Option-based Awards Share-based Awards 
Name 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(a) 

Number of 
securities 

underlying 
unexercised 

options 
(#) 

 
 

(b) 

Option 
exercise 

price 
($) 

 
 
 
 

(c) 

Option 
expiration 

date 
 
 
 
 
 

(d) 

Value of 
unexercised 

in-the-
money 
options 

($) 
 
 

(e) 

Number of 
shares or 
units of 

shares that 
have not 
vested 

(#) 
 

(f) 

Market or 
payout value 

of share-
based awards 
that have not 

vested 
($) 

 
(g) 

Market or 
payout value 

of vested 
share-based 
awards not 
paid out or 
distributed 

($) 
(h) 

Devinder 
Randhawa 
CEO 

600,000 $0.10 Feb 11/16 Nil(1) N/A N/A N/A 

Greg Downey 
CFO 300,000 $0.10 Feb 11/16 Nil(1) N/A N/A N/A 

(1) The closing market price of the Company’s common shares on June 30, 2014 was $0.015. None of the 

Name and 
principal 
position 

 
(a) 

Year(1) 
 

(b) 

Salary 
($) 

 
(c) 

Share-
based 

awards 
($) 

 
(d) 

Option-
based 

awards(2) 
($) 

 
(e) 

Non-equity 
incentive plan 
compensation 

($) 
 

(f) 

Pension 
value 

($) 
 

(g) 

All other 
compensation 

($) 
 

(h) 

Total 
compensation 

($) 
 

(i) 

Annual 
incentive 

plans 
 

(f1) 

Long-
term 

incentive 
plans 

 
(f2) 

Devinder 
Randhawa  
CEO 

2014 
2013 
2012 

$120,000 
$55,000 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
$23,160 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

$120,000 
$78,160 

Nil 
William 
Galine 
Former 
President 

2014 
2013 
2012 

Nil 

$24,000 
$48,000 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
$24,000 
$48,000 

Greg Downey 
CFO 

2014 
2013 
2012 

$60,000 

$30,000 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
$11,580 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

$60,000 
$41,580 

Nil 
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unexercised options were “in-the-money” as at June 30, 2014. 
 
Incentive plan awards – value vested or earned during the year 
 
The following table sets out the value of option or stock based awards that vested during the most 
recently completed financial year and the value of non-equity incentive plan compensation earned during 
the most recently completed financial year for each NEO.  
 

Name 
 
 
 
 

(a) 

Option-based awards – 
Value vested during the 

year 
($) 

 
(b) 

Share-based awards – 
Value vested during the 

year 
($) 

 
(c) 

Non-equity incentive plan 
compensation – Value earned 

during the year 
($) 

 
(d) 

Devinder Randhawa 
CEO $17,370 N/A N/A 

Greg Downey 
CFO $8,685 N/A N/A 

 
Termination and Change of Control Benefits  
 
The Company does not have any contract, agreement, plan or arrangement that provides for payments to 
an NEO at, following or in connection with any termination (whether voluntary, involuntary or 
constructive), resignation, retirement, a change in control of the company or a change in an NEO’s 
responsibilities. 
 
Director Compensation Table 
 
The following table sets out details of compensation provided to the directors who are not NEOs for the 
Company’s most recently completed financial year.  
 

Name 
 

(a) 

Fees 
earned 

($) 
 

(b) 

Share-
based 

awards 
($) 

 
(c) 

Option-
based 

awards(1) 
($) 

 
(d) 

Non-equity 
incentive plan 
compensation 

($) 
 

(e) 

Pension 
value 

($) 
 

(f) 

All other 
compensation 

($) 
 

(g) 

Total 
($) 

 
(h) 

Mark Lawson(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Jeremy Ross Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Richard Matthews Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

(1) Value of option-based awards calculated using Black-Scholes model. 
(2)

  Mr. Lawson ceased to be a director of the Company effective November 18, 2013.  
 
Narrative Discussion 
 
During the most recently completed fiscal year, there were no arrangements, standard or otherwise, for 
cash or non-cash compensation pursuant to which directors were compensated by the Company for their 
attendance at board meetings or in their capacity as directors.  The directors may be reimbursed for actual 
expenses reasonably incurred in connection with the performance of their duties as directors.   
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Share-based awards, option-based awards and non-equity incentive plan compensation 
 
Outstanding share-based awards and option-based awards 

The following table sets out all stock options and share based awards granted or awarded to, earned by or 
paid to the Company’s directors who are not NEOs that are outstanding at the end of the most recently 
completed financial year.  
 

 Option-based Awards Share-based Awards 
Name 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(a) 

Number of 
securities 

underlying 
unexercised 

options 
(#) 

 
 

(b) 

Option 
exercise 

price 
($) 

 
 
 
 

(c) 

Option 
expiration 

date 
 
 
 
 
 

(d) 

Value of 
unexercised 

in-the-
money 
options 

($) 
 
 

(e) 

Number of 
shares or 
units of 

shares that 
have not 
vested 

(#) 
 

(f) 

Market or 
payout value 

of share-
based awards 
that have not 

vested 
($) 

 
(g) 

Market or 
payout value 

of vested 
share-based 
awards not 
paid out or 
distributed 

($) 
(h) 

Jeremy Ross 200,000 $0.10 Feb. 11/16 Nil(1) N/A N/A N/A 
Richard Matthews 100,000 $0.10 Feb. 11/16 Nil(1) N/A N/A N/A 

(1)
  The closing market price of the Company’s common shares on June 30, 2014 was $0.015. None of the 

unexercised options were “in-the-money” as at June 30, 2014. 
 
Incentive plan awards – value vested or earned during the year 
 
The following table sets out the value of option or stock based awards that vested during the most 
recently completed financial year and the value of non-equity incentive plan compensation earned during 
the most recently completed financial year for each director who is not a NEO.  
 

Name 
 
 
 
 

(a) 

Option-based awards – 
Value vested during the 

year 
($) 

 
(b) 

Share-based awards – 
Value vested during the 

year 
($) 

 
(c) 

Non-equity incentive plan 
compensation – Value earned 

during the year 
($) 

 
(d) 

Mark Lawson(1) N/A N/A N/A 
Jeremy Ross $5,790 N/A N/A 
Richard Matthews $2,895 N/A N/A 

(1)
  Mr. Lawson ceased to be a director of the Company effective November 18, 2013.  

 
Intended Material Changes to Executive Compensation 
 
N/A. 
 
16. Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers 
 
16.1 Aggregate Indebtedness 
 
 See section 16.2. 
 
16.2 Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers under (1) Securities 

Purchase and (2) Other Programs 
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At no time prior to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, at no time during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014 and at no time from June 30, 2014 to the date of this Listing Statement, was a 
director, executive officer, employee, proposed management nominee for election as a director of 
the Company or any associate of any such director, executive officer, or proposed management 
nominee of the Company or any former director, executive officer or employee of the Company 
or any of its subsidiaries indebted to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or was indebted to 
another entity where such indebtedness is or has been the subject of a guarantee, support 
agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by the 
Company or any of its subsidiaries, other than routine indebtedness. 
 

17.  Risk Factors 

17.1 Disclose risk factors relating to the Issuer and its business, such as cash flow 
and liquidity problems, if any, experience of management, the general risks 
inherent in the business carried on by the Issuer, environmental and health risks, 
reliance on key personnel, regulatory constraints, economic or political 
conditions and financial history and any other matter that would be likely to 
influence an investor’s decision to purchase securities of the Issuer. 

17.2  If there is a risk that securityholders of the Issuer may become liable to make an 
additional contribution beyond the price of the security, disclose that risk. 

17.3 Describe any risk factors material to the Issuer that a reasonable investor would 
consider relevant to an investment in the securities being listed and that are not 
otherwise described under section 17.1 or 17.2. 

 
Exploration and Development. 
The Property is in an exploration stage only and is without a known body of commercial ore. 
Development of the Property will only follow upon obtaining satisfactory results. Exploration and 
development of natural resources involve a high degree of risk and few properties which are 
explored are ultimately developed into producing properties. There is no assurance that the 
Company’s exploration and development activities will result in any discoveries of commercial 
bodies of ore. The long-term profitability of the Company’s operations will be in part directly 
related to the cost and success of its exploration programs, which may be affected by a number of 
factors. Substantial expenditures are required to establish reserves through drilling, to develop 
processes to extract the resources and, in the case of new properties, to develop the extraction and 
processing facilities and infrastructure at any site chosen for extraction. Although substantial 
benefits may be derived from the discovery of a major deposit, no assurance can be given that 
resources will be discovered in sufficient quantities to justify commercial operations or that the 
funds required for development can be obtained on a timely basis.  
 
Options and Joint Ventures. 
The Company may, in the future, be unable to meet its share of costs incurred under option or 
joint venture agreements to which it is a party and the Company may have its interest in the 
properties subject to such agreements reduced as a result. Furthermore, if other parties to such 
agreements do not meet their share of such costs, the Company may be unable to finance the cost 
required to complete recommended programs.  
 
Title to Assets. 
While the Company has followed and intends to follow certain due diligence procedures with 
respect to title for any concessions in which it has or will acquire a material interest, there is no 
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guarantee that title to such concessions will be not challenged or impugned. In some countries, 
the system for recording title to the rights to explore, develop and mine natural resources is such 
that a title opinion provides only minimal comfort that the holder has title. Also, in many 
countries, claims have been made and new claims are being made by aboriginal peoples that call 
into question the rights granted by the governments of those countries.  
 
Value of Company. 
The Company’s assets are of indeterminate value. For further particulars see the financial 
statements scheduled hereto.  
 
Negative Cash Flow 
The Company had negative cash flow from operating activities in its most recently financial year 
being the year ended June 30, 2014.  
 
Competitive pressures may adversely affect the Company.   
The resource industry is intensely competitive in all of its phases, and the Company competes 
with many companies possessing greater financial resources and technical facilities than itself. 
Competition could adversely affect the Company’s ability to acquire suitable properties for 
exploration in the future.  
 
The Company has no operating history and an evolving business model. 
The Company has a very limited operating history and its business model is still evolving. The 
Company has not earned any revenue and the development of its exploration and evaluation 
assets are still in an infancy stage. The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is 
dependent upon its ability to generate future profitable operations and/or to obtain necessary 
financing to meet its obligations and repay its liabilities. There can be no assurance that the 
Company will achieve profitability or obtain future financing. 
 
Operating Hazards and Risks May be Insurmountable and/or Uninsurable. 
Exploration for natural resources involves many risks, which even a combination of experience, 
knowledge and careful evaluation may not be able to overcome. Operations in which the 
Company has a direct or indirect interest will be subject to all the hazards and risks normally 
incidental to exploration, development and production of resources, any of which could result in 
work stoppages, damage to persons or property and possible environmental damage. Although the 
Company has or will obtain liability insurance in an amount which it considers adequate, the 
nature of these risks is such that liabilities might exceed policy limits, the liabilities and hazards 
might not be insurable against, or the Company might not elect to insure itself against such 
liabilities due to high premium costs or other reasons, in which event the Company could incur 
significant costs that could have a material adverse effect upon its financial condition. 
 
Fluctuating Prices of Raw Materials May Adversely Affect the Company. 
The Company’s revenues, if any, are expected to be in large part derived from the extraction and 
sale of base and precious metals. The price of those commodities has fluctuated widely, 
particularly in recent years, and is affected by numerous factors beyond the Company’s control 
including international, economic and political trends, expectations of inflation, currency 
exchange fluctuations, interest rates, global or regional consumptive patterns, speculative 
activities and increased production due to new extraction developments and improved extraction 
and production methods. The effect of these factors on the price of base and precious metals, and 
therefore the economic viability of any of the Company’s exploration projects, cannot accurately 
be predicted.  
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Changing Environmental Regulations May Adversely Affect the Company. 
All phases of the Company’s operations are subject to environmental regulation in the various 
jurisdictions in which it operates. Environmental legislation is evolving in a manner which will 
require stricter standards and enforcement, increased fines and penalties for noncompliance, more 
stringent environmental assessments of proposed projects and a heightened degree of 
responsibility for companies and their officers, directors and employees. There is no assurance 
that future changes in environmental regulation, if any, will not adversely affect the Company’s 
operations. 
 
Political and Economic Instability May Adversely Affect the Company. 
The Company may be affected by possible political or economic instability. The risks include, but 
are not limited to, terrorism, military repression, extreme fluctuations in currency exchange rates 
and high rates of inflation. Changes in resource development or investment policies or shifts in 
political attitude in certain countries may adversely affect the Company’s business. Operations 
may be affected in varying degrees by government regulations with respect to restrictions on 
production, price controls, export controls, income taxes, expropriation of property, maintenance 
of claims, environmental legislation, land use, land claims of local people, water use and mine 
safety. The effect of these factors cannot be accurately predicted.  
 
Loss of Key Management Personnel Could Adversely Affect the Company. 
The Company is dependent on a relatively small number of key employees, the loss of any of 
whom could have an adverse effect on the Company. 
 
Requirement of New Capital. 
As an exploration company without revenues, the Company typically needs more capital than it 
has available to it or can expect to generate through the sale of its products. In the past, the 
Company has had to raise, by way of equity financing, considerable funds to meet its capital 
needs. There is no guarantee that the Company will be able to continue to raise funds needed for 
its business. Failure to raise the necessary funds in a timely fashion could limit the Company’s 
growth. 
 
Lack of Dividends. 
The Company has not paid dividends in the past and does not anticipate paying dividends in the 
near future. The Company expects to retain its earnings to finance further growth and, when 
appropriate, retire debt. 
 
Lack of Share Liquidity. 
The common shares of the Company are subject to certain trade restrictions, which may include a 
hold period restricting the trading of the securities.  
 

18. Promoters  
 
18.1 For a person or company that is, or has been within the two years immediately 

preceding the date of the Listing Statement, a promoter of the Issuer or of a 
subsidiary of the Issuer, state: 

 
(a) the person or company's name; 

 
(b) the number and percentage of each class of voting securities and equity 

securities of the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries beneficially owned, 
directly or indirectly, or over which control is exercised; 
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(c) the nature and amount of anything of value, including money, property, 

contracts, options or rights of any kind received or to be received by the 
promoter directly or indirectly from the Issuer or from a subsidiary of the 
Issuer, and the nature and amount of any assets, services or other 
consideration therefor received or to be received by the Issuer or a 
subsidiary of the Issuer in return; and 

 
(d) for an asset acquired within the two years before the date of the Listing 

Statement or thereafter, or to be acquired, by the Issuer or by a subsidiary 
of the Issuer from a promoter: 

 
(i) the consideration paid or to be paid for the asset and the method by 

which the consideration has been or will be determined, 
 

(ii) the person or company making the determination referred to in 
subparagraph (i) and the person or company's relationship with the 
Issuer, the promoter, or an associate or affiliate of the Issuer or of the 
promoter, and 

 
(iii) the date that the asset was acquired by the promoter and the cost of 

the asset to the promoter. 
	  
N/A.  

18.2 (1) If a promoter referred to in section 18.1 is, as at the date hereof, or was 
within 10 years before the date hereof, a director, chief executive officer, 
or chief financial officer of any person or company that: 

a) was subject to an order that was issued while the promoter 
was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or 
chief financial officer; or 

b) was subject to an order that was issued after the promoter ceased 
to be a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer and 
which resulted from an event that occurred while the promoter was 
acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief 
financial officer, 

state the fact and describe the basis on which the order was made and 
whether the order is still in effect. 
	  
N/A. 

 
(2) For the purposes of section 18.2 (1), “order” means: 

 
(a) a cease trade order; 
 
(b) an order similar to a cease trade order; or 
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(c) an order that denied the relevant person or company access to 

any exemption under securities legislation, that was in effect for a 
period of more than 30 consecutive days. 

 (3)  If a promoter referred to in section 18.2 (1): 

(a) is, as at the date hereof, or has been within the 10 years before the 
date hereof, a director or executive officer of any person or company 
that, while the promoter was acting in that capacity, or within a year 
of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, 
made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or 
insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, 
arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver 
manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets, state the fact; or 

	  
	   N/A. 
 
	  (b) has, within the 10 years before the date hereof, become bankrupt, 

made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or 
insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any proceedings, 
arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, 
receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the 
promoter, state the fact. 

	  
 N/A. 

 (4)  Describe the penalties or sanctions imposed and the grounds on which 
they were imposed or the terms of the settlement agreement and the 
circumstances that gave rise to the settlement agreement, if a promoter 
referred to in section 18.2(1) has been subject to: 

(a) any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to provincial 
and territorial securities legislation or by a provincial and territorial 
securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement 
agreement with a provincial and territorial securities regulatory 
authority; or 

	  
	   N/A.   

(b) any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory 
body that would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable 
investor in making an investment decision. 
	  

	   	   	   N/A. 

 (5)  Despite section 18.2(4), no disclosure is required of a settlement 
agreement entered into before December 31, 2000 unless the disclosure 
would likely be considered important to a reasonable investor in making 
an investment decision. 
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19. Legal Proceedings 
 
19.1 Describe any legal proceedings material to the Issuer to which the Issuer or a 

subsidiary of the Issuer is a party or of which any of their respective property is 
the subject matter and any such proceedings known to the Issuer to be 
contemplated, including the name of the court or agency, the date instituted, the 
principal parties to the proceedings, the nature of the claim, the amount claimed, 
if any, if the proceedings are being contested, and the present status of the 
proceedings. 

 
The Company is not aware of any legal proceedings or pending legal proceedings to which the 
Company is or is likely to be a party to or of which its business is likely to be the subject of. 

 
19.2 Regulatory actions - Describe any: 
 

(a) penalties or sanctions imposed against the Issuer by a court relating to 
provincial and territorial securities legislation or by a securities regulatory 
authority within the three years immediately preceding the date hereof; 

 
(b) other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body 

against the Issuer necessary to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all 
material facts relating to the securities being listed; and 

 
(c) settlement agreements the Issuer entered into before a court relating to 

provincial and territorial securities legislation or with a securities 
regulatory authority within the three years immediately preceding the date 
hereof. 

 
	   N/A. 
 
20. Interest of Management and Others in Material Transactions 
 
20.1 Describe, and state the approximate amount of, any material interest, direct or 

indirect, of any of the following persons or companies in any transaction within 
the three years before the date of the Listing Statement, or in any proposed 
transaction, that has materially affected or will materially affect the Issuer or a 
subsidiary of the Issuer: 

 
(a) any director or executive officer of the Issuer; 

 
(b) a person or company that is the direct or indirect beneficial owner of, or 

who exercises control or direction over, more than 10 percent of any class 
or series of your outstanding voting securities; and 

 
(c) an associate or affiliate of any of the persons or companies referred to in 

paragraphs (a) or (b). 
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Except as set out above in section 6.10 above, the directors, senior officers and principal 
shareholders of the Company or any associate or affiliate of the foregoing have had no material 
interest, direct or indirect, in any transactions in which the Company has participated within the 
three year period prior to the date of this Listing Statement, or will have any material interest in 
any proposed transaction, which has materially affected or will materially affect the Company. 

 
21. Auditors, Transfer Agents and Registrars 
 
21.1 State the name and address of the auditor of the Issuer. 
 

The Company’s auditor is DeVisser Gray LLP, Chartered Accountants, located at 401 – 905 West 
Pender Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 1L6. 

 
21.2 For each class of securities, state the name of any transfer agent, registrar, 

trustee, or other agent appointed by the Issuer to maintain the securities register 
and the register of transfers for such securities and indicate the location (by 
municipality) of each of the offices of the Issuer or transfer agent, registrar, 
trustee or other agent where the securities register and register of transfers are 
maintained or transfers of securities are recorded.   

 
	   The transfer agent and registrar of the Company’s common shares is Computershare Trust 

Company of Canada, located at 510 Burrard Street, 2nd Floor, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 
3B9. 

 
22. Material Contracts 
 
22.1 Give particulars of every material contract, other than contracts entered into in 

the ordinary course of business that was entered into within the two years before 
the date of Listing Statement by the Issuer or a subsidiary of the Issuer. 

 
N/A.  

 
22.2 If applicable, attach a copy of any co-tenancy, unitholders' or limited partnership 

agreement. 
 
 N/A. 
 
23. Interest of Experts 
 
23.1 Disclose all direct or indirect interests in the property of the Issuer or of a Related 

Person of the Issuer received or to be received by a person or company whose 
profession or business gives authority to a statement made by the person or 
company and who is named as having prepared or certified a part of the Listing 
Statement or prepared or certified a report or valuation described or included in 
the Listing Statement. 

 
23.2 Disclose the beneficial ownership, direct or indirect, by a person or company 

referred to in section 23.1 of any securities of the Issuer or any Related Person of 
the Issuer. 
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23.3 For the purpose of section 23.2, if the ownership is less than one per cent, a 

general statement to that effect shall be sufficient. 
 
23.4 If a person, or a director, officer or employee of a person or company referred to 

in section 23.1 is or is expected to be elected, appointed or employed as a 
director, officer or employee of the Issuer or of any associate or affiliate of the 
Issuer, disclose the fact or expectation. 

 
The information on the Taxco Property is summarized from the report titled “Technical Report on 
the Taxco Property” (the “Report”) dated October 31, 2014 prepared by Kristian Whitehead, 
P.Geo. Mr. Whitehead is a Qualified Person. A copy of the Report can be found on the 
Company’s disclosure page on www.sedar.com after it has been posted.  Mr. Whitehead does not 
have any registered or beneficial interests, direct or indirect, in any securities or other property of 
the Company or any of the Company’s associates or affiliates as at the date of this Listing 
Statement, did not have any such interests at the time of the preparation of the Report and is not 
expected to receive any such interests in the future.  

 
The audited financial statements of the Company included with this Listing Statement have been 
subject to an audit by DeVisser Gray LLP, Chartered Accountants and their audit report is 
included herein.  DeVisser Gray LLP have advised that they are independent with respect to the 
Company within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of British Columbia.  

 
24. Other Material Facts 
 
24.1 Give particulars of any material facts about the Issuer and its securities that are 

not disclosed under the preceding items and are necessary in order for the 
Listing Statement to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts 
relating to the Issuer and its securities. 

  
 N/A. 
 
25. Financial Statements  
 
25.1  Provide the following audited financial statement for the Issuer: 

(a) copies of all financial statements including the auditor's reports required 
to be prepared and filed under applicable securities legislation for the 
preceding three years as if the Issuer were subject to such law; and 

 
(b) a copy of financial statements for any completed interim period of the 

current fiscal year. 
 
	   Audited financial statements for the financial years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 and 

unaudited financial statements for the nine months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 are attached 
hereto as Schedule I. 
 

25.2 For Issuers re-qualifying for listing following a fundamental change provide 
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(a) the information required in sections 5.1 to 5.3 for the target; 
 
(b) financial statement for the target prepared in accordance with the 

requirements of National Instrument 41-101 General Prospectus 
Requirements as if the target were the Issuer; 

(c) pro-forma consolidated financial statements for the New Issuer giving 
effect to the transaction for: 

 
(i) the last full fiscal year of the Issuer, and 

(ii) any completed interim period of the current fiscal year.  

 N/A. 
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CERTIFICATE OF THE ISSUER 

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, Toro Resources Corp. 
applies for the listing of the above-mentioned securities on CSE.  The foregoing 
contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material information relating to Toro 
Resources Corp. It contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to 
state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to prevent a 
statement that is made from being false or misleading in light of the circumstances in 
which it was made. 

Dated at Vancouver, British Columbia 

this 30th day of April, 2015. 

 

“Devinder Randhawa” 

 
 
 
 
“Greg Downey” 

Devinder Randhawa 
Chief Executive Officer  

 Greg Downey 
Chief Financial Officer  

 
 

  

“Jeremy Ross”  “Richard Matthews” 
Jeremy Ross 
Director 

 Richard Matthews 
Director 
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Schedule I – Financial Statements 

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

 
	  



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 

  



 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Shareholders of Toro Resources Corp., 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Toro Resources Corp. and its subsidiary, which 
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at June 30, 2014, June 30, 2013, and the consolidated 
statements of net loss and comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity (deficiency) for the years ended June 30, 
2014 and June 30, 2013 and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial 
statements are free of material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Toro 
Resources Corp. and its subsidiary as at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 and their financial performance and their cash 
flows for the years ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates that the Company 
has limited working capital, no current sources of revenue and is dependent upon its ability to secure new sources of 
financing.  These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate the existence of a material 
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
 
 
 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Vancouver, Canada 
October 28, 2014 
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Toro Resources Corp. 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

Note     June 30, 2014     June 30, 2013

Assets
Current assets

Cash $ 38,373                $ 73,550                 
Amounts receivable 8,761                  16,739                 
Prepaid expenses 2,600                  -                      

49,734                90,289                 

Exploration and evaluation assets 6 10,000                966,939               
Reclamation deposit 5 46,804                46,804                 

Total Assets $ 106,538             $ 1,104,032            

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 413,645             $ 204,556               
Loan payable 9 100,000             100,000               

Total Liabilities 513,645             304,556               

Shareholders' Equity (Deficiency)
Share capital 7 2,239,766          2,239,766            
Other capital reserves 7 208,951             187,935               
Deficit (2,855,824)         (1,628,225)           

(407,107)            799,476               

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 106,538             $ 1,104,032            

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN (Note 1)

Approved on October 28, 2014 by the Directors:

" Devinder Randhawa"
Devinder Randhawa, Director

"Greg Downey"
Greg Downey, Director
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Toro Resources Corp. 
Consolidated Statements of Net Loss and Comprehensive Loss
Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

Note 2014                 2013               
Expenses

Consulting and management fees 9 180,000$          109,000$         
Depreciation -                    445                 
Interest 9 6,250                77                   
Office and administration 9 916                   15,363            
Professional fees 28,204              36,733            
Public relations and communications 3,121                6,697              
Regulatory fees 2,442                4,265              
Rent 9 3,000                9,324              
Share-based compensation 9 21,016              33,025            
Transfer agent 7,751                6,072              
Travel 9 6,359                9,078              

259,059            230,079          

Loss before other items (259,059)          (230,079)         

Other items - income (expense)
Interest -                    51                   
Loan bonus 9 -                    (20,000)           
Foreign exchange (loss) (242)                 (2,402)             
Non-refundable option payment received 17,058              -                 

 Write-down of exploration and evaluation assets (985,356)          -                 
(968,540)          (22,351)           

Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year (1,227,599)$     (252,430)$       

Basic and diluted loss per common share (0.05)$              (0.01)$             

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 24,198,636       23,530,828      

 Years Ended June 30, 
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Toro Resources Corp. 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (Deficiency) 
Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

Total
Other Capital Shareholders'

Note Shares Amount Reserves Deficit Equity (Deficiency)

Balance June 30, 2012   23,448,636       $ 2,202,266      $ 154,910         $ (1,375,795)        $ 981,381                  

Shared-based compensation -                   -                33,025           -                   33,025                    
Shares issued for exploration and evaluation assets 7 350,000            17,500           -                -                   17,500                    
Shares issued for short-term loan bonus 7 400,000            20,000           -                -                   20,000                    

Net loss and comprehensive loss -                   -                -                (252,430)           (252,430)                 

Balance June 30, 2013 24,198,636       $ 2,239,766      $ 187,935         $ (1,628,225)        $ 799,476                  

Shared-based compensation -                   -                21,016         -                   21,016                   
Shares issued for exploration and evaluation assets -                   -                -                -                   -                        

Net loss and comprehensive loss -                   -                -                (1,227,599)     (1,227,599)            

Balance June 30, 2014 24,198,636     $ 2,239,766    $ 208,951       $ (2,855,824)     $ (407,107)               

Common Shares
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Toro Resources Corp. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

2014              2013            

Operating activities

Net loss for the year $ (1,227,599)    $ (252,430)      
Items not affecting cash:

Depreciation -                 445             
Loan bonus -                 20,000         
Share-based compensation 21,016           33,025         
Write-down of exploration and evaluation assets 985,356         -              

(221,227)       (198,960)      
Changes in non-cash working capital items:

Decrease in amounts receivable 7,978             6,590           
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (2,600)           5,446           
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 209,089         110,228       

Cash used in operating activities (6,760)           (76,696)       

Investing activity
Exploration and evaluation assets (28,417)         (90,437)       

Cash used in investing activity (28,417)         (90,437)       

Financing activity
Loan proceeds -                 100,000       

Cash provided by financing activity -                 100,000       

Net decrease in cash (35,177)         (67,133)       
Cash, beginning of year 73,550           140,683       

 
Cash, end of year $ 38,373           $ 73,550         

Supplementary disclosure for non-cash investing and financing 
activities

Fair value of shares issued pursuant to mineral property agreement $ -                 $ 17,500         
Fair value of shares issued pursuant to loan agreement -                 20,000         

$ -                 $ 37,500         

 Years Ended June 30,  



TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN 
 

Toro Resources Corporation, (the “Company”, “TRC”) is a company incorporated on June 30, 2005 
under the Business Corporation Act of British Columbia, Canada. The registered office of the 
Company is 700-595 Howe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2T5. The principle address 
and records office of the Company is 700-1620 Dickson Ave., Kelowna, British Columbia, V1Y 9Y2. 
The Company’s shares are publically listed on the TSX-Venture exchange (“TSX”) under the symbol 
“TRK”. 
 
The Company is a natural resource company engaged in the acquisition and exploration of resource 
properties in the United States of America (“USA”).  The Company presently has no proven or 
probable reserves and on the basis of information to date, it has yet to determine whether these 
properties contain economically recoverable ore reserves. Consequently, the Company considers 
itself to be an exploration stage company. 
 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management on a going concern 
basis with the assumption that the Company will continue for the foreseeable future and will be able 
to meet its obligations to continue operations. Management has carried out an assessment of the 
going concern assumption and concludes that the continued operations of the Company are 
dependent upon equity financing and/or joint venturing project development as primary sources of 
funding. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant 
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
The realized values of net assets may be significantly different from carrying values shown and these 
consolidated financial statements do not give effect to adjustments to the carrying values and 
classification of assets and liabilities that would be necessary should the Company be unable to 
continue as a going concern. 
 
The Company has had the following history of annual net and comprehensive losses: 2014 
($1,227,599) 2013 ($252,430), 2012 ($221,445), 2011 ($370,316), 2010 ($240,360) and 2009 
($211,360).  The accumulated deficit recorded as at June 30, 2014 is ($2,855,824) and at June 30, 
2013 ($1,628,225).  As at June 30, 2014 the Company has cash of $38,373 ($73,550 at June 30, 
2013) and a working capital deficiency of $463,911 ($214,267 at June 30, 2013). 

 
 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
 
These consolidated financial statements, including comparative figures, have been prepared using 
accounting policies in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) . 
 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in Canadian dollars on a historical cost 
basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value. They include the 
100% wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary Toro Resources Inc. (“TRI”). 
 
The issuance of these consolidated financial statements has been authorized by the Board of 
Directors on October 28, 2014. 
  

5 
  



TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 

 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
revenue and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, 
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.  Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and further periods if the review affects both 
current and future periods. See Note 4 for Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments made by 
management in the application of IFRS. 

 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
set out below have been applied consistently in all material respects. 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
 
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned 
Nevada subsidiary, Toro Resources Inc. All inter-company balances and transactions have been 
eliminated upon consolidation. 

 
Basic and Diluted Loss per Share 
 
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the loss for the year by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share reflect the 
dilution that could occur if potentially dilutive securities were exercised or converted to common 
stock. The dilutive effect of options and warrants and their equivalent is computed by application of 
the treasury stock method and the effect of convertible securities by the “if converted” method.  
Diluted amounts are not presented when the effect of the computations are anti-dilutive due to the 
losses incurred. Accordingly, there is no difference in the amounts presented for basic and diluted 
loss per share. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents include short-term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash which are subject to 
insignificant risk of change, with maturities within three months, held for the purpose of meeting 
short-term cash commitments rather than for investing or other purposes.  At June 30, 2014 and 
2013 the Company held no cash equivalents. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Exploration and Evaluation Assets 
 
Pre-exploration costs 
 
Pre-exploration costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Exploration and evaluation expenditures for mineral properties 
 
Once the legal right to explore a property has been acquired, exploration and evaluation 
expenditures are recognized and capitalized.  Mineral exploration costs are capitalized on an individual 
prospect basis until such time as an economic ore body is defined or the prospect is abandoned.  Once 
the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extraction of the mineral resources has been 
determined, the property is considered to be a property under development and is reclassified as such. 
Costs for a producing prospect are amortized on a unit-of-production method based on the estimated life 
of the ore reserves, while those costs for the prospects abandoned are written off.  
 
On an annual basis or when impairment indicators arise, the Company evaluates the future 
recoverability of its mineral property costs.  Impairment losses or write-downs are recorded in the 
event the net book value of such assets exceeds the estimated indicated future cash flows 
attributable to such assets. 
 
The recoverability of the amounts capitalized for the undeveloped mineral property is dependent 
upon the determination of economically recoverable ore reserves, confirmation of the Company’s 
interest in the underlying mineral claims, the ability to obtain the necessary financing to complete 
their development, and future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition thereof.  
 
Title to mineral properties involves certain inherent risks due to the difficulties of determining the 
validity of certain claims as well as the potential for problems arising from the frequently ambiguous 
conveyance history characteristic of many mineral properties.  The Company has investigated title to 
its mineral properties and, to the best of its knowledge, the title to its properties are in good standing. 
 
Management’s capitalization of exploration and evaluation expenditures and assumptions regarding 
the future recoverability of such costs are subject to significant measurement uncertainty.  
Management’s assessment of recoverability is based on, among other things, the Company’s 
estimate of current mineral reserves and resources which are supported by geological estimates, 
estimated commodity prices, and the procurement of all necessary regulatory permits and approvals.  
These assumptions and estimates could change in the future and this could materially affect the 
carrying value and the ultimate recoverability of the amounts recorded for mineral properties. 
 
Option Payments Received 

 
Option payments received are treated as a reduction of the carrying value of the related exploration 
and evaluation assets, and the balance, if any, is taken into income. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Share-based Payments 
 
Equity-settled share-based payments for directors, officers and employees are measured at fair 
value at the date of grant and recorded as compensation expense in the financial statements.  The 
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed using 
the graded vesting method over the vesting period based on the Company’s estimate of shares that 
will eventually vest.  Any consideration paid by directors, officers, employees and consultants on 
exercise of equity-settled share based payments is credited to share capital.  Shares are issued from 
treasury upon the exercise of equity-settled share based instruments. 
 
Compensation expense on stock options granted to non-employees is measured at the earlier of the 
completion of performance and the date the options are vested using the fair value method and is 
recorded as an expense in the same period as if the Company had paid cash for the goods or 
services received. 
 
When the value of goods or services received in exchange for the share-based payment cannot be 
reliably estimated, the fair value is measured by use of a Black-Scholes valuation model.  The 
expected life used in the model is adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of 
non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognized in 
the statement of net loss and comprehensive loss except to the extent that it relates to a business 
combination or items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case the 
income tax is also recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.  
 
Current income taxes are the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax 
rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of all qualifying temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements. Deferred income tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using tax rates and laws 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date and are 
expected to apply when the deferred tax asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets can be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current.  
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

   
Impairment of Long-lived Assets 
 
The Company’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for an indication of impairment at each 
statement of financial position date. If indication of impairment exists, the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated.   
 
An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset, or its cash-generating unit, 
exceeds its recoverable amount.  A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets 
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets.  Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of net loss and comprehensive 
loss for the period.  Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated 
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash-generating units and then to 
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis. 
 
The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset.  For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the 
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
 
An impairment loss is reversed if there is an indication that there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that 
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.  An impairment loss 
with respect to goodwill is never reversed. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows 
from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net 
amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously.  
 
At initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories depending 
on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired: 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available 
for sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivable. 
 
The Company has classified cash and reclamation deposit as FVTPL and amounts receivable as 
loans and receivables. 
 
When one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset have been 
impacted, financial assets are impaired. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether 
there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.  
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Financial Instruments (Continued) 
 
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 
 
The carrying amount of all financial assets, excluding trade receivables, is directly reduced by the 
impairment loss. The carrying amount of trade receivables is reduced through the use of an 
allowance. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the 
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in the 
statement of net loss and comprehensive loss. 
 
Impairment losses on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost are reversed in subsequent 
periods if the amount of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity 
instruments are not reversed. 
 
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, or other 
financial liabilities, as appropriate.  
 
The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial 
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.  
 
The Company’s financial liabilities include accounts payable, accrued liabilities and loan payable, 
which are classified as other financial liabilities. Subsequent to initial recognition, accounts payable, 
accrued financial liabilities, and the loan payable are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method.  
 
Rehabilitation Provisions 
 
The Company recognizes liabilities for statutory, contractual, constructive or legal obligations 
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets, when those obligations result from the 
acquisition, construction, development or normal operation of the assets.  The net present value of 
future rehabilitation cost estimates is capitalized to the amount of the related asset along with a 
corresponding increase in the rehabilitation provision in the period incurred.  Discount rates using a 
pre-tax rate that reflect the time value of money are used to calculate the net present value.  The 
rehabilitation asset is depreciated on the same basis as the related asset. The liability is 
progressively increased each period as the effect of discounting unwinds, creating an expense 
recognition in the statement of net loss and comprehensive loss. 
 
The Company’s estimates of reclamation costs could change as a result of changes in regulatory 
requirements and assumptions regarding the amount and timing of the future expenditures.  These 
changes are recorded directly to the related asset with a corresponding entry to the rehabilitation 
provision.  
 
The Company’s estimates are reviewed at each reporting date for changes in regulatory 
requirements, effects of inflation and changes in estimates. 
 
Changes in the net present value, excluding changes in the Company’s estimates of reclamation 
costs, are charged to the statement of net loss and comprehensive loss for the year. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Translation of Foreign Currencies 
 
The functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiary is the Canadian dollar, being the 
currency of the primary economic environment of the parent entity.  The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Canadian dollars which is the parent company’s functional and 
presentation currency.   
 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates 
prevailing at the date of the transaction.  Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the 
period-end exchange rate.  Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  Non-monetary items measured at fair value are 
reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined and not subsequently 
restated. 
 
Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items or on settlement of monetary 
items are recognized in profit or loss in the statement of net loss and comprehensive loss in the 
period in which they arise, except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net 
investment hedge. 

 
New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations  
 
The IASB issued the following pronouncements that are effective for years beginning January 1, 
2013 or later. These new accounting policies were adopted by the Company on July 1, 2013 and 
have had no significant impact on the Company’s financial position and results of operation.  
 
IAS 1–Presentation of Financial Statements  IAS 24– Related Parties Disclosures  
IAS 28–Investments in Associates    IFRS 7–Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
            and Joint Ventures 
IFRS 10–Consolidated Financial Statements  IFRS 11–Joint Arrangements 
IFRS 12–Disclosure of Interests in Other    IFRS 13–Fair Value Measurement  
                                  Entities  

On July 24, 2014 the IASB issued IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments. This is the final version of the 
Standard and supersedes all previous versions. The Standard has a mandatory effective date for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with earlier application permitted. This 
standard introduces new requirements for the impairment of financial assets measured at amortized 
cost and classification and measurement of financial instruments. The Company will be analyzing the 
possible impacts of these amendments on its future consolidated financial statements. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES  
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
 
Critical judgments in applying accounting policies: 
 
The following are critical judgments that management has made in the process of applying 
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements: 
 
i) The determination that the Company will continue as a going concern for the next year; and 

 
ii) The determination that there have been no additional events or changes in circumstances that 

indicate the carrying amount of exploration and evaluation assets may not be recoverable. 
 

5. RECLAMATION DEPOSIT 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Company was required to post a reclamation deposit in the 
amount of $46,804 (US$45,900) with the USDA Forest Service (“USFS”) in order to continue its 
exploration of the Morgan Peak property. The deposit is to be refunded to the Company upon 
completion of reclamation to the satisfaction of the USFS. The reclamation deposit is being held in term 
deposits with various interest rates. See Note 12 – Subsequent Events. 
 
 

  

12 
  



TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
6. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 
 

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an interest, 
these procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title. Such properties may be subject to prior 
agreements and title may be affected by undetected defects. 
 
Exploration and evaluation expenditures for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Morgan Peak, Arizona, USA 
 
On December 10, 2009, the Company entered into a letter of intent with MinQuest Inc. (“MinQuest”) 
to acquire a 100% undivided interest in the Morgan Peak Property in Arizona, USA, comprising 102 
unpatented mineral claims covering a total of 2,020 acres. Upon execution of the letter of intent, the 
Company paid to MinQuest a $10,862 (US$10,000) non-refundable deposit. 

 
On February 1, 2010, the Company entered into a definitive mineral property agreement (amended 
June 6, 2012) with MinQuest in respect to the option to acquire a 100% interest in the property 
subject to a 3% Net Smelter Returns Royalty.  At that time, the non-refundable deposit became part 
of the amount due upon signing the agreement.  

 
On March 10, 2010, the Company assigned all its rights and obligations pursuant to the mineral 
contract to its wholly-owned subsidiary, TRI, a company incorporated in Nevada.  
 
 

 
  

  
     

  2014  2013 
Acquisition costs     

Balance, beginning of year $ 341,243 $$ 264,208 
Additions  10,000  77,035 

  Relinquishment  (341,243)  - 
Balance, end of year  10,000  341,243 
     

Deferred exploration and evaluation expenditures     
Balance, beginning of year  625,696  594,794 

Assessments and fees  16,218  15,747 
Consulting and engineering  -  9,959 
Drilling  -  - 
Field and travel  -  2,109 
Office  -  - 
Reports and maps  -  - 
Storage  2,199  3,087 

  Relinquishment  (644,113)  - 
Balance, end of year  -  625,696 

     
Total exploration and evaluation assets $ 10,000 $$ 966,939 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
6. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (Continued)  
 

In order to earn the interest, TRC is required to issue an aggregate of 3,000,000 shares of common 
stock, and TRI is required to make cash payments to MinQuest totalling US$1,000,000 and incur an 
aggregate of US$4,300,000 in exploration expenditures as follows: 

 
  SHARE   
 CASH CONSIDERATION   

 COMPENSATION (NUMBER OF  EXPLORATION  
 (US $) SHARES)  EXPENDITURES 

      
Upon signing the agreement $ 20,000 (paid) 250,000 (issued) $ - 

February 1, 2011  20,000 (paid) 250,000 (issued)  250,000 (spent) 
February 1, 2012  25,000 (paid) 300,000 (issued)  350,000 (spent) 
February 1, 2013  30,000 (paid) 350,000 (issued)  - 
February 1, 2014  40,000 400,000  950,000 
February 1, 2015  50,000 450,000  750,000 
February 1, 2016  50,000 500,000  1,000,000 
February 1, 2017  50,000 500,000  1,000,000 
February 1, 2018  715,000 -  - 

      
 $ 1,000,000 3,000,000 $ 4,300,000 
 

TRI also assumed the obligation to make cash payments totalling US$665,000 to the underlying 
property vendor as follows: 

 CASH 
 COMPENSATION 
 (US $) 

   
Upon signing the agreement $ 10,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2010  10,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2011  25,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2012  30,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2013  40,000 
December 5, 2014  50,000 
December 5, 2015  50,000 
December 5, 2016  50,000 
December 5, 2017  400,000 
 $ 665,000 

 
As at June 30, 2014, the Company has paid $176,209 (US$170,000) and issued 1,150,000 common 
shares with an aggregate fair value of $155,000 pursuant to the agreement. During the year, the 
Company entered into an agreement with MinQuest to defer exploration expenditures and share 
issuances pending the sale of the project to PBar Land and Minerals, LLC (“PBar”) as per the 
revised PBar agreement dated March 18, 2014. See Note 12 - Subsequent Events. 
 
As at June 30, 2014, the Company wrote down the Morgan Peak property to $Nil and recorded a 
write-down of $985,356 in the year. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
6. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (Continued)  

 
Taxco Property 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Company entered into a preliminary agreement to acquire 
under an option agreement the Taxco property from 1002679 B.C. Ltd. The 915 hectare property is 
located 125 km southwest of Vanderhoof, 175 km southwest of Prince George, and approximately 
150 km west of Quesnel, British Columbia. The Company commissioned an updated 43:101 report 
on the property in June of 2014 which has been accounted for as an acquisition cost. 
 
The Property is subject to a royalty in favor of 1002679 B.C. Ltd. equal to a 3% Net Smelter Royalty 
(NSR), one half of which may be purchased for a cash payment of $250,000. A non-refundable cash 
payment of $2,500 is due before October 31, 2014 and issuance of 50,000 shares or cash payment 
of $5,000 is due upon regulatory approval. Under the terms of the agreement, TRC will hold 100% 
beneficial interest in the Taxco Property by making cash payments, issuing shares and carrying out 
exploration work as per the following anniversary dates:  

End of Year Cash Payment Shares Issued Expenditures

1 10,000$       100,000        50,000$      
2 20,000         150,000        100,000      
3 50,000         200,000        250,000      

80,000$       450,000        400,000$      
 
 

7. SHARE CAPITAL 
 

a) Authorized: 
 

Unlimited voting common shares without par value 
Unlimited non-voting preferred shares with a par value of $1 each (none issued) 

 
b) Issued and Outstanding - Common Shares: 

 
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Company issued Nil common shares (2013 – 750,000 
common shares) pursuant to the Morgan Creek mineral property agreement with a fair value of 
$Nil (2013 - $37,500). 
 

c) Share Purchase Warrants 
 
As at June 30, 2014 and 2013, no share purchase warrants for the acquisition of common shares 
were outstanding.   
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
7. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 
 

d) Stock Options  
 

The Company has a stock option plan that provides for the issuance of stock options to its 
officers, directors, employees and consultants.  Stock options must be non-transferable and the 
aggregate number of shares that may be reserved for issuance pursuant to stock options may not 
exceed 10% of the issued shares of the Company at the time of granting and may not exceed 5% 
to any individual. 
 
The exercise price of stock options is determined by the board of directors of the Company at the 
time of grant and may not be less than the closing market price of the Company’s shares on the 
day immediately prior to the award date, less any discount which may be permitted by the 
exchange on which the Company is listed.  Options have a maximum term of five years. Upon 
exercise of any stock options, consideration paid by the option holder together with the amount 
previously recognized in contributed surplus is recorded as an increase to share capital. 

 
As at June 30, 2014, stock options outstanding for the purchase of common shares are: 

 

    
  NUMBER  

NUMBER EXERCISE EXERCISABLE  
OF PRICE AT EXPIRY 

OPTIONS PER SHARE JUNE 30, 2014 DATE 
1,800,000 $ 0.10 1,800,000 May 15, 2017 
1,800,000   1,800,000  

 
 

STOCK OPTION SUMMARY YEAR ENDED  YEAR ENDED 
 JUNE 30, 2014  JUNE 30, 2013 

  
 

 
NUMBER 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 
EXERCISE 

PRICE 

  
 
 

NUMBER 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 
EXERCISE 

PRICE 
        
Balance, beginning of year 2,050,000 $ 0.10  1,450,000 $ 0.13 
Granted -  -  1,400,000  0.10 
Exercised -  -  -  - 
Forfeited (250,000)  0.10  (800,000)  0.14 
        

Balance, end of year 1,800,000 $ 0.10  2,050,000 $ 0.10 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
7. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 

 
e) Share-based Payments  

 
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Company recorded $21,016 (2013 - $33,025) in share-
based payments for options granted or vesting during the year. 
 
The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: 

 
 YEARS ENDED 
 JUNE 30,  
 2014 2013 
   
Risk free interest rate 1.713% 1.713% 
Expected life 3 years 3 years 
Expected volatility 99.70% 99.70% 
Expected dividend yield 0 0 
Expected forfeiture n/a n/a 
Weighted average of fair value of options granted $0.10 $0.10 

 
 
8. INCOME TAXES 
 

The Company is subject to income taxes on its unconsolidated financial statements in both Canada and 
the United States. The consolidated provision for income taxes varies from the amount that would be 
computed from applying the combined statutory income tax rates to the net loss before taxes. The 
income tax provision is approximately as follows: 
 
 2014 2013 
     
Combined statutory tax rate  33%  26% 
     
Expected income tax recovery  $ 407,000 $ 64,000 
Non-deductible differences  (344,000)  29,000 
Effect of changes in tax rate  87,400  200) 
Unrecognized benefit of loss carry forwards  (150,400)  (93,200) 
     
Income tax provision $ - $ - 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
8.   INCOME TAXES (Continued) 
 

The significant components of the company’s deferred income tax assets were approximately as 
follows: 

 
 2014 2013 
     

Losses available for future periods $ 673,000 $ 602,000 
Exploration and evaluation expenditures and equipment  37,000  37,000 
Share issuance costs  -  4,000 
Valuation allowance  (710,000)  (643,000) 
     
Net deferred income tax asset $ - $ - 

 
As of June 30, 2014, the Company has Canadian and U.S. non-capital losses of approximately 
$2,237,000 which may be carried forward and applied against taxable income in future years. These 
losses expire as follows: 

 
CANADA  U.S. 

       
2026 $ 33,000  2026 $ - 
2027  165,000  2027  - 
2028  139,000  2028  - 
2029  69,000  2029  - 
2030  138,000  2030  3,000 
2031  340,000  2031  488,000 
2032  218,000  2032  126,000 
2033  250,000  2033  29,000 
2034  252,000  2034  4,000 

 $ 1,604,000   $ 650,000 
 
The Company has resource pools of approximately $144,000 (2013 – $144,000) in Canada and $Nil 
(2013 - $Nil) in the U.S. available to offset future taxable income. The tax benefit of these amounts is 
available for carry-forward indefinitely. The potential tax benefits of these items have not been 
recognized as realization is not considered more likely than not. 

 
 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

The following related party transactions were in the normal course of operations and measured at the 
exchange amount, which is the amount established and agreed to by the related parties. Unless 
otherwise noted, amounts due to and from related parties were non-interest bearing, unsecured and had 
no fixed terms of repayment. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 
 

In addition to those related party transactions disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial 
statements the Company incurred the following transactions and balances: 
 
a) On April 26, 2013, the Company secured an interim loan of $100,000 with interest of 5% per annum, 

calculated monthly, from RD Capital Inc. a company controlled by Dev Randhawa, Chairman and 
CEO. This short-term financing was to ensure that the Company could meet its commitments on its 
Morgan Peak Copper project. On May 21, 2013 the Company issued 400,000 loan bonus shares to 
RD Capital Inc. valued at $0.05 per share. This loan is due on demand and is secured by a 
promissory note. 

 
b) Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $376,180 (2013 – $180,780) payable to 

related corporations with related directors and executives and to executives. 
 

c) During the year ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company incurred the following expenses paid 
or payable to key management personnel, directors, and companies with a common director or 
officer. Key management personnel are considered to be the CEO, CFO, President and Vice 
President of Operations:  
 YEARS ENDED  
 JUNE 30 
 2014 2013 
Amounts paid or payable to key management personnel:     

     
Office expenses $ 227 $ 2,796 
Travel  -  5,687 
Management fees  180,000  109,000 
Share-based payments  13,510  21,230 
Loan interest/bonus  6,250  20,000 
Amounts included in exploration and evaluation assets  -  8,186 

  199,987  166,899 
Amounts paid or payable to other related parties:     

     
Office expenses  384  1,666 
Rent  3,000  - 
Travel    6,359  - 

  9,743  1,666 
 $ 209,730 $ 168,565 

 
10. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES 

 
The Company was formed for the purpose of acquiring exploration and development stage natural 
resource properties.  The Board determines the Company’s capital structure and makes adjustments 
to it based on funds available to the Company in order to support the acquisition, exploration and 
development of mineral properties.  The Directors have not established quantitative return on capital 
criteria for capital management. 
 
The Company does not generate any revenue, and accordingly the Company will be dependent in 
the future upon external financing to fund future exploration programs and its administrative costs.  
The Company will spend existing working capital and raise additional amounts as needed. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 
10. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (Continued) 
 

The Company will continue to assess new properties and to seek to acquire an interest in additional 
properties if management decides there is sufficient geologic and/or economic potential. The 
Directors review their capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this 
approach, given the relative size of the Company, is reasonable. 
 
The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, assuring continued returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. 

 
The Company considers the items included in the statement of shareholders’ equity (deficiency) as 
capital. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of 
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.  In order to 
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares through private 
placements, sell assets to reduce debt or return capital to shareholders.  The Company has no 
externally imposed capital requirements. 
 

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

IFRS 7 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the input to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value as follows:  
 
Level 1 – Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2 –  Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices included 

in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly such as quoted prices 
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or indirectly such as quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions. 

 
 Level 3 – Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable market data. 

 
The Company has no assets or liabilities subject to fair value measurement on a recurring basis. For 
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, the following table provides the 
fair value measures by level of valuation assumptions used: 
 
 
 FAIR 

VALUE 
YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2014 

YEAR ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2013 

 INPUT CARRYING ESTIMATED CARRYING ESTIMATED 
 LEVEL AMOUNT FAIR VALUE AMOUNT FAIR VALUE 
      

Financial Assets:          
Cash  1 $ 38,373 $ 38,373 $ 73,550 $ 73,550 
Reclamation deposit 2  46,804  46,804  46,804  46,804 

  $ 85,177 $ 85,177 $ 120,354 $ 120,354 
 
Due to the relatively short term nature of cash, amounts receivable, reclamation deposit and accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities, the fair value of these instruments approximates their carrying value. 
Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management team with guidance from the Board 
of Directors. 
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FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

 
The Company's risk exposures and their impact on the Company's financial instruments are 
summarized below: 
 

a) Credit Risk 
 
The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and amounts receivable. Cash and is 
held with one reputable Canadian chartered bank which is closely monitored by management. 
Management believes that the credit risk concentration with respect to financial instruments 
included in cash, short-term investments and amounts receivable is minimal. 

 
b) Liquidity Risk 

 
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity 
to meet liabilities when due.  As at June 30, 2014, the Company held cash of $38,373 (2013 - 
$73,550) and had current liabilities of $513,645 (2013 - $304,556).  All of the Company’s current 
liabilities, excluding the loan payable, have contractual maturities of less than 30 days and are 
subject to normal trade terms. 

 
c) Market Risk 

 
i) Interest Rate Risk 

 
The Company had cash balances, and no interest-bearing debt. The Company’s current 
policy is to invest excess cash in investment-grade short-term deposit certificates issued by 
its banking institutions.  The Company periodically monitors the investments it makes and is 
satisfied with the creditworthiness of its banks.   
 

ii) Foreign Currency Risk 
 

The Company’s functional currency and the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar 
(“CDN$”). Periodically the Company incurs charges to its operations for settlement in 
currencies other than its functional currency and any gain or loss arising on such transactions 
is recorded in operations for the year. 
 
The Company holds a 100% interest in its subsidiary TRI which operates in the United States 
of America.  TRI has transactions which are recorded in the US Dollar (“US$”).   
 
As a result, the Company is subject to foreign currency and exchange risk on the translation 
of these transactions and year end balances to the reporting currency.  Any gains or losses 
arising in the year are included in operations for the year. 

 
As at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013, a 1% strengthening in the US$ relative to the CDN$ 
does not have a significant impact on the net loss for the year. 
 
Any unrealized translation adjustments arising at year end are included in operating loss for 
the year. 

 
The Company does not participate in any hedging activities to mitigate any gains or losses 
which may arise as a result of exchange rate changes. 
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 

As at June 30, 2014, financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the 
Canadian dollar are as follows: 
 

 2014 2013 
 FINANCIAL FINANCIAL FINANCIAL  FINANCIAL 
 ASSETS LIABILITIES ASSETS LIABILITIES 

     
 US$ 61,643 US$ - US$ 48,169 US$ - 

 
iii) Commodity Price Risk 

 
The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity and equity prices. Equity 
price risk is defined as the potential adverse impact on the Company's earnings due to 
movements in individual equity prices or general movements in the level of the stock market. 
Commodity price risk is defined as the potential adverse impact on earnings and economic 
value due to commodity price movements and volatilities. To mitigate price risk, the Company 
closely monitors commodity prices of precious metals, individual equity movements, and the 
stock market to determine the appropriate course of action to be taken by the Company. 

 
12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

On July 31, 2014, the Company signed an option agreement on the Taxco property, having received 
the updated 43:101 report. The initial payment of $2,500 is due 90 days after the signing of the 
agreement and the 50,000 shares (or $5,000) are to be issued upon regulatory approval. See Note 6.   
 
The agreement with PBar to sell the Morgan Peak property was terminated on July 2, 2014 as PBar 
could not meet the terms of the agreement. The drilling permit issued by the USFS was concurrently 
cancelled on August 1, 2014 as the agreed work program to be carried out by PBar had not 
commenced on the property. The reclamation work as required by the USFS on the Morgan Peak 
property was completed in September 2014 at a total cost of US$3,627. See Note 6.   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Shareholders of Toro Resources Corp., 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Toro Resources Corp. and its subsidiary, which 
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at June 30, 2013, June 30, 2012, and the consolidated 
statements of net loss and comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 
June 30, 2012 and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial 
statements are free of material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Toro 
Resources Corp. and its subsidiary as at June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012 and their financial performance and their cash 
flows for the years ended June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates that the Company 
has limited working capital, no current sources of revenue and is dependent upon its ability to secure new sources of 
financing.  These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate the existence of a material 
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
 
 
 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Vancouver, Canada 
October 28, 2013 
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Toro Resources Corp. 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

Note     June 30, 2013     June 30, 2012

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 73,550            $ 140,683         
Amounts receivable 16,739            23,329           
Prepaid expenses -                  5,446             

90,289            169,458         

Equipment 6 -                  445                
Exploration and evaluation assets 7 966,939          859,002         
Reclamation deposit 5 46,804            46,804           

Total Assets 1,104,032       1,075,709       

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 204,556          94,328           
Loan payable 10 100,000          -                

Total Liabilities 304,556          94,328           

Shareholders' Equity
Share capital 2,239,766       2,202,266       
Other capital reserves 187,935          154,910         
Deficit (1,628,225)      (1,375,795)     

799,476          981,381         

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 1,104,032       $ 1,075,709       

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN (Note 1)

Approved on October 28, 2013 by the Directors:

" Devinder Randhawa"
Devinder Randhawa, Director

"Greg Downey"
Greg Downey, Director
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Toro Resources Corp. 
Consolidated Statements of Net Loss and Comprehensive Loss
Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

2013              2012             
Expenses

Consulting and management fees 109,000$       103,000$       
Depreciation 445                780               
Interest 77                  -                
Office and administration 15,363           24,953           
Professional fees 36,733           37,737           
Public relations and communications 6,697             6,770            
Regulatory fees 4,265             4,933            
Rent 9,324             15,240           
Share-based compensation 33,025           -                
Transfer agent 6,072             10,798           
Travel 9,078             16,821           

230,079         221,032         

Loss before other items (230,079)       (221,032)       

Other items - income/(expense)
Interest 51                  -                
Loan bonus (Note 10) (20,000)         -                
Foreign exchange (loss) (2,402)           (413)              

(22,351)         (413)              

Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year (252,430)$     (221,445)$      

Basic and diluted loss per common share (0.01)$           (0.01)$           

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 23,530,828    23,271,924    

 Years Ended June 30, 
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Toro Resources Corp. 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 
Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

Total
Other Capital Shareholders'

Note Shares Amount Reserves Deficit Equity

Balance June 30, 2011 23,148,636       2,142,266$       154,910$          (1,154,350)$        1,142,826$       

Shares issued for mineral properties 300,000           60,000             -                  -                    60,000             

Net loss and comprehensive loss -                  -                  -                  (221,445)            (221,445)          

Balance June 30, 2012   23,448,636       2,202,266        154,910           (1,375,795)         981,381           

Shared based compensation -                  -                  33,025             -                    33,025             

Shares issued for mineral properties 7 350,000           17,500             -                  -                    17,500             

Shares issued for short term loan 8 400,000           20,000             -                  -                    20,000             

Net loss and comprehensive loss -                  -                  -                  (252,430)            (252,430)        

Balance June 30, 2013 24,198,636    2,239,766$    187,935$        (1,628,225)$     799,476$        

Common Shares
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Toro Resources Corp. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

2013              2012           

Cash flows used in operating activities

Net loss for the year $ (252,430)       $ (221,445)     
Items not affecting cash:

Depreciation 445                780             
Loan bonus 20,000           -             
Share-based compensation 33,025           -             

(198,960)       (220,665)     
Changes in non-cash working capital items:

Decrease in amounts receivable 6,590             2,909          
Decrease in prepaid expenses 5,446             948             
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 110,228         28,585        

Cash used in continuing operations (76,696)         (188,223)     

Investing activities
Exploration and evaluation additions (90,437)         (187,323)     
Reclamation deposit -                 (46,804)       

Cash used in investing activities (90,437)         (234,127)     

Financing activity
Loan proceeds 100,000         -             
Cash provided by financing activity 100,000         -             

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (67,133)         (422,350)     
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 140,683         563,033

 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 73,550           $ 140,683

Supplementary disclosure for non-cash investing and 
financing activities

Fair value of shares issued persuant to mineral property agreement $ 17,500            $ 60,000        
Fair value of shares issued persuant to loan agreement 20,000            -             

$ 37,500            $ 60,000        

 Years Ended June 30,  
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1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN 
 

Toro Resources Corporation, (the “Company”, “TRC”) is a company incorporated on June 30, 2005 
under the Business Corporation Act of British Columbia, Canada. The registered office of the 
Company is 700-595 Howe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2T5. The principle address 
and records office of the Company is 700-1620 Dickson Ave., Kelowna, British Columbia, V1Y 9Y2. 
The Company’s shares are publically listed on the TSX-Venture exchange (“TSX”) under the symbol 
“TRK”. 
 
The Company is a natural resource company engaged in the acquisition and exploration of resource 
properties in the United States of America (“USA”).  The Company presently has no proven or 
probable reserves and on the basis of information to date, it has yet to determine whether these 
properties contain economically recoverable ore reserves. Consequently, the Company considers 
itself to be an exploration stage company. 
 
These amendment consolidated financial statements include the correction of a tabulation error on 
page 3 and have been prepared by management on a going concern basis with the assumption that 
the Company will continue for the foreseeable future and will be able to meet its obligations to 
continue operations.    Management has carried out an assessment of the going concern assumption 
and concludes that the continued operations of the Company are dependent upon equity financing 
and/or joint venturing project development as primary sources of funding.  
 
The realized values of net assets may be significantly different from carrying values shown and these 
consolidated financial statements do not give effect to adjustments to the carrying values and 
classification of assets and liabilities that would be necessary should the Company be unable to 
continue as a going concern. 
 
The Company has had the following history of annual net and comprehensive losses: 2013 
($252,430), 2012 ($221,445), 2011 ($370,316), 2010 ($240,360) and 2009 ($211,360).  The 
accumulated deficit recorded as at June 30, 2013 is ($1,628,225) and at June 30, 2012 
($1,375,795).  As at June 30, 2013 the Company has cash and cash equivalents of $21,581 
($140,683 at June 30, 2012) and a working capital deficiency of $106,504 (net working capital of 
$75,130 at June 30, 2012). 

 
 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
 
These consolidated financial statements, including comparative figures,  have been prepared using 
accounting policies in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) . 
 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in Canadian dollars on a historical cost 
basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value. They include the 
100% wholly owned U.S. subsidiary Toro Resources Inc. (“TRI”). 
 
The issuance of these financial statements has been authorized by the Board of Directors on  
October 28, 2013. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 
 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
profit and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of 
which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.  Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period or in the period of the revision and further periods if the review affects both current and future 
periods. See Note 4 for Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments made by management in the 
application of IFRS. 

 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
set out below have been applied consistently in all material respects. 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
 
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned 
Nevada subsidiary, Toro Resources Inc. All inter-company balances and transactions have been 
eliminated upon consolidation. 

 
Basic and Diluted Loss per Share 
 
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the loss for the year by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during the year.  Diluted earnings per share reflect the 
dilution that could occur if potentially dilutive securities were exercised or converted to common 
stock. The dilutive effect of options and warrants and their equivalent is computed by application of 
the treasury stock method and the effect of convertible securities by the “if converted” method.  
Diluted amounts are not presented when the effect of the computations are anti-dilutive due to the 
losses incurred. Accordingly, there is no difference in the amounts presented for basic and diluted 
loss per share. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents include short-term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash which are subject to 
insignificant risk of change, with maturities within three months, held for the purpose of meeting 
short-term cash commitments rather than for investing or other purposes.  At June 30, 2013 and 
2012 the Company held no cash equivalents. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Exploration and Evaluation Assets 
 
Pre-exploration costs 
 
Pre-exploration costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Exploration and evaluation costs for mineral properties 
 
Once the legal right to explore a property has been acquired, exploration and evaluation 
expenditures are recognized and capitalized.  Mineral exploration costs are capitalized on an individual 
prospect basis until such time as an economic ore body is defined or the prospect is abandoned.  Once 
the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extraction of the mineral resources has been 
determined, the property is considered to be a property under development and is reclassified as such 
costs for a producing prospect are amortized on a unit-of-production method based on the estimated life 
of the ore reserves, while those costs for the prospects abandoned are written off.  
 
On an annual basis or when impairment indicators arise, the Company evaluates the future 
recoverability of its mineral property costs.  Impairment losses or write-downs are recorded in the 
event the net book value of such assets exceeds the estimated indicated future cash flows 
attributable to such assets. 
 
Exploration and evaluation costs for mineral properties 
 
The recoverability of the amounts capitalized for the undeveloped mineral property is dependent 
upon the determination of economically recoverable ore reserves, confirmation of the Company’s 
interest in the underlying mineral claims, the ability to obtain the necessary financing to complete 
their development, and future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition thereof.  
 
Title to mineral properties involves certain inherent risks due to the difficulties of determining the 
validity of certain claims as well as the potential for problems arising from the frequently ambiguous 
conveyance history characteristic of many mineral properties.  The Company has investigated title to 
its mineral properties and, to the best of its knowledge, the title to its properties are in good standing. 
 
Management’s capitalization of exploration and development costs and assumptions regarding the 
future recoverability of such costs are subject to significant measurement uncertainty.  
Management’s assessment of recoverability is based on, among other things, the Company’s 
estimate of current mineral reserves and resources which are supported by geological estimates, 
estimated commodity prices, and the procurement of all necessary regulatory permits and approvals.  
These assumptions and estimates could change in the future and this could materially affect the 
carrying value and the ultimate recoverability of the amounts recorded for mineral properties. 
 
Option Payments Received 

 
Option payments received are treated as a reduction of the carrying value of the related mineral 
properties and deferred exploration costs, and the balance, if any, is taken into income. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Share-based Payments 
 
Equity-settled share-based payments for directors, officers and employees are measured at fair 
value at the date of grant and recorded as compensation expense in the financial statements.  The 
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed using 
the graded vesting method over the vesting period based on the Company’s estimate of shares that 
will eventually vest.  Any consideration paid by directors, officers, employees and consultants on 
exercise of equity-settled share based payments is credited to share capital.  Shares are issued from 
treasury upon the exercise of equity-settled share based instruments. 
 
Compensation expense on stock options granted to non-employees is measured at the earlier of the 
completion of performance and the date the options are vested using the fair value method and is 
recorded as an expense in the same period as if the Company had paid cash for the goods or 
services received. 
 
When the value of goods or services received in exchange for the share-based payment cannot be 
reliably estimated, the fair value is measured by use of a Black-Scholes valuation model.  The 
expected life used in the model is adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of 
non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognized in 
the statement of operations except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items 
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case the income tax is also 
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.  
 
Current income taxes are the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax 
rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of all qualifying temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements. Deferred income tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using tax rates and laws 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected to 
apply when the deferred tax asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the 
extent that it is probable that the assets can be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current.  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
   
Impairment of Long-lived Assets 
 
The Company’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for an indication of impairment at each 
statement of financial position date. If indication of impairment exists, the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated.   
 
An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset, or its cash-generating unit, 
exceeds its recoverable amount.  A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets 
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets.  Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of operations for the period.  
Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash-generating units and then to reduce the carrying 
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis. 
 
The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset.  For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the 
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
 
An impairment loss is reversed if there is an indication that there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that 
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.  An impairment loss 
with respect to goodwill is never reversed. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows 
from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net 
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.  
 
At initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories depending 
on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired. 
 
Financial assets are classified into one of four categories: Financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss (“FVTPL”), Held-to-maturity investments, available for sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans 
and receivable. 
 
The Company has classified cash and cash equivalents as FVTPL and amounts receivable as loans 
and receivables. 
 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
asset is impaired. Financial assets are impaired when one or more events that occurred after the 
initial recognition of the financial asset have been impacted. 
 

  



TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO AMENDED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)   TSX.V:  TRK 
 
 

10 
  

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Financial Instruments (Continued) 
 
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 
 
The carrying amount of all financial assets, excluding trade receivables, is directly reduced by the 
impairment loss. The carrying amount of trade receivables is reduced through the use of an 
allowance. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the 
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in the 
statement of operations. 
 
Impairment losses on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost are reversed in subsequent 
periods if the amount of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity 
instruments are not reversed. 
 
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, or other 
financial liabilities, as appropriate.  
 
The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial 
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.  
 
The Company’s financial liabilities include accounts payables and accrued liabilities, which are 
classified as other financial liabilities. Subsequent to initial recognition, accounts payable and 
accrued financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.  
 
Rehabilitation Provisions 
 
The Company recognizes liabilities for statutory, contractual, constructive or legal obligations 
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets, when those obligations result from the 
acquisition, construction, development or normal operation of the assets.  The net present value of 
future rehabilitation cost estimates is capitalized to the amount of the related asset along with a 
corresponding increase in the rehabilitation provision in the period incurred.  Discount rates using a 
pre-tax rate that reflect the time value of money are used to calculate the net present value.  The 
rehabilitation asset is depreciated on the same basis as the related asset. The liability is 
progressively increased each period as the effect of discounting unwinds, creating an expense 
recognition in the statement of operations. 
 
The Company’s estimates of reclamation costs could change as a result of changes in regulatory 
requirements and assumptions regarding the amount and timing of the future expenditures.  These 
changes are recorded directly to the related asset with a corresponding entry to the rehabilitation 
provision.  
 
The Company’s estimates are reviewed at each reporting date for changes in regulatory 
requirements, effects of inflation and changes in estimates. 
 
Changes in the net present value, excluding changes in the Company’s estimates of reclamation 
costs, are charged to the statement of operations for the year. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Translation of Foreign Currencies 
 
The functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiary is the Canadian dollar, being the 
currency of the primary economic environment of the parent entity.  The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Canadian dollars which is the parent company’s functional and 
presentation currency.   
 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates 
prevailing at the date of the transaction.  Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the 
period-end exchange rate.  Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  Non-monetary items measured at fair value are 
reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined and not subsequently 
restated. 
 
Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items or on settlement of monetary 
items are recognized in profit or loss in the statement of operation in the period in which they arise, 
except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge. 
 
Comparative Figures 
 
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. 
 
Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Applied 
 
Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been issued by 
the IASB and IFRC and are mandatory for fiscal accounting periods beginning January 1, 2013 or 
later periods.  Some updates that are not applicable or are not consequential to the Company have 
been excluded from the list below. Management is currently evaluating the impact on the 
consolidated financial statements. 
  
 IFRS 9 Establishes principles for classification and measurement of financial instruments 

(Effective for annual periods beginning or after January 1, 2015). 
 

 IFRS 10 Establishes principles for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial 
statements when an entity controls one or more other entities (Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2013). 
 

 IFRS 11 Establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement (Effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). 

 
 IFRS 12 Applies to entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an associate 

or an unconsolidated structured entity (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2013). 

 
 IAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendments to IAS 12 (Effective for 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). 
 
 IAS 27 Contains accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, joint 

ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate financial statements (Effective for 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Applied (Continued) 
 

 IAS 28 Sets out the requirements for the application of the equity method when accounting for 
investments in associates and joint ventures (Effective for periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2013).  
 

 
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
 
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following 
notes: 
 
i) Exploration and evaluation expenditure 

 
 The application of the Company’s accounting policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure 

requires judgment in determining whether it is likely that future economic benefits will flow to the 
Company, which may be based on assumptions about future events or circumstances. Estimates 
and assumptions made may change if new information becomes available. If, after expenditure is 
capitalized, information becomes available suggesting that the recovery of expenditure is unlikely, 
the amount capitalized is written off in the statement of operations in the period the new 
information becomes available. 

 
ii) Impairment 

 
 At each reporting period, assets, specifically exploration & evaluation are reviewed for impairment 

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts exceed their 
recoverable amounts. The assessment of the carrying amount often requires estimates and 
assumptions such as discount rates, exchange rates, commodity prices, future capital 
requirements and future operating performance. 

 
iii) Share-based payment transactions 

 
 The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to 

the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value 
for share-based payment transactions requires determining the most appropriate valuation model, 
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires 
determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the 
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions 
and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in 
Note 8. 
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Continued) 
 
iv) Title to mineral property interest 

 
 Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an 

interest, these procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title. Such properties may be subject 
to prior agreements or transfers and title may be affected by undetected defects. 

 
v) Income taxes 

 
 Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many 

transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the 
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Company recognizes liabilities and contingencies for 
anticipated tax audit issues based on the Company’s current understanding of the tax law. For 
matters where it is probable that an adjustment will be made, the Company records its best 
estimate of the tax liability including the related interest and penalties in the current tax provision. 
Management believes they have adequately provided for the probable outcome of these matters; 
however, the final outcome may result in a materially different outcome than the amount included 
in the tax liabilities. 

 
In addition, the Company recognizes deferred tax assets relating to tax losses carried forward to 
the extent there are sufficient taxable temporary differences (deferred tax liabilities) relating to the 
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity against which the unused tax losses can be 
utilized. However, utilization of the tax losses also depends on the ability of the taxable entity to 
satisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. 
 

vi) Rehabilitation provision 
 

The application of the Company’s accounting policy for rehabilitation is based on internal 
estimates.  Assumptions, based on the current economic environment, have been made which 
management believes are a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the future liability.  These 
estimates take into account any material changes to the assumptions that occur when reviewed 
regularly by management.  Estimates are reviewed annually and are based on current regulatory 
requirements. Significant changes in estimates will result in changes to provisions from period to 
period. Actual rehabilitation costs will ultimately depend on future market prices for the 
rehabilitation costs which will reflect the market conditions at the time of the rehabilitation costs 
are actually incurred.  

 
 

5. RECLAMATION DEPOSIT 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Company was required to post a reclamation deposit in the 
amount of $46,804 (US$45,900) with the USDA Forest Service in order to continue its exploration of 
the Morgan Peak property. The deposit will be refunded to the Company upon completion of 
reclamation to the satisfaction of the USDA Forrest Service. The reclamation deposit is being held in 
term deposits with various interest rates. The Company has no constructive or contingent liabilities 
arising from environmental or reclamation costs. 
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6. EQUIPMENT 
 
 

 
  

 COMPUTER 
 EQUIPMENT 

COST   
   
Balance, July 1, 2010 $ - 
Additions  1,550 
   
Balance, June 30, 2011   1,550 
   
Balance June 30, 2012  1,550 
Disposal  (1,550) 
   
Balance June 30, 2013 $ - 
   
DEPRECIATION   
   
Balance, July 1, 2010 $ - 
Charge for the year  520 
   
Balance June 30, 2011  325 
Charge for the year  780 
   
Balance June 30, 2012  1,105 
Charge for the year  445 
Disposal  (1,550) 
   
Balance June 30, 2013 $ - 
   
NET BOOK VALUE   
   
At June 30, 2011 $ 1,225 
   
At June 30, 2012 $ 445 
   
At June 30, 2013 $ - 
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7. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 
 

Exploration and evaluation costs for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Morgan Peak, Arizona, USA 
 
On December 10, 2009, the Company entered into a letter of intent with MinQuest Inc. (“MinQuest”) 
to acquire a 100% undivided interest in the Morgan Peak Property in Arizona, USA, comprising 102 
unpatented mineral claims covering a total of 2020 acres. Upon execution of the letter of intent, the 
Company paid to MinQuest a $10,862 (US$10,000) non-refundable deposit. 

 
On February 1, 2010, the Company entered into a definitive mineral property agreement (amended 
June 6, 2012) with MinQuest in respect to the option to acquire a 100% interest in the property 
subject to a 3% Net Smelter Returns Royalty.  At that time, the non-refundable deposit became part 
of the amount due upon signing the agreement.  

 
On March 10, 2010, the Company assigned all its rights and obligations pursuant to the mineral 
contract to its wholly owned subsidiary, TRI, a company incorporated in Nevada.  

 
In order to earn the interest, TRC is required to issue an aggregate of 3,000,000 shares of common 
stock, and TRI is required to make cash payments to MinQuest totalling US$1,000,000 and incur an 
aggregate of US$4,300,000 in exploration expenditures as follows: 

  

 MORGAN PEAK 
     

  2013  2012 
Acquisition costs     

Balance, beginning of year $ 264,208 $$ 153,035 
Additions  77,035  111,173 

Balance, end of year  341,243  264,208 
     

Deferred exploration and evaluation costs     
Balance, beginning of year  594,794  471,948 

Assessments and fees  15,747  27,012 
Consulting and engineering  9,959  73,935 
Drilling  -  - 
Field and travel  2,109  14,431 
Office  -  5,931 
Reports and maps  -  - 
Storage  3,087  1,537 

Balance, end of year  625,696  594,794 
     

Total deferred exploration and evaluation assets $ 966,939 $$ 859,002 
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7. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (Continued) 

 
  SHARE   
 CASH CONSIDERATION   

 COMPENSATION (NUMBER OF  EXPLORATION  
 (US $) SHARES)  EXPENDITURES 

      
Upon signing the agreement $ 20,000 (paid) 250,000 (issued) $ - 
On or before February 1, 2011  20,000 (paid) 250,000 (issued)  250,000 (spent) 
On or before February 1, 2012  25,000 (paid) 300,000 (issued)  350,000 (spent) 
On or before February 1, 2013  30,000 (paid) 350,000 (issued)  - 
On or before February 1, 2014  40,000 400,000  950,000 
On or before February 1, 2015  50,000 450,000  750,000 
On or before February 1, 2016  50,000 500,000  1,000,000 
On or before February 1, 2017  50,000 500,000  1,000,000 
On or before February 1, 2018  715,000 -  - 
      
 $ 1,000,000 3,000,000 $ 4,300,000 
 

In addition, if the price of copper exceeds US$3.90/lb. for a period of 20 consecutive business days 
between February 1, 2013 and February 1, 2014, the Company shall within 60 days fund a drilling 
program of US$150,000. 
 
TRI also assumed the obligation to make cash payments totalling US$665,000 to the underlying 
property vendor as follows: 

 CASH 
 COMPENSATION 
 (US $) 

   
Upon signing the agreement $ 10,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2010  10,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2011  25,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2012  30,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2013  40,000 
December 5, 2014  50,000 
December 5, 2015  50,000 
December 5, 2016  50,000 
December 5, 2017  400,000 
 $ 665,000 

 
As at June 30, 2013 the Company has paid $176,209 (US$170,000) and issued 1,150,000 common 
shares with an aggregate fair value of $155,000 pursuant to the agreement.   
 
During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company staked a further 28 claims, and during the year 
ended June 30, 2011 a further 68 claims were staked contiguous to the main property. At June 30, 
2012, 8 of the staked claims, owned 100% by the Company, remain active and the Company has 
allowed the remaining staked claims to lapse. The property is comprised of a total of 110 claims as 
at June 30, 2013.  
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8. SHARE CAPITAL 
 

a) Authorized: 
 

Unlimited voting common shares without par value 
Unlimited non-voting preferred shares with a par value of $1 each (none issued) 

 
b) Issued and Outstanding - Common Shares: 

 
During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Company issued 350,000 common shares pursuant to 
the Morgan Creek mineral property agreement with a fair value of $17,500.  
 
Pursuant to the loan agreement (see Note 10), 400,000 common shares were issued as a loan 
bonus with a fair value of $20,000. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Company issued 300,000 common shares pursuant to 
the Morgan Creek mineral property agreement with a fair value of $60,000. 
 

c) Share Purchase Warrants 
 
As at June 30, 2013 and 2012, no share purchase warrants for the acquisition of common shares 
were outstanding.   

 
d) Stock Options  

 
The Company has a stock option plan that provides for the issuance of stock options to its 
officers, directors, employees and consultants.  Stock options must be non-transferable and the 
aggregate number of shares that may be reserved for issuance pursuant to stock options may not 
exceed 10% of the issued shares of the Company at the time of granting and may not exceed 5% 
to any individual. 
 
The exercise price of stock options is determined by the board of directors of the Company at the 
time of grant and may not be less than the closing market price of the Company’s shares on the 
day immediately prior to the award date, less any discount which may be permitted by the 
exchange on which the Company is listed.  Options have a maximum term of five years. 

 
As at June 30, 2013, stock options were outstanding for the purchase of common shares as 
follows: 

 

    
  NUMBER  

NUMBER EXERCISE EXERCISABLE  
OF PRICE AT EXPIRY 

OPTIONS PER SHARE JUNE 30, 2013 DATE 
2,050,000 $ 0.10 1,000,000 May 15, 2017 

50,000 $ 0.20 50,000 March 23, 2016 
2,050,000   1,050,000  
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8. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 
 

 
STOCK OPTION SUMMARY YEAR ENDED  YEAR ENDED 
 JUNE 30, 2013  JUNE 30, 2012 

  
 

 
NUMBER 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 
EXERCISE 

PRICE 

  
 
 

NUMBER 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 
EXERCISE 

PRICE 
        
Balance, beginning of year 1,450,000 $ 0.13  1,450,000 $ 0.13 
Granted 1,400,000  0.10  -  - 
Exercised -  -  -  - 
Forfeited (800,000)  0.14  -  - 
        

Balance, end of year 2,050,000 $ 0.10  1,450,000 $ 0.13 
 

Upon exercise of any stock options, consideration paid by the option holder together with the 
amount previously recognized in contributed surplus is recorded as an increase to share capital.   
 

 
e) Share-based Payments  

 
During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Company recorded $33,025 (2012 - Nil) in share-based 
payments for options granted or vesting during the year. 
 
The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: 

 
 YEARS ENDED 
 JUNE 30,  
 2013 2012 
   
Risk free interest rate 1.713% n/a 
Expected life 3 years n/a 
Expected volatility 99.70% n/a 
Expected dividend yield 0 n/a 
Expected forfeiture n/a n/a 
Weighted average of fair value of options granted $0.10 n/a 

 
 
9. INCOME TAXES 
 

The Company is subject to income taxes on its unconsolidated financial statements in both Canada and 
the United States. The consolidated provision for income taxes varies from the amount that would be 
computed from applying the combined statutory income tax rates to the net loss before taxes were 
approximately as follows: 
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9. INCOME TAXES (Continued) 
 
 2013 2012 
     
Combined statutory tax rate  26%  26% 
     
Expected income tax recovery  $ 64,000 $ 57,000 
Non-deductible differences  29,000  43,000 
Effect of changes in tax rate  200)  300) 
Unrecognized benefit of loss carry forwards  (93,200)  (100,300) 
     
Income tax provision $ - $ - 

 
 

The significant components of the company’s deferred income tax assets were approximately as 
follows: 

 
 2013 2012 
     

Losses available for future periods $ 602,000 $ 496,000 
Resource property expenditures and equipment  37,000  36,000 
Share issuance costs  4,000  8,000 
Valuation allowance  (643,000)  (540,000) 
     
Net deferred income tax asset $ - $ - 

 
As of June 30, 2013, the Company has Canadian and U.S. non-capital losses of approximately 
$1,999,000 which may be carried forward and applied against taxable income in future years. These 
losses expire as follows: 

 
CANADA  U.S. 

       
2026 $ 33,000  2026 $ - 
2027  165,000  2027  - 
2028  139,000  2028  - 
2029  69,000  2029  - 
2030  138,000  2030  3,000 
2031  340,000  2031  488,000 
2032  218,000  2032  126,000 
2033  233,000  2033  29,000 

 $ 1,336,000   $ 646,000 
 
The Company has resource pools of approximately $144,000 (2012 – $144,000) in Canada and $Nil 
(2011 - $Nil) in the U.S. available to offset future taxable income. The tax benefit of these amounts is 
available for carry-forward indefinitely. 
 
The potential tax benefits of these items have not been recognized as realization is not considered 
more likely than not. 
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10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

The following related party transactions were in the normal course of operations and measured at the 
exchange amount, which is the amount established and agreed to by the related parties. Unless 
otherwise noted, amounts due to and from related parties were non-interest bearing, unsecured and had 
not fixed terms of repayment. 
 
In addition to those related party transactions disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements the 
Company incurred the following transactions and balances: 

 
a) Included in accounts payable is $169 due for office expenses due to a corporation with related 

directors and executives (June 30, 2012 - $64,000 for consulting fees). 
 
b) On April 26, 2013, the Company announced it had secured an interim loan of $100,000 with interest 

of 5% per annum, calculated monthly, from RD Capital Inc., a company controlled by Dev 
Randhawa, Chairman and CEO.  The short term financing ensures that the Company can meet its 
current commitments on the Company’s Morgan Peak Copper Project. On May 21, 2013 the 
Company issued 400,000 loan bonus shares to RD Capital Inc. valued at $0.05 per share. 

 
c) During the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company incurred the following expenses paid 

or payable to key management personnel, directors, and companies with a common director or 
officer. Key management personnel are considered to be the CEO, CFO, President and Vice 
President of Operations:  

 
 YEARS ENDED  
 JUNE 30 
 2013 2012 
Amounts paid or payable  to key management personnel:     

     
Office expenses $ 2,796 $ 1,680 
Travel  5,687  2,280 
Management fees  109,000  48,000 
Share based payments  21,230  - 
Loan bonus  20,000  - 
Amounts included in exploration and evaluation costs  8,186  40,600 

  166,899  92,560 
Amounts paid to other related parties:     

     
Office expenses  1,666  5,305 
Travel  -  9,970 

  1,666  15,275 
 $ 168,565  107,835 

 
 

11. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES 
 
The Company was formed for the purpose of acquiring exploration and development stage natural 
resource properties.  The Board determines the Company’s capital structure and makes adjustments 
to it based on funds available to the Company in order to support the acquisition, exploration and 
development of mineral properties.  The Directors have not established quantitative return on capital 
criteria for capital management. 
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11. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (Continued) 
The Company currently owns 110 unpatented mining claims located in Gila County, Arizona and 
does not generate any revenue, and accordingly the Company will be dependent in the future upon 
external financing to fund future exploration programs and its administrative costs.  The Company 
will spend existing working capital and raise additional amounts as needed. 

 
The Company will continue to assess new properties and to seek to acquire an interest in additional 
properties if management decides there is sufficient geologic and/or economic potential. The 
Directors review their capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this 
approach, given the relative size of the Company, is reasonable. 
 
The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, assuring continued returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. 
 
The Company considers the items included in the statement of shareholders’ equity as capital.  The 
Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.  In order to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares through private placements, sell 
assets to reduce debt or return capital to shareholders.  The Company has no externally imposed 
capital requirements. 
 
 

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

IFRS 7 establishes a fair value hierarchy that priorities the input to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value as follows:  
 
Level 1 – Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2 –  Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices included 

in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly such as quoted prices 
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or indirectly such as quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions. 

 
 Level 3 – Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable market data. 

 
The Company has no assets or liabilities subject to fair value measurement on a recurring basis. For 
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, the following table provides the 
fair value measures by level of valuation assumptions used: 
 
 
 FAIR 

VALUE 
YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2013 

YEAR ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2012 

 INPUT CARRYING ESTIMATED CARRYING ESTIMATED 
 LEVEL AMOUNT FAIR VALUE AMOUNT FAIR VALUE 
      
Financial Assets:          

Cash and cash equivalents 1 $ 73,550 $ 73,550 $ 140,683 $ 140,683 
Reclamation deposit 2  46,804  46,804  46,804  46,804 

  $ 120,354 $ 120,354 $ 187,487 $ 187,487 
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 
Due to the relatively short term nature of cash, amounts receivable, reclamation deposit and accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities, the fair value of these instruments approximates their carrying value. 
 
Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management team with guidance from the Board 
of Directors.  The Company's risk exposures and their impact on the Company's financial instruments 
are summarized below: 

 
a) Credit Risk 

 
The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash, short-term investments and amounts 
receivable.  Cash and short-term investments are held with one reputable Canadian chartered 
bank which is closely monitored by management. Management believes that the credit risk 
concentration with respect to financial instruments included in cash, short-term investments and 
amounts receivable is minimal. 
 

b) Liquidity Risk 
 

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity 
to meet liabilities when due.  As at June 30, 2013, the Company held cash of $73,550 (June 30, 
2012 - $140,683) and had current liabilities of $23,607 (June 30, 2012 - $94,328).  All of the 
Company’s current liabilities have contractual maturities of less than 30 days and are subject to 
normal trade terms. 

 
c) Market Risk 

 
i) Interest Rate Risk 

 
The Company had cash balances and short-term investments, and no interest bearing debt.  
The Company’s current policy is to invest excess cash in investment-grade short-term 
deposit certificates issued by its banking institutions.  The Company periodically monitors the 
investments it makes and is satisfied with the creditworthiness of its banks.   
 

ii) Foreign Currency Risk 
 

The Company’s functional currency and the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar 
(“CDN$”). Periodically the Company incurs charges on its operations for settlement in 
currencies other than its functional currency and any gain or loss arising on such transactions 
is recorded in operations for the year. 
 
The Company holds a 100% interest in its subsidiary Toro Resources Inc. (“TRI”) which 
operates in the United States of America.  TRI has transactions which are recorded in the US 
Dollar (“USD$”).   
 
As a result, the Company is subject to foreign currency and exchange risk on the translation 
of these transactions and year end balances to the reporting currency.  Any gains or losses 
arising in the period are included in operations for the year. 
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 

ii) Foreign Currency Risk (Continued) 
 

As at June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012, a 1% strengthening in the USD relative to the CDN$ 
does not have a significant impact on the net loss for the year. 
 
Any unrealized translation adjustments arising at period end are included in operating loss for 
the year. 

 
The mineral property contract (Note 7) is denominated in US Dollars, and accordingly, 
changes in the exchange rate will affect the Company’s future cash outflows pursuant to this 
agreement.  As at June 30, 2013, a 1% strengthening in the USD$ relative to the CDN$ 
would result in future cash outflows increasing by approximately CDN$ 54,000. 
 
The Company does not participate in any hedging activities to mitigate any gains or losses 
which may arise as a result of exchange rate changes. 

  
 As at June 30, 2013, financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the 

Canadian dollar are as follows: 
 

 FINANCIAL FINANCIAL 
 ASSETS LIABILITIES 

   
US dollars $ 48,169 $ - 

 
iii) Commodity Price Risk 

 
The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity and equity prices. Equity 
price risk is defined as the potential adverse impact on the Company's earnings due to 
movements in individual equity prices or general movements in the level of the stock market. 
Commodity price risk is defined as the potential adverse impact on earnings and economic 
value due to commodity price movements and volatilities. To mitigate price risk, the Company 
closely monitors commodity prices of precious metals, individual equity movements, and the 
stock market to determine the appropriate course of action to be taken by the Company. 

 
13. Subsequent Events 
 

On July 12, 2013 the Company announced a non-binding letter of intent with PBar Land & Minerals, 
LLC (“PBar”), whereby PBar, upon the completion of a formal option agreement, has the right to earn 
up to a 51% in the Morgan Peak copper project (“Morgan Peak”).  PBar is private mineral exploration 
company located in Phoenix, Arizona. 
 
Under the terms of the Option, PBar has the right, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions 
precedent including the receipt of TSX Venture Exchange (the “Exchange”) acceptance, to acquire up 
to 51% interest in Morgan Peak by incurring US$4,300,000 of staged exploration expenditures and 
paying US$1,250,000 on or before the 4th anniversary date of the Agreement as follows:  
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13. Subsequent Events (Continued) 
 

Term Work Obligation Cash Consideration
12 months 850,000$         150,000$             
24 months 1,000,000        200,000               
36 months 1,225,000        300,000               
48 months 1,225,000        600,000               
Total 4,300,000$     1,250,000$           

 
Once PBar has earned the initial 51% interest, it will have the right to increase its interest to 60% upon 
completion of a Preliminary Economic Assessment and PBar may increase its interest to 70% upon 
completion of a Definitive Feasibility Study.  
   
The Letter Agreement is subject to the satisfaction of the usual conditions precedent including the 
completion of formal documentation and due diligence and the receipt, if necessary, of all necessary 
approvals of the Exchange and all other regulatory authorities and third parties to the option. Toro has 
agreed, subject to Exchange acceptance, to the payment of a finder’s fee upon the successful 
completion of the Acquisition.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Shareholders of Toro Resources Corp., 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Toro Resources Corp. and its subsidiary, which 
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at June 30, 2012, June 30, 2011 and July 1, 2010, and the 
consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for the years ended June 30, 
2012 and June 30, 2011 and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial 
statements are free of material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Toro 
Resources Corp. and its subsidiary as at June 30, 2012, June 30, 2011 and July 1, 2010 and their financial performance and 
their cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates that the Company 
has limited working capital, no current sources of revenue and is dependent upon its ability to secure new sources of 
financing.  These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate the existence of a material 
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
 
 
 
 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Vancouver, Canada 
October 15, 2012 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
 
 
 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JULY 1 
 2012 2011 2010 
  (Note 13) (Note 13) 
       
ASSETS       
       
Current       

Cash and cash equivalents $ 140,683 $ 563,033 $ 691,850 
Amounts receivable  23,329  26,238  4,425 
Prepaid expenses  5,446  6,394  10,000 

  169,458  595,665  706,275 
       
Equipment (Note 6)  445  1,225  - 
Exploration and evaluation assets (Note 7)  859,002  624,983  141,031 
Reclamation deposit (Note 5)  46,804  -  - 
       
 $ 1,075,709 $ 1,221,873 $ 847,306 
       
LIABILITIES       
       
Current       

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 94,328 $ 79,047 $ 32,664 
       
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY       
       
Share capital (Note 8)  2,202,266  2,142,266  1,480,576 
Contributed surplus  154,910  154,910  118,100 
Deficit  (1,375,795)  (1,154,350)  (784,034) 
  981,381  1,142,826  814,642 
       
 $ 1,075,709 $ 1,221,873 $ 847,306 
 
Nature of operations and going concern (Note 1) 
 
 
Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors  

   
“William C. Galine”  “Ronald Atlas” 

Director  Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
 

 
 YEARS ENDED  
 JUNE 30 

  2012  2011 
    (Note 13) 

   
Expenses   

Consulting fees 55,000 60,000 
Depreciation 780 325 
Foreign exchange loss 413 5,320 
Management fees 48,000 32,000 
Office and miscellaneous 24,953 31,205 
Professional fees 37,737 102,319 
Regulatory fees 4,933 39,944 
Rent 15,240 19,139 
Share-based payments - 41,000 
Shareholder communications 6,770 9,935 
Transfer and filing fees 10,798 15,758 
Travel 16,821 13,371 

Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year $ 221,445 $ 370,316 
   
   

Loss per common share, basic and diluted $ (0.01) $ (0.02) 
   
   

Weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding 

 
23,271,924 

 
19,787,687 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
 

 
 YEARS ENDED 
 JUNE 30, 
 2012 2011 
  (Note 13) 
    
Cash provided by (used In):    
   
Operating activities   

Net loss for the year $ (221,445) $ (370,316) 
     
Amounts not affecting cash:     

Amortization  780  325 
Share-based payments  -  41,000 

  (220,665)  (328,991) 
Net changes in non-cash operating working capital items:     

Amounts receivable  2,909  (21,813) 
Prepaid expenses  948  3,606 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  28,585  43,497 

Net cash flows used in operating activities  (188,223)  (303,701) 
     
Investing activities     

Mineral property expenditures and acquisition costs  (187,323)  (428,566) 
Purchase of equipment  -  (1,550) 
Reclamation deposit  (46,804)  - 

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (234,127)  (430,116) 
     
Financing activities     

Common shares issued for cash  -  605,000 
Net cash flows provided by financing activities  -  605,000 
     
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year  (422,350)  (128,817) 
     
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  563,033  691,850 
     
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 140,683 $ 563,033 
     
Supplementary disclosure for non-cash investing and 

financing activities 
    

Transfer of fair value from contributed surplus to share capital 
on exercise of options 

 
$

 
- 

 
$ 

 
4,190 

Fair value of share issued pursuant to mineral property 
agreement 

 
$

 
60,000 

 
$ 

 
52,500 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
 

    TOTAL 
 SHARE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTED ACCUMULATED SHAREHOLDERS’ 
 SHARES AMOUNT SURPLUS DEFICIT EQUITY 

          
Balance July 1, 2010 16,848,636 $ 1,480,576 $ 118,100 $ (784,034) $ 814,642 
          
Shares issued on exercise of stock 

options 
 

50,000 
 
 

 
9,190 

 
 

 
(4,190) 

  
- 

  
5,000 

Shares issued on exercise of share 
purchase warrants 

 
6,000,000 

 
 

 
600,000 

  
- 

  
- 

  
600,000 

Shares issued for mineral property  
(Note 7) 

 
250,000 

 
 

 
52,500 

  
- 

  
- 

  
52,500 

Fair value of stock options vesting in 
year 

 
- 

 
 

 
- 

 
 

 
41,000 

  
- 

  
41,000 

Net loss for the year -  -  -  (370,316)  (370,316) 
          
Balance June 30, 2011 23,148,636  2,142,266  154,910  (1,154,350)  1,142,826 
          
Shares issued for mineral property  

(Note 7) 
 

300,000 
  

60,000 
  

- 
  

- 
  

60,000 
Net loss for the year -  -  -  (221,445)  (221,445) 
          
Balance June 30, 2012 23,448,636 $ 2,202,266 $ 154,910 $ (1,375,795) $ 981,381 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 
 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 

 
 

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN 
 

Toro Resources Corporation, (the “Company”) was incorporated on June 30, 2005 in British 
Columbia, Canada and is listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange Venture (“TSX-V”) with TRK as 
the trading symbol.  
 
The Company is a natural resource company engaged in the acquisition and exploration of 
resource properties in the United States of America.  The Company presently has no proven or 
probable reserves and on the basis of information to date, it has not yet determined whether 
these properties contain economically recoverable ore reserves. Consequently, the Company 
considers itself to be an exploration stage company.   
 
The address of the Company’s corporate office and principal place of business is Suite 600 – 595 
Howe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2T5, Canada. 
 
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes 
that the Company will be able to meet its obligations and continue its operations for its next fiscal 
year.  Realization values may be substantially different from carrying values as shown and these 
consolidated financial statements do not give effect to adjustments that would be necessary to the 
carrying values and classification of assets and liabilities should the Company be unable to 
continue as a going concern. 
 
 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
a) Statement of Compliance 

 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“ISAB”). 
 
This is the first time that the Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with 
IFRS, having previously prepared its financial statements in accordance with pre-changeover 
Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (pre-changeover Canadian GAAP). 
 
An explanation of how the transition to IFRS has affected the reported financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note 13. 
 
The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 
October 15, 2012. 
 

b) Basis of Measurement 
 

These financial statements have been prepared under on a historical cost basis except for financial 
instruments which have been measured at fair value. They include the consolidated financial 
statements of the Company and its 100% wholly owned U.S. subsidiary Toro Resources Inc. 
(“TRI”).  The functional currency of the parent and its subsidiary company is the Canadian dollar, 
being the currency of the primary economic environment of the parent entity.  The functional 
currency is also the presentation currency. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 
 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 

 
 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 
 
b) Basis of Measurement (Continued) 

 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
profit and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of 
which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.  Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only 
that period or in the period of the revision and further periods if the review affects both current and 
future periods. See Note 4 for Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments made by management 
in the application of IFRS. 

 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements set out 
below have been applied consistently in all material respects 
 
The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
set out below have been applied consistently in all material respects. 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
 
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned 
Nevada subsidiary, Toro Resources Inc. All inter-company balances and transactions have been 
eliminated on consolidation. 

 
Basic and Diluted Loss per Share 
 
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the loss for the year by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during the year.  Diluted earnings per share reflect the 
potential dilution that could occur if potentially dilutive securities were exercised or converted to 
common stock. The dilutive effect of options and warrants and their equivalent is computed by 
application of the treasury stock method and the effect of convertible securities by the “if converted” 
method.  Diluted amounts are not presented when the effect of the computations are anti-dilutive due 
to the losses incurred. Accordingly, there is no difference in the amounts presented for basic and 
diluted loss per share. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents include short-term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash which are subject to 
insignificant risk of change, with maturities within three months, held for the purpose of meeting 
short-term cash commitments rather than for investing or other purposes.  At June 30, 2012 and 
2011 the Company held no cash equivalents. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 
 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 

 
 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Exploration and Evaluation Assets 
 
Pre-exploration costs 
 
Pre-exploration costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Exploration and evaluation costs for mineral properties 
 
Once the legal right to explore a property has been acquired, exploration and evaluation 
expenditures are recognized and capitalized.  Mineral exploration costs are capitalized on an individual 
prospect basis until such time as an economic ore body is defined or the prospect is abandoned.  Once 
the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extraction of the mineral resources has been 
determined, the property is considered to be a property under development and is reclassified as such 
costs for a producing prospect are amortized on a unit-of-production method based on the estimated life 
of the ore reserves, while those costs for the prospects abandoned are written off.  
 
On an annual basis or when impairment indicators arise, the Company evaluates the future 
recoverability of its mineral property costs.  Impairment losses or write-downs are recorded in the 
event the net book value of such assets exceeds the estimated indicated future cash flows 
attributable to such assets. 
 
Exploration and evaluation costs for mineral properties 
 
The recoverability of the amounts capitalized for the undeveloped mineral property is dependent 
upon the determination of economically recoverable ore reserves, confirmation of the Company’s 
interest in the underlying mineral claims, the ability to obtain the necessary financing to complete 
their development, and future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition thereof.  
 
Title to mineral properties involves certain inherent risks due to the difficulties of determining the 
validity of certain claims as well as the potential for problems arising from the frequently ambiguous 
conveyance history characteristic of many mineral properties.  The Company has investigated title to 
its mineral properties and, to the best of its knowledge, the title to its properties are in good standing. 
 
Management’s capitalization of exploration and development costs and assumptions regarding the 
future recoverability of such costs are subject to significant measurement uncertainty.  
Management’s assessment of recoverability is based on, among other things, the Company’s 
estimate of current mineral reserves and resources which are supported by geological estimates, 
estimated commodity prices, and the procurement of all necessary regulatory permits and approvals.  
These assumptions and estimates could change in the future and this could materially affect the 
carrying value and the ultimate recoverability of the amounts recorded for mineral properties. 
 
Option Payments Received 

 
Option payments received are treated as a reduction of the carrying value of the related mineral 
properties and deferred exploration costs, and the balance, if any, is taken into income. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 
 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 

 
 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Share-based Payments 
 
Equity-settled share-based payments for directors, officers and employees are measured at fair 
value at the date of grant and recorded as compensation expense in the financial statements.  The 
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed using 
the graded vesting method over the vesting period based on the Company’s estimate of shares that 
will eventually vest.  Any consideration paid by directors, officers, employees and consultants on 
exercise of equity-settled share based payments is credited to share capital.  Shares are issued from 
treasury upon the exercise of equity-settled share based instruments. 
 
Compensation expense on stock options granted to non-employees is measured at the earlier of the 
completion of performance and the date the options are vested using the fair value method and is 
recorded as an expense in the same period as if the Company had paid cash for the goods or 
services received. 
 
When the value of goods or services received in exchange for the share-based payment cannot be 
reliably estimated, the fair value is measured by use of a Black-Scholes valuation model.  The 
expected life used in the model is adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of 
non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognized in 
the statement of operations except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items 
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case the income tax is also 
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.  
 
Current income taxes are the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax 
rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of all qualifying temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements. Deferred income tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using tax rates and laws 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected to 
apply when the deferred tax asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the 
extent that it is probable that the assets can be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current.  
 
Property and Equipment 
 
Computer Equipment is recorded at cost and amortized over its estimated useful life at the following 
rate: 50% straight line per annum. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 
 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 

 
 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
   
Impairment of Long-lived Assets 
 
The Company’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for an indication of impairment at each 
statement of financial position date. If indication of impairment exists, the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated.   
 
An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset, or its cash-generating unit, 
exceeds its recoverable amount.  A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets 
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets.  Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of operations for the period.  
Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash-generating units and then to reduce the carrying 
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis. 
 
The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset.  For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the 
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
 
An impairment loss is reversed if there is an indication that there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that 
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determine, 
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.  An impairment loss 
with respect to goodwill is never reversed. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows 
from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net 
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.  
 
At initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories depending 
on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired. 
 
Financial assets are classified into one of four categories: Financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss (“FVTPL”), Held-to-maturity investments, available for sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans 
and receivable. 
 
The Company has classified cash and cash equivalents as FVTPL and amounts receivable as loans 
and receivables. 
 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
asset is impaired. Financial assets are impaired when one or more events that occurred after the 
initial recognition of the financial asset have been impacted. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 
 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 

 
 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Financial Instruments (Continued) 
 
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 
 
The carrying amount of all financial assets, excluding trade receivables, is directly reduced by the 
impairment loss. The carrying amount of trade receivable is reduced through the use of an 
allowance. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the 
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in the 
statement of operations. 
 
Impairment losses on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost are reversed in subsequent 
periods if the amount of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity 
instruments are not reversed. 
 
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, or other 
financial liabilities, as appropriate.  
 
The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial 
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.  
 
The Company’s financial liabilities include accounts payables and accrued liabilities, which are 
classified as other financial liabilities. Subsequent to initial recognition, accounts payable and 
accrued financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.  
 
Rehabilitation Provisions 
 
The Company recognizes liabilities for statutory, contractual, constructive or legal obligations 
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets, when those obligations result from the 
acquisition, construction, development or normal operation of the assets.  The net present value of 
future rehabilitation cost estimates is capitalized to the amount of the related asset along with a 
corresponding increase in the rehabilitation provision in the period incurred.  Discount rates using a 
pre-tax rate that reflect the time value of money are used to calculate the net present value.  The 
rehabilitation asset is depreciated on the same basis as the related asset.  The liability is 
progressively increased each period as the effect of discounting unwinds, creating an expense 
recognition in the statement of operations. 
 
The Company’s estimates of reclamation costs could change as a result of changes in regulatory 
requirements and assumptions regarding the amount and timing of the future expenditures.  These 
changes are recorded directly to the related asset with a corresponding entry to the rehabilitation 
provision.  
 
The Company’s estimates are reviewed at each reporting date for changes in regulatory 
requirements, effects of inflation and changes in estimates. 
 
Changes in the net present value, excluding changes in the Company’s estimates of reclamation 
costs, are charged to the statement of operations for the year. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 
 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 

 
 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Translation of Foreign Currencies 
 
The functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiary is the Canadian dollar, being the 
currency of the primary economic environment of the parent entity.  The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Canadian dollars which is the parent company’s functional and 
presentation currency.   
 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates 
prevailing at the date of the transaction.  Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the 
period-end exchange rate.  Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  Non-monetary items measured at fair value are 
reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined and not subsequently 
restated. 
 
Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items or on settlement of monetary 
items are recognized in profit or loss in the statement of operation in the period in which they arise, 
except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge. 
 
Comparative Figures 
 
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. 
 
Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Applied 
 
Effective July 1, 2011, the Company adopted new and revised IFRSs that were issued by the IASB. 
The application of these new and revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts 
reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or 
arrangements: 
 
 IFRS 9 Establishes principles for classification and measurement of financial instruments 

(Effective for annual periods beginning or after January 1, 2015). 
 
 IFRS 10 Establishes principles for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial 

statements when an entity controls one or more other entities (Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2013). 
 

 IFRS 11 Establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement (Effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). 

 
 IFRS 12 Applies to entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an associate 

or an unconsolidated structured entity (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2013). 

 
 IAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendments to IAS 12 (Effective for 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). 
 
 IAS 27 Contains accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, joint 

ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate financial statements (Effective for 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 
 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 

 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Applied (Continued) 
 
 IAS 28 Sets out the requirements for the application of the equity method when accounting for 

investments in associates and joint ventures (Effective for periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2013).  

 
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
 
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following 
notes: 
 
i) Exploration and evaluation expenditure 

 
 The application of the Company’s accounting policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure 

requires judgment in determining whether it is likely that future economic benefits will flow to the 
Company, which may be based on assumptions about future events or circumstances. Estimates 
and assumptions made may change if new information becomes available. If, after expenditure is 
capitalized, information becomes available suggesting that the recovery of expenditure is unlikely, 
the amount capitalized is written off in the statement of operations in the period the new 
information becomes available. 

 
ii) Impairment 

 
 At each reporting period, assets, specifically exploration & evaluation are reviewed for impairment 

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts exceed their 
recoverable amounts. The assessment of the carrying amount often requires estimates and 
assumptions such as discount rates, exchange rates, commodity prices, future capital 
requirements and future operating performance. 

 
iii) Share-based payment transactions 

 
 The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to 

the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value 
for share-based payment transactions requires determining the most appropriate valuation model, 
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires 
determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the 
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions 
and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in 
Note 8. 
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TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 
 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 

 
 

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Continued) 
 
iv) Title to mineral property interest 

 
 Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an 

interest, these procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title. Such properties may be subject 
to prior agreements or transfers and title may be affected by undetected defects. 

 
v) Income taxes 

 
 Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many 

transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the 
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Company recognizes liabilities and contingencies for 
anticipated tax audit issues based on the Company’s current understanding of the tax law. For 
matters where it is probable that an adjustment will be made, the Company records its best 
estimate of the tax liability including the related interest and penalties in the current tax provision. 
Management believes they have adequately provided for the probable outcome of these matters; 
however, the final outcome may result in a materially different outcome than the amount included 
in the tax liabilities. 

 
In addition, the Company recognizes deferred tax assets relating to tax losses carried forward to 
the extent there are sufficient taxable temporary differences (deferred tax liabilities) relating to the 
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity against which the unused tax losses can be 
utilized. However, utilization of the tax losses also depends on the ability of the taxable entity to 
satisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. 
 

vi) Rehabilitation provision 
 

The application of the Company’s accounting policy for rehabilitation is based on internal 
estimates.  Assumptions, based on the current economic environment, have been made which 
management believes are a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the future liability.  These 
estimates take into account any material changes to the assumptions that occur when reviewed 
regularly by management.  Estimates are reviewed annually and are based on current regulatory 
requirements. Significant changes in estimates will result in changes to provisions from period to 
period.  Actual rehabilitation costs will ultimately depend on future market prices for the 
rehabilitation costs which will reflect the market conditions at the time of the rehabilitation costs 
are actually incurred.  

 
 

5. RECLAMATION DEPOSIT 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Company was required to post a reclamation deposit in the 
amount of $46,804 (US$45,900) with the USDA Forest Service in order to continue its exploration of 
the Morgan Peak property. The deposit will be refunded to the Company upon completion of 
reclamation to the satisfaction of the USDA Forrest Service. The reclamation deposits are being held in 
term deposits with various interest rates. The Company has no constructive or contingent liabilities 
arising from environmental or reclamation costs. 
 

  



16 
 

TORO RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 
 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 

 
 
6. EQUIPMENT 

 COMPUTER 
 EQUIPMENT 

COST  
   
Balance, July 1, 2010 $ - 
Additions  1,550 
Disposals  - 
   
Balance, June 30, 2011   1,550 
Additions  - 
   
Balance June 30, 2012 $ 1,550 
   
DEPRECIATION   
   
Balance, July 1, 2010 $ - 
Charge for the year  520 
  
Balance June 30, 2011  325 
Charge for the year  780 
   
Balance June 30, 2012 $ 1,105 
   
NET BOOK VALUE   
   
At June 30, 2011 $ 1,225 
   
At June 30, 2012 $ 445 
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7. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 
 

Exploration and evaluation costs for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Morgan Peak, Arizona, USA 
 
On December 10, 2009, the Company entered into a letter of intent with MinQuest Inc. (“MinQuest”) 
to acquire a 100% undivided interest in the Morgan Peak Property in Arizona, USA, comprising 102 
unpatented mineral claims covering a total of 2020 acres. Upon execution of the letter of intent, the 
Company paid to MinQuest a $10,862 (US$10,000) non-refundable deposit. 

 
On February 1, 2010, the Company entered into a definitive mineral property agreement (amended 
June 6, 2012) with MinQuest in respect to the option to acquire a 100% interest in the property 
subject to a 3% Net Smelter Returns Royalty.  At that time, the non-refundable deposit became part 
of the amount due upon signing the agreement.  

 
On March 10, 2010, the Company assigned all its rights and obligations pursuant to the mineral 
contract to its wholly owned subsidiary, TRI, a company incorporated in Nevada.  

 
In order to earn the interest, TRC is required to issue an aggregate of 3,000,000 shares of common 
stock and TRI is required to make cash payments to MinQuest totalling US$1,000,000, and incur an 
aggregate of US$4,300,000 in exploration expenditures as follows: 

 MORGAN PEAK 
     

  2012  2011 
Acquisition costs    

Balance, beginning of year $ 153,035 $ 70,448 
Additions  111,173 82,587 

Balance, end of year  264,208 153,035 
    

Deferred exploration and evaluation costs    
Balance, beginning of year  471,948 70,583 

Assessments and fees  27,012 36,457 
Consulting and engineering  73,935 309,509 
Drilling  - 4,813 
Field and travel  14,431 35,246 
Office  5,931 7,821 
Reports and maps  - 5,470 
Storage  1,537 2,049 

Balance, end of year  594,794 471,948 
    

Total deferred exploration and evaluation assets $ 859,002 $ 624,983 
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7. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (Continued) 
 

  SHARE   
 CASH CONSIDERATION   

 COMPENSATION (NUMBER OF  EXPLORATION  
 (US $) SHARES)  EXPENDITURES 

      
Upon signing the agreement $ 20,000 (paid) 250,000 (issued) $ - 
On or before February 1, 2011  20,000 (paid) 250,000 (issued)  250,000 (spent)
On or before February 1, 2012  25,000 (paid) 300,000 (issued)  350,000 (spent)
On or before February 1, 2013  30,000 350,000  - 
On or before February 1, 2014  40,000 400,000  950,000 
On or before February 1, 2015  50,000 450,000  750,000 
On or before February 1, 2016  50,000 500,000  1,000,000 
On or before February 1, 2017  50,000 500,000  1,000,000 
On or before February 1, 2018  715,000 -  - 
      
 $ 1,000,000 3,000,000 $ 4,300,000 
 

In addition, if the price of copper exceeds US$3.90/lb for a period of 20 consecutive business days 
between February 1, 2013 and February 1, 2014, the Company shall within 60 days fund a drilling 
program of US$150,000. 
TRI also assumed the obligation to make cash payments totalling US$665,000 to the underlying 
property vendor as follows: 

 CASH 
 COMPENSATION 
 (US $) 

   
Upon signing the agreement $ 10,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2010  10,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2011  25,000 (paid) 
December 5, 2012  30,000 
December 5, 2013  40,000 
December 5, 2014  50,000 
December 5, 2015  50,000 
December 5, 2016  50,000 
December 5, 2017  400,000 
 $ 665,000 

 
As at June 30, 2012, the Company has paid $126,708 (US$110,000) and issued 800,000 common 
shares with an aggregate fair value of $137,500 pursuant to the agreement.   
 
The Company also issued 102,000 common shares with a fair value of $10,200 as finders’ fees in 
respect to the transaction. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company staked a further 28 claims, and during the year 
ended June 30, 2011, a further 68 claims were staked contiguous to the main property. At June 30, 
2012, 8 of the staked claims remain active and the Company has allowed the remaining staked 
claims to lapse.  
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8. SHARE CAPITAL 
 

a) Authorized: 
 

Unlimited voting common shares without par value 
Unlimited non-voting preferred shares with a par value of $1 each (none issued) 

 
b) Issued and Outstanding - Common Shares: 

 
During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Company issued 300,000 common shares pursuant to 
the Morgan Creek mineral property agreement with a fair value of $60,000. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Company completed the following share issuances: 
 
i) 6,000,000 common shares pursuant to the exercise of share purchase warrants for 

aggregate proceeds of $600,000. 
 
ii) 50,000 common shares pursuant to the exercise of stock options for gross proceeds of 

$5,000. 
 
iii) 250,000 common shares pursuant to the Morgan Peak mineral property agreement with a fair 

value of $52,500. 
 

c) Share Purchase Warrants 
 
As at June 30, 2012, no share purchase warrants for the acquisition of common shares are 
outstanding. 
 
A summary of changes in share purchase warrants for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is 
presented below: 
 
 YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 
 JUNE 30, 2012 JUNE 30, 2011 

 
 

 
NUMBER 

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE 
EXERCISE 

PRICE 

  
 
 

NUMBER 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 
EXERCISE 

PRICE 
     
Balance, beginning of year 1,835,001 $ 0.30 7,835,001 $ 0.15 
Granted -  - -  - 
Exercised -  - (6,000,000)  0.10 
Expired (1,835,001)  (0.30) -  - 
       
Balance, end of year - $ - 1,835,001 $ 0.30 

 
 The weighted average share price on the dates the warrants were exercised was nil (2011 - 

$0.10.) 
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8. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 
 

d) Stock Options  
 

The Company has a stock option plan that provides for the issuance of stock options to its 
officers, directors, employees and consultants.  Stock options must be non-transferable and the 
aggregate number of shares that may be reserved for issuance pursuant to stock options may not 
exceed 10% of the issued shares of the Company at the time of granting and may not exceed 5% 
to any individual. 
 
The exercise price of stock options is determined by the board of directors of the Company at the 
time of grant and may not be less than the closing market price of the Company’s shares on the 
day immediately prior to the award date, less any discount which may be permitted by the 
exchange on which the Company is listed.  Options have a maximum term of five years. 

 
As at June 30, 2012, stock options were outstanding for the purchase of common shares as 
follows: 

 

  NUMBER  
  EXERCISABLE WEIGHTED  

NUMBER EXERCISE AT AVERAGE  
OF PRICE JUNE 30 EXPECTED EXPIRY 

OPTIONS PER SHARE 2012 LIFE DATE 
1,000,000 $ 0.10 1,000,000 1.18 March 4, 2015 

200,000 $ 0.18 200,000 0.57 June 3, 2015 
50,000 $ 0.18 50,000 0.16 August 31, 2015 

200,000 $ 0.20 250,000 0.66 March 23, 2016 
1,450,000   1,450,000 2.57  

 
A summary of changes in stock options for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is presented 
below: 

 YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 
 JUNE 30, 2012 JUNE 30, 2011 

 
 

 
NUMBER 

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE 
EXERCISE 

PRICE 

 
 
 

NUMBER 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 
EXERCISE 

PRICE 
   
Balance, beginning of year 1,450,000 $ 0.13 1,250,000 $ 0.11 
Granted - - 250,000 0.20 
Exercised - - (50,000) 0.10 
   

Balance, end of year 1,450,000 $ 0.13 1,450,000 $ 0.13 
 

Upon exercise of the stock options, consideration paid by the option holder together with the 
amount previously recognized in contributed surplus is recorded as an increase to share capital.   
 
The weighted average share price on the dates the options were exercised was nil (2011 - $0.10). 
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8. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 
 

e) Share-based Payments  
 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Company recorded $Nil (2011 - $41,000) in share-based 
payments for options granted or vesting during the year. 
 
The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: 

 
 YEARS ENDED 
 JUNE 30,  
 2012 2011 
   
Risk free interest rate n/a 2.51% 
Expected life n/a 5 years 
Expected volatility n/a 122% 
Expected dividend yield n/a - 
Expected forfeiture n/a - 
Weighted average of fair value of options granted n/a $0.16 

 
 
9. INCOME TAXES 
 

The Company is subject to income taxes on its unconsolidated financial statements in Canada and the 
United States. The consolidated provision for income taxes varies from the amount that would be 
computed from applying the combined statutory income tax rates to the net loss before taxes were 
approximately as follows: 
 
 2012 2011 
    
Combined statutory tax rate 26% 27% 
     
Expected income tax recovery  $ 57,000 $ 267,000 
Non-deductible differences  43,000  (11,000) 
Effect of changes in tax rate  300)  42,000) 
Unrecognized benefit of loss carry forwards  (100,300)  (298,000) 
     
Income tax provision $ - $ - 
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9. INCOME TAXES (Continued) 
 

The significant components of the company’s future income tax assets were approximately as 
follows: 

 
 2012 2011 
     

Losses available for future periods $ 496,000 $ 393,000 
Resource property expenditures and equipment  36,000  36,000 
Share issuance costs  8,000  13,000 
Valuation allowance  (540,000)  (442,000) 
     
Net future income tax asset $ - $ - 

 
As of June 30, 2012, the Company has Canadian and U.S. non-capital losses of approximately 
$1,737,000 which may be carried forward and applied against taxable income in future years. These 
losses expire as follows: 

 
CANADA  U.S. 

       
2026 $ 33,000  2026 $ - 
2027  165,000  2027  - 
2028  139,000  2028  - 
2029  69,000  2029  - 
2030  138,000  2030 3,000 
2031  340,000  2031  488,000 
2032  236,000  2032  126,000 

 $ 1,120,000   $ 617,000 
 
The Company has resource pools of approximately $144,000 (2011 – $144,000) in Canada and $Nil 
(2011 - $Nil) in the U.S. available to offset future taxable income. The tax benefit of these amounts is 
available for carry-forward indefinitely. 
 
The potential tax benefits of these items have not been recognized as realization is not considered 
more likely than not. 

 
 

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

The following related party transactions were in the normal course of operations and measured at the 
exchange amount, which is the amount established and agreed to by the related parties.  Amounts due 
to and from related parties were non-interest bearing, unsecured and had not fixed terms of repayment. 
 
In addition to those related party transactions disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements the 
Company incurred the following transactions and balances: 
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10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 
 
a) Included in accounts payable is $64,400 (June 30, 2011 - $21,776) due to a related individuals for 

consulting services and amounts of $501 (June 30, 2011 – $745) due to a companies with a 
common director in respect of expense reimbursements. 

 
b) During the year ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company accrued or was charged the following 

amounts by Key management personnel, directors, and companies with a common director or 
officer. Key management personnel are considered to be the President of the Company and the 
Vice President of Operations.  

 
 YEARS ENDED  
 JUNE 30 
 2012 2011 
Amounts paid to key management personnel:     

     
Office expenses $ 1,680 $ 1,330 
Travel  2,280  2,050 
Management fees  48,000  32,000 
Amounts included in exploration and evaluation costs  40,600  111,579 

  92,560  146,959 
Amounts paid to other related parties:     

     
Office expenses  5,305  6,643 
Share based payments  -  33,400 
Travel  9,970  - 

  15,275  40,043 
 $ 107,835  187,002 

 
 

11. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES 
 
The Company was formed for the purpose of acquiring exploration and development stage natural 
resource properties.  The Board determines the Company’s capital structure and makes adjustments 
to it based on funds available to the Company, in order to support the acquisition, exploration and 
development of mineral properties.  The Directors have not established quantitative return on capital 
criteria for capital management. 
 
The Company currently owns 193 unpatented mining claims located in Gila County, Arizona and 
does not generate any revenue, and accordingly the Company will be dependent in the future upon 
external financing to fund future exploration programs and its administrative costs.  The Company 
will spend existing working capital and raise additional amounts as needed. 

 
The Company will continue to assess new properties and to seek to acquire an interest in additional 
properties if management feels there is sufficient geologic or economic potential provided it has 
adequate financial resources to do so. The Directors review their capital management approach on 
an ongoing basis and believes that this approach, given the relative size of the Company is 
reasonable. 
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11. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (Continued) 
 
The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other 
stakeholders. 
 
The Company considers the items included in the statement of shareholders’ equity as capital.  The 
Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.  In order to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares through private placements, sell 
assets to reduce debt or return capital to shareholders.  The Company is not subject to externally 
imposed capital requirements. 
 
 

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

IFRS 7 establishes a fair value hierarchy that priorities the input to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value as follows:  
 
Level 1 – Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2 –  Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices included 

in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly such as quoted prices 
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or indirectly such as quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions. 

 
 Level 3 – Applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable market data. 

 
The Company has no assets or liabilities subject to fair value measurement on a recurring basis. For 
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, the following table provides the 
fair value measures by level of valuation assumptions used: 
 
 
 FAIR 

VALUE 
YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2012 

YEAR ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2011 

 INPUT CARRYING ESTIMATED CARRYING ESTIMATED 
 LEVEL AMOUNT FAIR VALUE AMOUNT FAIR VALUE 
      
Financial Assets:          

Cash and cash equivalents 1 $ 140,683 $ 140,683 $ 563,033 $ 563,033 
Reclamation deposit 2  46,804  46,804  -  - 

  $ 187,487 $ 187,487 $ 563,033 $ 563,033 
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 
Due to the relatively short term nature of cash, amounts receivable, reclamation deposit and accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities, the fair value of these instruments approximates their carrying value. 
 
Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management team with guidance from the Board 
of Directors.  The Company's risk exposures and their impact on the Company's financial instruments 
are summarized below: 

 
a) Credit Risk 

 
The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash, short-term investments and amounts 
receivable.  Cash and short-term investments are held with one reputable Canadian chartered 
bank which is closely monitored by management.  Financial instruments included in amounts 
receivable consist primarily of GST/HST recoverable from the Canadian government.  
Management believes that the credit risk concentration with respect to financial instruments 
included in cash, short-term investments and amounts receivable is minimal. 
 

b) Liquidity Risk 
 

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity 
to meet liabilities when due.  As at June 30, 2012, the Company held cash of $140,683 (June 30, 
2011 - $563,033) and had current liabilities of $94,328 (June 30, 2011 - $79,047).  All of the 
Company’s liabilities have contractual maturities of less than 30 days and are subject to normal 
trade terms. 

 
c) Market Risk 

 
i) Interest Rate Risk 

 
The Company had cash balances and short-term investments, and no interest bearing debt.  
The Company’s current policy is to invest excess cash in investment-grade short-term 
deposit certificates issued by its banking institutions.  The Company periodically monitors the 
investments it makes and is satisfied with the creditworthiness of its banks.   
 

ii) Foreign Currency Risk 
 

The Company’s functional currency and the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar 
(“CDN$”). Periodically the Company incurs charges on its operations for settlement in 
currencies other than its functional currency and any gain or loss arising on such transactions 
is recorded in operations for the year. 
 
The Company holds a 100% interest in its subsidiary Toro Resources Inc. (“TRI”) which 
operates in the United States of America.  TRI has transactions which are recorded in the US 
Dollar (“USD$”).   
 
As a result, the Company is subject to foreign currency and exchange risk on the translation 
of these transactions and year end balances to the reporting currency.  Any gains or losses 
arising in the period are included in operations for the year. 
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 

ii) Foreign Currency Risk (Continued) 
 

As at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011, a 1% strengthening in the USD relative to the CDN$ 
does not have a significant impact on the net loss for the year. 
 
Any unrealized translation adjustments arising at period end are included in operating loss for 
the year. 

 
The mineral property contract (Note 7) is denominated in US Dollars, and accordingly, 
changes in the exchange rate will affect the Company’s future cash outflows pursuant to this 
agreement.  As at June 30, 2012, a 1% strengthening in the USD$ relative to the CDN$ 
would result in future cash outflows increasing by approximately CDN$ 55,000. 
 
The Company does not participate in any hedging activities to mitigate any gains or losses 
which may arise as a result of exchange rate changes. 

  
 As at June 30, 2012, financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the 

Canadian dollar are as follows: 
 FINANCIAL FINANCIAL 
 ASSETS LIABILITIES 

   
US dollars $ 53,368 $ 3,946 

 
iii) Commodity Price Risk 

 
The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity and equity prices. Equity 
price risk is defined as the potential adverse impact on the Company's earnings due to 
movements in individual equity prices or general movements in the level of the stock market. 
Commodity price risk is defined as the potential adverse impact on earnings and economic 
value due to commodity price movements and volatilities. To mitigate price risk, the Company 
closely monitors commodity prices of precious metals, individual equity movements, and the 
stock market to determine the appropriate course of action to be taken by the Company 

 
 

13. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS 
 

The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing these consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2012, the comparative information presented in these  
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2011, and the in preparation of an opening IFRS 
statement of financial position as at July 1, 2010. 
 
IFRS 1, “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” (“IFRS 1”), requires first 
time adopters to retrospectively apply all the effective IFRS standards as at the reporting date of 
June 30, 2012.  However, it also provides for certain optional exemptions and certain mandatory 
exceptions for first time adoptions. 
 
In preparing the Company’s opening IFRS statement of financial position, the Company has adjusted 
amounts reported previously in the financial statements prepared in accordance with pre-changeover 
Canadian GAAP.  
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13. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS (Continued) 
 
The Company has applied the following optional exemptions and exceptions from full retrospective 
application of IFRS 1: 
 
Mandatory exceptions to the retrospective applications of other IFRS 
 
There are four mandatory exceptions under IFRS 1. All four exceptions were applied. There is no 
impact on the Company (IFRS 1 Appendix B). 
 
Elected exemptions from full retrospective application 
 
Share-based payment transactions (IFRS 1 paragraphs D2 and D3)  
 
The Company has elected not to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 to equity instruments that were 
granted and that vest before the transition date.  As a result of applying this exemption, the Company 
will apply the provision of IFRS 2 to all outstanding equity instruments that are unvested prior to the 
date of transition to IFRS. No adjustment is necessary. 
 
Decommissioning liabilities included in the cost of property, plant and equipment (IFRS 1 
paragraphs D21 and D21A)  
 
The Company has elected to apply the exemption from full retrospective application of 
decommissioning provisions as allowed under IFRS 1. No adjustment is necessary. 
 
Business combinations (IFRS 1 Appendix C)  
 
The Company has elected not to retrospectively apply IFRS 3, Business Combinations, to any 
business combinations that may have occurred prior to its Transition Date and such business 
combinations have not been restated. No adjustment is necessary. 
 
Deemed costs (IRFS 1 Appendix D.6(c)) 
 
At the transition date, the Company elected to continue with the policy of measuring mineral property 
costs at the previous Canadian GAAP historical cost. No adjustment is necessary. 

 
Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments (IFRS 1 Appendix D.25) 
 
IFRIC 19 provides guidance on how an entity should account for such transactions in accordance 
with IAS39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement and IAS 32 Financial Instruments 
Presentation. A first time adopter may apply the transitional provision in IFRIC 19 Extinguishing 
Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments for such transaction occurring prior to the Transition date. 
The exemption is taken as a precaution. No adjustment is necessary. 

 
Cumulative Translation Differences (IRFS 1 Appendix D.12) 
 
The exemption directs that cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to 
be zero at the date of transition to IFRS; and the gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any 
foreign operation shall exclude translation differences that arose before the date of transition to IFRS 
and shall include later translation differences. The cumulative translation difference at transition is 
immaterial. No adjustment is necessary. 
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13. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS (Continued) 

 
The following is a reconciliation of the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Position as at the transition date of July 1, 2010: 

 
 JULY 1, 2010 
 Canadian  Effect of  
 GAAP Transition IFRS 
       
ASSETS       
       
Current       

Cash  $ 691,850 $ - $ 691,850 
Amounts receivable  4,425  -  4,425 
Prepaid expenses  10,000  -  10,000 

  706,275  -  706,275 
       
Equipment  -  -  - 
Exploration and evaluation assets (Note 7)  141,031  -  141,031 
       
 $ 847,306 $ - $ 847,306 
       
LIABILITIES       
       
Current       

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 32,664 $ - $ 32,664 
       
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY       
       
Share capital  1,480,576  -  1,480,576 
Contributed surplus  118,100  -  118,100 
Deficit  (784,034)  -  (784,034) 
  814,642  -  814,642 
       
 $ 847,306 $ - $ 847,306 
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13. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS (Continued) 
 

The following is a reconciliation of the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Position as at June 30, 2011: 

 
 JUNE 30, 2011 
 Canadian  Effect of  
 GAAP Transition IFRS 
       
ASSETS       
       
Current       

Cash  $ 563,033 $ - $ 563,033 
Amounts receivable  26,238  -  26,238 
Prepaid expenses  6,394  -  6,394 

  595,665  -  595,665 
       
Equipment  1,225  -  1,225 
Exploration and evaluation assets (Note 7)  624,983  -  624,983 
       
 $ 1,221,873 $ - $ 1,221,873 
       
LIABILITIES       
       
Current       

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 79,047 $ - $ 79,047 
       
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY       
       
Share capital  2,142,266  -  2,142,266 
Contributed surplus  154,910  -  154,910 
Deficit  (1,154,350)  -  (1,154,350) 
  1,142,826  -  1,142,826 
       
 $ 1,221,873 $ - $ 1,221,873 

 
The following is a reconciliation of the Company’s net loss and comprehensive loss reported in 
accordance with Canadian GAAP to its net loss and comprehensive loss in accordance with IFRS for 
the year ended June 30, 2011. 

  Year Ended 
  June 30 
  2011 
   

Loss as reported under Canadian GAAP  $  (370,316) 
IFRS adjustment (increase) decrease  - 
Net loss and comprehensive loss as reported under IFRS  

$
 
 (370,316) 
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13. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS (Continued) 
 
Explanation of Reconciling Items 
 
No restatement or reclassification of the consolidated income statement was required for the year 
ended June 30, 2011. 
 
There is no impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2011 as 
a result of adopting IFRS. 
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Notice 
 

The following unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements of the 
Company for the period ended March 31, 2015 have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management.  The Company’s independent auditors have not performed an audit or a 
review of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements. 
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Toro Resources Corp. 
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

Note March 31, 2015     June 30, 2014
Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 48,146              $ 38,373              
Amounts receivable 5,624                8,761                
Prepaid expenses -                    2,600                

53,770              49,734              

Exploration and evaluation assets 3 12,500              10,000              
Reclamation deposit 4 -                    46,804              

Total Assets 66,270              106,538            

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6 557,650            413,645            
Loan payable 6 100,000            100,000            

Total Liabilities 657,650            513,645            

Shareholder's Equity
Share capital 2,239,766         2,239,766          
Other capital reserves 208,951            208,951            
Deficit (3,040,097)       (2,855,824)        

(591,380)           (407,107)           
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 66,270              $ 106,538            

Nature of Operations and Going Concern (Note 1)

Approved on April 21, 2015 by the Directors:

" Devinder Randhawa"
Devinder Randhawa, Director

"Greg Downey"
Greg Downey, Director



See accompanying notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements. Page 2       

Toro Resources Corp. 
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss
Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

Note 2015             2014               2015             2014                
Expenses $ $ $ $

Consulting and management fees 6 45,000         45,000            135,000       135,000           
Office and administration 36                 533                 659               802                  
Professional fees -               5,000              8,650            28,500             
Public relations and communications 605               201                 4,512            2,941               
Regulatory fees 2,600            1,300              7,700            1,300               
Rent 6 300               750                 1,950            2,250               
Share-based compensation -               1,088              -               21,016             
Transfer agent 1,045            1,081              6,024            7,168               
Travel -               1,761              -               6,273               

49,586         56,714            164,495       205,250           

Loss before other items (49,586)        (56,714)           (164,495)      (205,250)          

Other items - income (expense)
Interest (1,250)          (1,250)             (3,750)          (5,000)             

 Exploration and evaluation expense -               -                 (22,192)        -                  
Foreign exchange gain (loss) -               (128)                6,164            (772)                

(1,250)          (1,378)             (19,778)        (5,772)             

Net loss and comprehensive
loss for the period (50,836)        (58,092)           (184,273)      (211,022)          

Basic and diluted loss per 
common share (0.01)$          (0.01)$             (0.01)$          (0.01)$             

Weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding 23,148,636   23,148,636       23,148,636   23,148,636       

 Three months ended March 31,  Nine months ended  March 31, 



See accompanying notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements. Page 3

Toro Resources Corp. 
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 
Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

Total
Other Capital Shareholders'

Note Shares Amount Reserves Deficit Equity

Balance June 30, 2013  24,198,636    2,239,766$    187,935$      (1,628,225)$    799,476$        

Share-based compensation 6(c) -                -                21,016          -                 21,016            

Net loss and comprehensive loss -                -                -               (211,022)         (211,022)         

Balance March 31, 2014 24,198,636    2,239,766      208,951        (1,839,247)      609,470          

Net loss and comprehensive loss -                -                -               (1,016,577)      (1,016,577)      

Balance as at June 30, 2014 24,198,636    2,239,766      208,951        (2,855,824)      (407,107)         

Net loss and comprehensive loss -               -               -              (184,273)       (184,273)       

Balance March 31, 2014 24,198,636  2,239,766$  208,951$    (3,040,097)$  (1,607,957)$  

Common Shares



See accompanying notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements. Page 4

Toro Resources Corp. 
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian Dollars

TSX.V: TRK

2015                  2014            2015               2014              

Cash flows used in operating activities

Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period (50,836)$           (82,805)$      (184,273)$      (149,541)$      
Items not affecting cash:

Depreciation -                     -               -                  445               
   Share-based compensation -                     15,414          -                  15,414           

(50,836)              (67,391)        (184,273)         (133,682)        
Changes in non-cash working capital items:

(Increase) decrease in amounts receivable (1,714)                (5,263)          3,137              8,789             
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses -                     (3,863)          2,600              717               
Increase in accounts payable and                            
accrued liabilities 43,038               47,099          144,005          54,455           

Cash used in continuing operations (9,512)                (29,418)        (34,531)           (69,721)         

Investing activities
Exploration and evaluation additions -                     (15,866)        (2,500)             (49,380)         
Reclamation Deposit -                     -               46,804            -                

Cash used in investing activities -                     (15,866)        44,304            (49,380)         

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (9,512)                (45,284)        9,773              (119,101)        
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 57,658               66,866          38,373            140,683         

 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 48,146$             21,582$        48,146$          21,582$         

 Nine months ended March 31,  Three months ended March 31, 



Toro Resources Corp. 
Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Three and Nine Months Ended March 31, 2015 
(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian Dollars)                           TSX.V: TRK 
 

 
1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN 
 

Toro Resources Corporation, (the “Company”, “TRC”) is a company incorporated under the Business 
Corporation Act of British Columbia, Canada. The registered office of the Company is 700-595 Howe 
Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2T5. The principle address and records office of the 
Company is 700-1620 Dickson Ave., Kelowna, British Columbia, V1Y 9Y2. The Company’s shares 
are publically listed on the TSX-Venture exchange (“TSX”) under the symbol “TRK”. 

 
The Company is a natural resource company engaged in the acquisition and exploration of resource 
properties in Canada and the United States of America (“USA”).  The Company presently has no 
proven or probable reserves and on the basis of information to date, it has yet to determine whether 
these properties contain economically recoverable ore reserves, consequently the Company 
considers itself to be an exploration stage company. 

 
These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management on 
a going concern basis with the assumption that the Company will continue for the foreseeable future 
and will be able to meet its obligations to continue operations.  Management has carried out an 
assessment of the going concern assumption and concludes that the continued operations of the 
Company are dependent upon equity financing and/or joint venturing project development as primary 
sources of funding.  

 
The realized values of net assets may be significantly different from carrying values shown and these 
consolidated financial statements do not give effect to adjustments to the carrying values and 
classification of assets and liabilities that would be necessary should the Company be unable to 
continue as a going concern. 

 
As at March 31, 2015 the Company has cash and cash equivalents of $48,146 ($36,739 at March 31, 
2014) and working capital of $47,547 (working capital deficit of $421,045 at March 31, 2014). The 
accumulated deficit recorded as at March 31, 2015 is ($3,040,877) (($1,839,247) at March 31, 2014). 
See also Note 6.  

 
 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
International Accounting Standard 34 – Interim Financial Reporting (“IAS-34”) as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and should be read in conjunction with the 
Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014. The annual 
statements include information necessary or useful to understanding the Company’s business and 
financial statement presentation. In particular, the Company’s significant accounting policies and the 
use of judgements and estimates are presented in Notes 3 and 4 of the annual statements.  These 
policies, judgements and estimates have been consistently applied in the preparation of these 
condensed interim consolidated financial statements.   
 
These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in Canadian dollars 
on a historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value. 
They include the 100% wholly owned U.S. subsidiary Toro Resources Inc. (“TRI”). 

 
The issuance of these financial statements has been authorized by the Board of Directors on  
April 21, 2015. 
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Toro Resources Corp. 
Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Three and Nine Months Ended March 31, 2015 
(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian Dollars)                           TSX.V: TRK 
 

 
3. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 

 
Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an interest, 
these procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title. Such properties may be subject to prior 
agreements and title may be affected by undetected defects. 

 
Taxco Property, British Columbia, Canada 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Company entered into a preliminary agreement to acquire 
under an option agreement the Taxco property from 1002679 B.C. Ltd. The 915 hectare property is 
located 125 km southwest of Vanderhoof, 175 km southwest of Prince George, and approximately 
150 km west of Quesnel, British Columbia. The Company commissioned an updated 43:101 report on 
the property in June of 2014 which has been accounted for as an acquisition cost. 
 

The Property is subject to a royalty in favor of 1002679 B.C. Ltd. equal to a 3% Net Smelter Royalty 
(NSR), one half of which may be purchased for a cash payment of $250,000. A non-refundable cash 
payment of $2,500 and issuance of 50,000 shares or cash payment of $5,000 is due upon regulatory 
approval. Under the terms of the agreement, TRC will hold 100% beneficial interest in the Taxco 
Property by making cash payments, issuing shares and carrying out exploration work as per the 
following anniversary dates:  

End of Year Cash Payment Shares Issued Expenditures

1 10,000$       100,000        50,000$      
2 20,000         150,000        100,000      
3 50,000         200,000        250,000      

80,000$       450,000        400,000$      
 
Morgan Peak, Arizona, USA 
 
On December 10, 2009, the Company entered into a letter of intent with MinQuest Inc. to acquire a 
100% undivided interest in the Morgan Peak Property in Arizona, USA, comprising 102 unpatented 
mineral claims covering a total of 2,020 acres. On March 10, 2010, the Company assigned all its 
rights and obligations pursuant to the mineral contract to its wholly-owned subsidiary, TRI, a company 
incorporated in Nevada.  
 
At June 30, 2014, the Company wrote down the Morgan Peak property to $Nil and recorded a loss of 
$985,356 in the year. The property was relinquished on August 18, 2014.  
 

 
4. RECLAMATION DEPOSIT 

 
During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Company was required to post a reclamation deposit in the 
amount of $46,804 (US$45,900) with the USDA Forest Service in order to continue its exploration of 
the Morgan Peak property. The reclamation deposit has been received as at March 31, 2015 with the 
Company realizing a foreign exchange gain of $6,164. The Company has no further constructive or 
contingent liabilities arising from environmental or reclamation requirements. 
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Three and Nine Months Ended March 31, 2015 
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5. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
 

a) Authorized: 
 

Unlimited voting common shares without par value 
Unlimited non-voting preferred shares with a par value of $1 each (none issued) 

 
b) Issued and Outstanding - Common Shares: 

 
No Common shares were issued during the nine month period ended March 31, 2015. 
 

c) Stock Options: 
 

The Company has a shareholder approved stock option plan that provides for the issuance of 
stock options to its officers, directors, employees and consultants.  Stock options must be non-
transferable and the aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance may not exceed 10% of 
the issued shares of the Company at the time of granting and may not exceed 5% to any one 
individual. The exercise price of stock options is determined by the board of directors of the 
Company at the time of grant and may not be less than the closing market price of the 
Company’s shares on the day immediately prior to the award date, less any discount which may 
be permitted by the TSX.  Options have a maximum term of five years. 
 
As at March 31, 2015, there were 1,800,000 options outstanding, exercisable at $0.10 per share 
with an expiry date of March 13, 2016. No stock options were issued or exercised in the nine 
month period ended March 31, 2015. 

 
6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

The Company has identified its directors and certain senior officers as its key management 
personnel.  The compensation costs for key management personnel for the nine months ended 
March 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 
 

  

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Wages and consulting fees accrued for 
key management personnel 135,000$                135,000$                    

Share-based expense for options granted 
to key management personnel -                          13,510                        

135,000$                148,510$                     
 
On April 26, 2013, the Company announced it had secured an interim loan of $100,000 with interest 
of 5% per annum, calculated monthly, from RD Capital Inc., a company controlled by Dev Randhawa, 
Chairman and CEO.  The financing ensured that the Company met its commitments on the 
Company’s Morgan Peak Copper Project. On May 21, 2013 the Company issued 400,000 loan bonus 
shares to RD Capital Inc. valued at $0.05 per share. As of March 31, 2015, the Company has 
accrued interest charges of $10,000 on the loan.  
 
Included in accrued liabilities at March 31, 2015 is $552,439 (March 31, 2014 - $320,280) for 
consulting fees owing to officers and companies controlled by officers and for legal fees accrued. In 
an agreement reached in March, 2015, the creditors have agreed to postpone the repayment of this 
debt and the interim loan for a period of one year or until such time as the Company undertakes a 
financing and debt settlement arrangements in accordance with the policies of the Exchange. 
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Three and Nine Months Ended March 31, 2015 
(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian Dollars)                           TSX.V: TRK 
 

 
Included in expenses is $600 for office rent and $180 for computer/phone systems rent paid to a 
company with related directors and executives.  These transactions were in the normal course of 
operations and were measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration 
established and agreed to by the related parties. 
 

7. SEGMENTED INFORMATION 
 

The Company operates under one business segment being the exploration of mineral property 
interests operating in two geographical locations; Canada and the USA. The loss from operations for 
the periods ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 are considered to be solely related to this segment. 
Total assets by geographic area are as follows: 
 

March 31, 2014

Canada  USA  USA 

Exploration and evaluation assets 12,500$     -$             932,720$                 

March 31, 2015

 

 
8. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES 

 
The Company was formed for the purpose of acquiring exploration and development stage natural 
resource properties.  The determination of the Company’s capital structure is subject to the Board of 
Directors, who make adjustments based on funds available to the Company, in order to support the 
acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties.  The Directors have not established 
quantitative return on capital criteria for capital management. 
 
Currently the Company controls two contiguous Mineral Titles Online (“MTO”) claims covering 
approximately 915 hectares (2,261 acres) located 125km south of Vanderhoof, British Columbia on 
the Nechako Plateau. The Company does not generate any revenue, and accordingly will be 
dependent in the future upon external financing to fund future exploration programs and its 
administrative costs. The Company will raise additional amounts as needed. 

 
The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other 
stakeholders. The Company will continue to assess new properties and to seek to acquire an interest 
in additional properties if management determines there is sufficient geologic or economic potential, 
provided it has adequate financial resources to do so. The Directors review the capital management 
approach on an ongoing basis and believe, given the relative size of the Company, that this approach 
is reasonable. 
 
The Company considers the items included in the statements of changes in equity as capital.  The 
Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.  In order to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares through private placements, sell 
assets to reduce debt or return capital to shareholders.  The Company is not subject to externally 
imposed capital requirements. 
 

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

IFRS-7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures establishes a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making measurements.  The fair value hierarchy levels are: 
 
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities 
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For the Three and Nine Months Ended March 31, 2015 
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Level 2: inputs other than quoted direct prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) 
 
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs) 
 
The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, 
amounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. For cash and cash equivalents, amounts 
receivable and payable and accrued liabilities, carrying value is considered to be a reasonable 
approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.  
 
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments are designated as held for trading and therefore 
carried at fair value, with the unrealized gain or loss recorded on the statement of comprehensive loss. 
The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to a number of financial and market risks, including 
credit, liquidity and foreign exchange risks. The Company does not currently have in place any active 
hedging or derivative trading policies to manage these risks since the Company’s management does 
not believe that the current size, scale and pattern of its operations would warrant such activities. 
 
a) Credit Risk 
 
The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash, short-term investments and amounts 
receivable.  Cash and short-term investments are held with reputable financial institutions.  Financial 
instruments included in amounts receivable consist primarily of GST recoverable from the Canada 
Revenue Agency.  Management believes that the credit risk concentration with respect to financial 
instruments included in cash, short-term investments and amounts receivable is minimal. 
 

Class Level March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Cash and cash equivalents 1 48,146$                        36,739$                          
Amounts receivable and prepaids 3 5,624                            10,684                           

53,770$                        47,423$                           
 
b) Liquidity Risk 
 
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to 
meet liabilities when due.  As at March 31, 2015, the Company held cash of $48,146 (March 31, 2014 - 
$36,739) GST receivable of $5,624 (March 31, 2014 - $6,219) and had current liabilities of $5,435 
(March 31, 2014 - $6,350).  The Company’s liabilities have contractual maturities of less than 30 days 
and are subject to normal trade terms with the exception of amounts owed to related parties which have 
no fixed terms and are non-interest bearing. 

 
c) Foreign Currency Risk 
 
The Company’s functional and reporting currency is the Canadian dollar (“CAD”).  
 
The Company holds a 100% interest in its subsidiary TRI, which operates in the USA and records 
transactions in US dollars (“USD”).  As a result, the Company is subject to foreign currency and 
exchange risk on the translation of these transactions and year end balances to the reporting currency.  
Any gains or losses arising on such transactions in the period are recorded in operations for the year.  
Changes in the value of USD against the CAD affect the costs of operations and resultant capital 
expenditures. The Company primarily maintains its cash balances in CAD and exchanges currency on 
an as needed basis thereby reducing the exchange risk on cash balances. For the period ended March 
31, 2015, the Company has no cash balance in USD. The Company does not participate in any hedging 
activities to mitigate any gains or losses which may arise as a result of exchange rate changes. 
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